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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Tata
Realty and Infrastructure Limited will be held on Wednesday, September 14, 2022 at
11:30 a.m. at shorter notice through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means to
transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:
1. To receive, consider and adopt:

a) the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2022, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon; and

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial
Year ended March 31, 2022, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To re-appoint Mr. Farokh Subedar (DIN: 00028428} as Director of the Company,
who is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

3. Appointment of Statutory Auditars of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”), read with the Companies
{Audit & Auditors} Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, M/s. BS R & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No.:101248W/W-100022) be and are
hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office for a
period of five years from the conclusion of this Fifteen Annual General Meeting
("AGM") until conclusion of the Twentieth AGM of the Company to be held in the
vear 2027, at such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Auditors
and the Board of Directors of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is
hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary or
expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”
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Special Business:
4. To approve Issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures on Private Placement Basis:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in supersession of Resolution passed at the Extra-Ordinary
General Meeting of the Members held on June 15, 2022 and pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 23, 42 and 71 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force) and the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Share Capital & Debentures) Rules,
2014, both as amended from time to time, and subject to all other applicable
Regulations, Rules, WNotifications, Circulars and Guidelines prescribed by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI'), as amended, including the SEBI
(Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, as amended, the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended, SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018,
as amended if applicable and the enabling provisions of the listing agreements
entered / to be entered into with the Stock Exchanges where the securities of the
Company be listed {the 'Stock Exchanges'), and subject to the applicable
Regulations, Rules, Notifications, Circulars and Guidelines prescribed by the Reserve
Bank of India ('RBI'), the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association
of the Company, and subject to such approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions
as may be required from the Government of India, SEBY, RBI, the Stock Exchanges
or any regulatory or statutory authority as may be required (the 'Appropriate
Authority’) and subject to such conditions and/or modifications as may be prescribed
or imposed by the Appropriate Authority while granting such approvals, consents,
permissions and sanctions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the
Company (hereinafter referred to as the 'Board’ which term shall be deemed to
include any Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board to exercise its
powers including the powers conferred by this Resolution), subject to the total
borrowings of the Company not exceeding the borrowing powers approved by the
Members from time to time under Section 180(1)(c) of the Act, consent of the
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors for
making offer(s) or invitations to subscribe to rated, redeemable, cumulative/non-
cumulative, listed/unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures/Bonds  (hereinafter
collectively referred as NCDs) up to an amount of Rs.6,000 Crore (Rupees Six
Thousand Crore only) on private placement basis to eligible entities, bodies
corporate, companies, banks, financial institutions and any other categories of
investors (eligible investors) permitted to invest in the NCDs under applicable laws,
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in one or more series/tranches, during a period of one year from the date of passing
of this Resolution on such terms and conditions as the Board or any Committee
authorized by the Board or any person(s) authorized by the Board, may, from time
to time, determine and consider proper and most beneficial to the Company
including as to when the said NCDs be issued, the consideration for the issue,
utilization of issue proceeds and all matters connected with or incidental thereto and
that the said borrowing is within the overall borrowing limits of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, the
Board be and is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Company, to determine the
terms of issue including the class of investors to whom the NCDs are to be issued,
time, the number of NCDs, tranches, issue price, tenor, interest rate,
premium/discount, listing (in India or overseas) and do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper, or desirable
and to settle any question, doubt that may arise in respect of the borrowings
aforesaid and to execute all documents and writing as may be necessary, proper,
desirable or expedient.”

. Ratification of Cost Auditor's Remuneration:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the
Company hereby ratifies the remuneration up to Rs. 1,75,000/- (Rupees One Lakh
Seventy-Five Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses
incurred in connection with the audit, payable to M/s. Kishore Bhatia & Associates,
Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No: 00294), who are appointed by Board as
Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records maintained by the Company,
for the financial year 2022-23.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and hereby authorised to
do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give
effect to this resolution.”

@q I-"i.:;;\ By order of the Board
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(ICSI Membership No.: A18978)
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Place: Mumbai
Date: August 25, 2022
Registered Office: E Block, Voltas Premises,
T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokii, Mumbai - 400033
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NOTES:

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its General Circular No. 20/2020
dated May 5, 2020 in relation to “Clarification on holding of annual general meeting
{AGM) through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM)” read
with General Circular No. 14/ 2020 dated April 8, 2020, General Circular No. 17/
2020 dated April 13, 2020, General Circular No.39/2020 dated December 31, 2020,
General Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021 and General Circular No.
2/2022 dated May 05, 2022, in relation to “Clarification on passing of ordinary and
special resolutions by companies under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder” (collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars™) permitted the holding of the
Annual General Meeting ("AGM") through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence
of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being
held through VC / OAVM an Wednesday, September 14, 2022 at 11:30 a.m. (IST).
The deemed venue for the 15" AGM will be the registered office of the Company E
Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033.

2. PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO
ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. SINCE THIS AGM IS BEING HELD PURSUANT
TO THE MCA CIRCULARS THROUGH VC OR OAVM, THE REQUIREMENT OF
PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH.
ACCORDINGLY, IN TERMS OF THE MCA CIRCULARS THE FACILITY FOR
APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE MEMBERS WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE
FOR THIS AGM AND HENCE THE PROXY FORM AND ATTENDANCE SLIP ARE
NOT ANNEXED TO THIS NOTICE.

3. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

4. Corporate members intending to attend through their authorised representative, to
attend the AGM are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG format) a certified
copy of its Board or governing body Resolution / Authorization to the Company,
authorising them to attend and vote through VC/OAVM on their behalf at the AGM.

5. As per the provisions of Clause 3.B.IV. of the General Circular No. 20/ 2020 dated
May 5, 2020, the matters of Special Business as appearing at Item No. 4 and 5 of
the accompanying Notice, are considered to be unavoidable by the Board and hence,
forming part of this Notice.
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The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act setting out material
facts concerning the business under Item No. 3, 4 and 5 of the Notice is annexed
hereto. The relevant details, pursuant to Secretarial Standards on General Meetings
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors
seeking appointment/re-appointment at this AGM are also annexed.

The Company shall provide the required link to attend the 15" AGM of the Company
at their registered email address / at the email address of the authorized
representative, as the case may be, before the meeting, which would facilitate the
Members/Authorized Representatives, as the case may be, to attend the AGM via VC
or OAVM. In case, any Members/Authorized Representatives, as the case may be,
need any assistance with using the technology, can contact the Company at
following email id: trilsec@tatarealty.in or call during the business hours at 022
6661 4444,

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and 15
minutes after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by clicking
on the invitation link which has been provided separately while circulation of notice.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the
Annual Report for the financial year 2021-22, is being sent by electronic mode to
those Members whose email addresses are registered with the
Company/Depositories.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postai
address, e-mail address, telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, registering of nomination,
power of attorney registration, Bank Mandate details, etc., to their DPs in case the
shares are held in electronic form and to the Registrar at www.kfintech.com in case
the shares are held in physical form, quoting their folio no.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is
available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have
not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting
Form No. SH-13. If a Member desires to cancel the earlier nomination and record a
fresh nomination, he may submit the same in Form SH-14. Members are requested
to submit the said form to their DP in case the shares are held in electronic form and
to the RTA at www.kfintech.com in case the shares are held in physical form,
quoting your folio no.
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The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the MCA under the Act
requires the Company/Registrars and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) to record
additional details of Members, including their PAN details, e-mail address, bank
details for payment of dividend etc. Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to submit the filled in form to the Company at the registered office or to
the Registrar in physical mode, after restoring normalcy or in electronic mode at
www.kfintech.com, as per instructions mentioned in the form. Members holding
shares in electronic form are requested to submit the details to their respective DP
only and not to the Company or RTA.

To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email
addresses are requested to register the same with their Depaository Paricipants
("DPs"™).

Members who wish to inspect the relevant documents referred to in the Notice can
send an email to_trilsec@tatarealty.in the conclusion of the Meeting. The Members
who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may raise the
same at the meeting or send them in advance (mentioning their name and folio
no./DP ID and Client ID), at least 3 days prior to the date of the AGM by email at
trilsec@tatarealty.in .

Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Act and Register of Contracts or arrangements
in which Directors are interested, if any maintained under Section 189 of the Act will
be available electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM. Members
who wish to inspect the same can send an email to _trilsec@tatarealty.in up to the
conclusion of the Meeting.

Since the Company is not required to conduct e-voting, the voting at the meeting
shall be conducted through show of hands, unless demand for a poll is made by any
member in accordance with Section 109 of the Act. In case of a poll on any
resolution at the AGM, members are requested to convey their vote at the following
designated Email ID — trilsec@tatarealty.in.
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17. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed to this
Notice.

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

\0’%:\_& /'i\'}i“ﬁ? Rashmi Jain
\fi’ * GV Company Secretary

(ICSI Membership No.: A18978)
CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300

Place: Mumbai

Date: August 25, 2022

Registered Office: E Block, Voltas Premises,

T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”), the following explanatory
statement set out all material facts to the business mentioned under following Items of the
accompanying Notice.

Item No. 2:

The brief profile of Mr. Farokh Subedar (DIN; 00028428} in terms of Secretarial Standard- 2
on General Meetings (55-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, is
provided in Annexure A.

Item No. 3:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act read with the Companies (Account and
Audit) Rules, 2014 (“Rules”), M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP (Deloitte), Chartered
Accountants, having Registration No. 117366W/W-100018, the present Statutory Auditors of
the Company, complete their total term of Five Years as Statutory Auditors.

Accordingly, as per the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board at its meeting
held on August 10, 2022, has approved the proposal to appoint M/s. B S R & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accauntant (Firm Registration no. 101248W/W-100022), as Statutory Auditors of
the Company to hold office for a period of five years commencing from the conclusion of
the Fifteen Annual General Meeting ("AGM") until conclusion of the Twentieth AGM of the
Company to be held in the year 2027, on a remuneration plus applicable taxes, out-of-
pocket expenses, etc., incurred in connection with the Audit as may be decided by the
Board of Directors in consultation with the Auditors.

The Board commends the Resolution at Item No.3 for approval by the Members as an
Ordinary resolution.

None of the Directors and the key managerial personnel(s) or their relatives is deemed to
be concerned or interested in the aforesaid resolution.

Item No. 4:
To meet the funding requirements of the Company, the Company has from time to time

issued NCDs, in one or more series / tranches on private placement basis in accordance
with the provisions of the Act.
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In order to augment long term resources for financing, inter alia, refinancing of the existing
debt, ongoing working capital requirement and for general corporate purposes, the
Company may require further offering or inviting or subscription, from time to time, in one
or more tranches and/or series, whether secured or unsecured, cumulative or non-
cumulative, listed or unlisted, redeemable non-convertible debentures including but not
limited to bonds and/or other debt securities, denominated in Indian rupees ('NCDs") on
private placement basis. The pricing for any instrument which may be issued by the
Company on the basis of the Resolution set out at the Notice will be done by the Board
{which term includes a duly constituted Committee of the Board of Directors) in accordance
with applicable laws including the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing
of Non —Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 and other Regulations, as may be
applicable.

The provisions of Sections 23, 42 and 71 of the Act read with Rule 14 of the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 (the 'PAS Rules'’), provide that a
Company shall not make a private placement of its securities unless the proposed offer of
securities or invitation to subscribe to the securities has been previously approved by the
Members of the Company by a Special Resolution. The third proviso to Rule 14(1) of the
PAS Rules provides that in case of an offer or invitation to subscribe to NCDs on private
placement basis, the Company can obtain prior approval by means of a Special Resolution
once a year for all offers or invitations for such NCDs during the year. Further, fourth
proviso to Rule 14(1) of PAS Rules provides that in case of offer or invitation of any
securities to qualified institutional buyers, it shall be sufficient if the company passes a
previous special resolution only in a year for all the allotments to such buyers during the
year.

In terms of the provisions of Rule 14(1) of the PAS rules, disclosures pertaining to NCDs are
as follows:

a) Particulars of the offer including the date of passing of the Board
Resolution:
The Board resolution passed on August 10, 2022, for the issuance of NCDs and on a
private placement basis up to limit of up to Rs. 6,000 Crore.

b) Kinds of Securities offered and the price at which security is being offered:
Non-Convertible Debentures at such price as may be determined by the Board from
time to time.

c) Basis of justification for the price (including premium, if any) at which the
offer or invitation is being made:
As may be determined by the Board from time to time.
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d) Name and address of valuer who performed valuation:

Not Applicable

Amount which the company intends to raise by way of such securities:
Up to Rs. 6,000 Crore.

Material terms of raising such securities, proposed time schedule,
purposes or objects of offer, contribution being made by the promoters or
directors either as part of the offer or separately in furtherance of objects;
principal terms of assets charged as securities:

As may be determined by the Board, from time to time

The Shareholders had approved the issuance of NCDs amounting to Rs. 6,000 Crore
vide its resolution passed at the Extra- ordinary General Meeting held on June 15,
2022. To streamline and for better operational convenience, it is proposed to seek
approval of members at every Annual General Meeting. The Board at its meeting
held on August 10, 2022, subject to the approval of members of the Company, had
approved the issuance of NCDs on a private placement basis, amounting to Rs.
6,000 Crore. This was within the overall borrowing limit of Rs. 6,000 Crore, pursuant
to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Act.

The Company has already availed Rs. 4,220 Crore out of such limit as June 30,
2022. The current borrowing structure of the Company is mentioned in the table
below:

Borrowings as on June 30, 2022:

(Figures in Rs. Crore)

Overall Borrowing Limit: 6,000

Particulars Short Term and Long Term Borrowing
Limit 6,000

Utilized 4,220

Balance 1,780

The approval of the Members is being sought for issue of NCDs up to an amount of
Rs.6,000 Crore by way of a Special Resolution in compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Act read with the Rules made thereunder, from time to time, in the
manner as set in this Notice.
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The Directors recommend the Resolution of the accompanying Notice, for the
approval of the Members of the Company by way of a Special Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial personnel(s) of the Company or their
respective relatives is in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in
the Resolution set out in this Notice.

Item No. 5:

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on May 28, 2022,
approved the remuneration of M/s. Kishore Bhatia & Associates, Cost Accountants
(Firm Registration No: 00294), as Cost Auditors for auditing the cost records of the
Company for the financial year 2022-23 at a remuneration not exceeding
Rs.1,75,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Seventy-Five Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes
and out-of-pocket expenses.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the ratification for the remuneration payable to the
Cost Auditors for the Financial Year 2022-23 by way of an Ordinary Resolution is
being sought from the members as set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice
for approval of the Members.

None of the Directors and the key managerial personnel(s) or their relatives is
deemed to be concerned or interested in the aforesaid resolution.

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Rashmi Jain
Company Secretary
(ICSI Membership No.: A18978

CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300
Place: Mumbai

Date: August 25, 2022

Registered Office: E Block, Voltas Premises,

T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033
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Annexure A

Information pursuant to the Secretarial Standards in respect of Appointment/
Re-appointment/ fixation of remuneration of Directors:

Board Attended
during the year

Particulars Mr. Farokh Subedar (DIN: 0028428)

Designation Non-Executive Director

Age 66 years
i. Bachelor’s degree in Commerce

Qualification ii. Member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
iii. Member of The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
Mr. Farokh Subedar has vast experience in the areas of company
administration, finance, taxation and accounts. He has been on the
boards of various Tata companies and has been closely associated
with several Tata Non - Banking Financial Companies. Mr. Subedar

Experience superannuated from Tata Sons Private Limited ("Tata Sons”) as the

P Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Subedar also functioned as the Chief

Financial Officer and Company Secretary of Tata Sons. Mr. Subedar’s
association with Tatas spans over 36 years. He has also been the past
President of the Bombay Chamber of Commerce and Industry.,

Terms and

SEnCOEREr B To be re-appointed as Director, liable to retire by rotation

Appointment

Remuneration

(Proposed) Sitting Fees as approved by the Board from time to time.

(Rg:;\tjvr:sratmn Rs. 9,00,000/-as sitting fees for attending the Board meetings during
FY 2021-22

Date of First

Appointment May 21, 2015

Shareholding in

the Company NIL

Relationship with

other Directors None

Number of

Meetings of the 9 out of 9
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Other Directorship:

Directorships/

Chairman/Membe | 1- Tata Investment Corporation Limited.
rship in| 2- Tata Capital Limited.

committees of the | 3- Tata Capital Financial Services Limited.
Board 4- Tata Asset Management Private Limited.

5- Tata Industries Limited.
Chairmanship/Membership of Committees of the Board:

1- Tata Investment Corporation Limited:
i. Member of Audit Committee
ii. Chairperson of Stakeholders Relationship Committee
iii. Member of Investment Committee
iv. Chairperson of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

2. Tata Capital Limited:

i. Member of Audit Committee

ii. Member of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
iii. Member of Asset Liability Management Committee

3. Tata Capital Financial Services Limited:

i. Member of Audit Committee

ii. Chairperson of Stakeholders Relationship Committee

iii. Chairperson of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
iv. Member of IT Strategy Committee

v. Member of Working Committee

vi. Member of Risk Management Committee

4. Tata Asset Management Private Limited:
i. Member of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

5. Tata Industries Limited:

i. Member of Approvals Committee

ii. Member of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
iii. Chairperson of Asset Liability Management Committee

L L
CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300 By order of the Board
Place: Mumbai For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Date: August 25, 2022

Registered Office: '.") \ ‘ 0

E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam %:{\ .

Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033 Rashmi Jain
Company Secretary

(ICSI Membership No.: A18978)
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BOARD’'S REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present the Annuat Report of Tata Realty and Infrastructure
Limited (the “Company” or “TRIL") along with the audited financial statements for the
financial year ended March 31, 2022. The consolidated performance of the Company and its
subsidiaries has been referred to wherever required.

. Financial Results

Key highlights of standalone and consolidated financial performance for the year ended
March 31, 2022, are summarized as under:

(Rs. In Crores)

TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300
E Biock, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai — 400 033 India.

Tel. 91 22 6661 4444 Fax; 91 22 6661 4452 Website: www tatarealty.in

Standalone Consolidated

FY - 21-22 | FY-20-21 | FY - 21-22 | FY — 20-21
Revenue 127.01 124.49 1,324.59 1,200.56
Other income 283.30 168.00 493.08 40,91
Total income 410.31 292.49 1,817.67 1,241.47
Expenses
Operating expenditure 142.68 16993 | = 65443 728.02
Depreciation and
amortization expenses 212 217 303.33 209.34
Total Expenses 144.80 172.10 957.76 937.36
Profit before finance cost
and tax 26551 120.39 859.91 304.11
Finance cost 216,96 211.08 £88.62 600.58
Profit before tax (PBT) 48.55 (90.69) 171.29 (296.47)
Tax expense (53.79) (5.68) 88.38 6.86
Profit / (Loss) for the

.24 .
year (5.24) (96.37) 8291 (303.33)
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the
company B4t (96'37_)‘ (294.51)
Non-Contrelling Interest > - (8.82)
5 i :-,-’? :‘?}‘\\\
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Opening Balance of
retained earning
Profit/(Loss) for the Year (5.24) (96.37) 83.34 (294.51)
Other comprehensive
income / (losses)

Total comprehensive
income

Transferred from OCI to
Retained earnings on

(831.89) (735.52) | (1,652.50) | (1,357.99)

derecognition of equity 10.69 - . ]
instruments
C|051.n9 balance of retained (826.44) (831.89) | (1,569.16) | (1,652.50)
earnings

2. Dividend

In view of the loss incurred during the year under review, the Directors do not recommend
any dividend for the year 2021-22.

3. Transfer to Reserves
Your directors do not recommend transferring any funds fo reserves of the Company.
4. Company’s Performance

On a standalone basis, the revenue for FY 2021-22 was Rs. 127.01 crores, higher by 2%
over the previous year's revenue of Rs. 124.49 crores in FY 2020-21. The loss after tax
attributabte to shareholders for FY 2021-22 was Rs. 5.24 crores registering an increase of
95% over the loss after tax of Rs. 96.37 crores for FY 2020-21.

On a consolidated basis, the revenue for FY 2021-22 was Rs. 1,324.59 crores, higher by
10% over the previous year's revenue of Rs. 1,200.56 crores. The (Loss) / Gain attributable
to shareholders and non-controlling interests for FY 2021-22 and FY 2020-21 were Rs. 82.91
crores and Rs. (303.33) crores respectively. The gain attributable to sharehoiders for FY
2021-22 was Rs. 83.34 crores registering an increase of 128% over the Loss of Rs. (294.51)
crores for FY 2020.21.
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State of the Company’s Affairs:

TRIL, a wholly owned subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited, is in the domain of design,
development and management of commercial assets and few residential prajects. Since its
inception the Company has developed 17 mn. sg. ft. and has another ~16.7 mn. sq. ft. under
development and planning across 4 projects. Currently, the Company and its subsidiaries
own and operate 7.6 mn. sq. ft. of Commercial projects across 5 projects in 3 cities, out of
which 76% of the operational portfolio is SEZ. The Company has leveraged its expertise in
project management to develop over 6.7 mn. sq. ft. of office campuses for Tata Consultancy
Services (TCS). The Company has concluded 1.6 mn. sq. ft. of leasing (New & Renewals) in
FY 21-22.

. Subsidiary Companies

As on March 31, 2022, the Company has 22 subsidiaries, 1 associate and 4 joint venture
companies. Further, TRIL Bengaluru Consultants Private Limited {formerly known as TRIL
Bengaluru Real Estate Two Private Limited) has changed its object clause from development
of IT Parks, SEZ, real estate, infrastructural facilities and related activities to providing
manpower placement, consultancy, recruiting, training, hospitality services and services as
human resource managers. Apart from this, there has been no material change in the nature
of the business of the subsidiaries, associate entities and joint ventures.

During the year under review, the Company had acquired 183,150,183 Equity shares of Tata
Housing Development Company Limited ("THDC"). Accordingly, as on March 31, 2022, the
Company owns 33.53% of Equity Shares in THDC.

The Company also has acquired 74% stake of TRIL IT4 Private Limited from Actis Treit
Holdings No.2 (Singapore) Private Limited. Accordingly, TRIL IT4 Private Limited became
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

In November 2021, the Company had transferred 4,71,28,800, 0.001% Non-Cumulative,
Non-Redeemable, Compulsorily and Fully Convertible Preference Shares of TRIL Construction
Limited to Tata Consumer Products Limited. Accordingly, TRIL Construction Limited has
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company.

With respect to the scheme of amalgamation between TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects
Private Limited, Wellkept Facility Management Services Private Limited, MIA Infrastructure
Private Limited and Acme Living Solutions Private Limited with Tata Realty and Infrastructure
Limited and their respective members and creditors (1 April 2019 being the Appointed date)
filed with National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT"), Mumbai and with NCLT, Delhi,
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respectively. Further, the said scheme was approved by NCLT Delhi on 17 March 2022,
However, approval from NCLT Mumbai is awaited.

The Company has received the order for strike off and dissolved M/s. A & T Road
Construction Management and Operation Private Limited, a Joint Venture Company with
effect from January 28, 2022.

In November 2021, the Company has acguired 7,11,00,000 and 5,00,00,000 equity shares
of TRIL Infopark Limited from The Indian Hotels Company Limited and Tamil Nadu Industrial
Development Corporation Limited respectively. By virtue of this acquisition, TRIL Infopark
Limited became 100% subsidiary of the Company in November 2021.

The Company has also incorporated, one wholly owned subsidiary namely Infopark
Properties Limited on November 02, 2021. In June 2022, the Company subscribed
3,80,69,459 equity shares of Infopark Properties Limited on Rights basis.

Pursuant to Share Purchase Agreement between Company, Infopark Properties Limited and
TRIL Infopark Limited, the Company transferred 129,99,99,999 (99.99%) equity Shares of
TRIL Infopark Limited to Infopark Properties Limited effective June 27, 2022, The Company
continues to hold 1 (one) share in TRIL Infopark Limited.

Except as stated above, there were no other companies which have become or ceased to be
the subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies of the Company, during the vyear
under review.

Pursuant to the provisians of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act 2013 ("Act™), a statement
containing the salient features of financial statements of the Company’s subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture companies in Form ACC-1 is attached to the financial statements
of the Company.

. Update on NBFC matter:

The Company is exclusively engaged in the business of real estate and infrastructure
development (including purchase, construction or sale of immovable property, project
management consuitancy services and investment advisory services). These business
activities of the Company are mainly carried out through Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) in
the form of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. In carrying out such activities through
the SPVs, the Company funds the SPVs through a judicious mix of equity investments, loans
or advances basis the requirement of each of the entities.
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During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the investments in SPV constituted more
than 90% of Company’s total assets. Consequent to significant gains credited to the
Statement of Profit and Loss resulting from revaluation of the investments (issued by SPVs)
(in compliance with IndAS 109) at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss coupled with lower
residential sales has resulted in Operating income, primarily from sale of properties and
management fees, being less than 50 percent of the total income.

The principal business of the Company remains real estate and infrastructure development
(including purchase, construction or sale of immovable property, project management
consultancy services) within it's SPVs, which are excluded from the definition of “financial
institution” as per the provisions of Section 451 {c) of the RBI Act, 1934. Therefore, the
management is of the view that the Company would not fall within the definition of a non-
banking financial company as per the provisions of Section 451 (f) of the RBI Act, 1934. The
Company has communicated and has sought clarification from RBI on the applicability of
aforesaid provisions of RBIL Act 1934,

. Covid-19 Pandemic Situation — Update on Operations

Impact of the CoVID-19 pandemic on business:

The lockdowns and restrictions imposed on various activities due to ongoing Covid-19
pandemic continued to pose challenges to different aspects of the business during the year.

Through the second wave in Q1 and subsequent spikes in cases, our facility continued to
remain opéen to all tenants. As a precautionary measure, tenants primarily chose to work
from home partially / in a hybrid manner but continued to use resources on site like servers.
average occupancy staved below 6%,

As the situations normalized in second half of the year, many tenants decided to bring their
employees back with various hybrid work models while many of their employees continued
fo choose work from home for business operations. By the end of the year, there was
increased focus by occupiers to bring employees back in a phased manner. Occupancy levels
at our parks rose from below 8% in January 2022 to almost 14% in March 2022. Almost all
tenants have continued t¢ pay rentals including maintenance charges during the year, a
testament to and acknowledgement of all the efforts to provide services in these uncertain
times.

Due to increased vacancy in the commercial markets, many clients approached with
renegotiation requests and threat of vacating to realign their rentals as their leases were out
of lock-in period. Your Company had reviewed these requests on a case-by-case basis and
retained significant volume of such clients. The Company was also able to renew 100% of
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its portfolio tenants due for renewal during FY 21-22. Committed occupancy levels have been
sustained at 88% with minimal churn. Construction activities have aiso fully continued at all
sites.

Ability to maintain operations including the factories/units/office spaces
functioning:

Construction sites: Construction has since then stayed resilient during the subsequent Covid
waves of April 2021 and February 2022.

Commercial office spaces: Services were kept functioning during all restrictions by obtaining
necessary approvals & precautions, and uninterrupted access have been ensured to tenants
throughout the year.

Residential sales offices: On-site offices were reopened in an expedited manner as per local
guidelines during the covid waves, Currently, the sales offices are functioning with 100%
occupancy and following covid safety protocols.

Corporate offices: Precautionary and proactive work from home was encouraged during
covid waves. In the present scenario, offices are operational with 100% occupancy owing to
reduction of cases.

Steps taken to ensure smooth functioning of operations:

Clear SOPs continue to be implemented for construction activities and office complexes,
covering transport, social distancing, hygiene, and basic do’s & donts. Necessary
arrangements have been made to provide sanitizers, spare face masks, PPE kits etc. for all
personnel. Checklists are being adhered to and regular reports circulated to leadership
teams. Contingency measures are in place for any detected cases, in collaboration with
healthcare facility providers, Regular planning meetings helped in reacting to changing
sttuations and taking rapid decisions. With the start of vaccination, measures are being taken
to facilitate vaccination for on-site eligible labour. The Company undertook measures and
achieved WELL Health & Safety Rating issued by International WELL Building Institute (IWBI)
for its Commercial Office Operational Portfolio across Ramanujan Intellion Park, Chennai,
Intellion Edge, Gurgaon and Intellion Square, Mumbai to bring additional confidence to
tenants about our commitment to Wellness and Safety of their employees.

Regular sanitization and fumigation were carried out. For tenants, in close coordination with
3rd party estate management firms, innovative new technologies were installed like touch-
less sanitizers and access gates. For corporate staff, various steps like enabling remote IT
access enabled hybrid / partial work from home.
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Estimation of the future impact of CoVID-19 on operations:

The leasing operations have already rebounded and the outlook remains strong in its ability
to generate cash flows. There are several ongoing discussions with potential occupiers and
continued transaction closures across assets. The underlying demand drivers and thus long-
term outlook for commercial space uptake remains positive in India overall, and our micro-
markets specifically,

Steps taken to make workplaces and properties suitable, related to hygiene, automation,
configuration etc. will become permanent fixtures of the planning for any new project.
Finally, many companies have already moved back to offices, mitigating the impact of the
current trend of work-from-home,

Due to ongoing uncertainties in work environments, Hybrid Work Models and Flexible Space
Operators may continue to contribute as one of the key demand drivers for the medium
term.

Impact of CoVID-19 on capital and financial resources, profitability, liquidity
position, ability to service debt, assets and internal financial reporting and
control:

The Company has adequate liquidity in the form of cash and cash equivalents and undrawn
facilities. Given its well capitalised balance sheet and strong business profile, the Company
does not envisage any issues in raising additional funds during the year as and when
required.

The Company has sound internal control measures for all its processes and there has been
no impact on the internal financial reporting and controis of the Company.

Impact of CovVID-19 and Russia-Ukraine crisis on supply chain:

In continuation of increasing prices of cement in FY20-21, stee! prices also continued to
increase over the last year due to restricted supply chains within the country. When the
revival from pandemic was accelerating, the Russia-Ukraine war led to disruptions in supply
chain across the globe, with Russia and Ukraine cumulatively accounting for ~10% of global
steel trade. Stee! prices rise by 20% in India and is expected to rise further over next couple
of quarters before stabilizing again.
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Existing contracts/agreements where non-fulfilment of the obligations by any
party will have significant impact on the listed entity’s business:

The Company is well positioned to fulfil its obligations and does not foresee any significant
impact on the business due to non-fulfilment of the obligations by any party.

. Industry Outlook and Future Prospects:

Overview of Real Estate Sector in India:

The Indian economy with its sound fundamentals will remain a hot spot on the global map
in the 21st century, primarily driven by the attractive demographics of 1.3 billion population,
both from a supply and demand perspective. Younger population (median age in 2030 of
31.4 years v/s 40 years in US and 42 years in China) acts as a great talent pool and will be
the largest consumer segment. With ~10 million people migrating to cities every year, the
urban population will contribute 75% to the GDP by 2030.

All these factors will boost the demand for real estate in India across segments. By 203G,
India is likely to need 25 million affordable housing units to meet the urban population’s
demand. The growing economy will drive the demand for commercial and retail space.

As per India Brand Equity Foundaticn (IBEF), the contribution of real estate sector was
expected to increase from current 6% to 13% of GDP by 2025 and the sector was expected
to reach US$ 1 Trillion by 2030 from US$ 120 Billion in 2017 at an expected CAGR of 19.5%
- however the current economic downturn due to COVID 19 may push growth by 1-2 years.

Indian real estate is expected to attract a substantial amount of FDI over the next two years,
with US$ 8 billion capital infusion by FY22.

Commercial real estate:

After the historic heights of Calendar Year (CY) 2019, CY 2020 was a difficult year for
commercial office sector with uncertainty, hesitation and anxiety leading to muted activity.
In CY 2020, Gross leasing was 34.6 mn sq. f1.CY 2021 saw gross leasing of 39.8 mn sq. ft.
Bangalore remained the driving force of the pan-India transaction activity, closely followed
by Hyderabad and then Delhi-NCR. Together, these cities accounted for almost 70% of the
overall leasing activity. Supply addition in Q1 CY 2021 stood at 48.3 mn. sft., an increase of
25% from CY 2020. Hyderabad, Bangalore and Delhi-NCR led the supply addition, with the
three cities together accounting for more than 70% of the total supply.

Q4 FY21-22 saw an overall absorption of 11.5 mn. sft. which is an increase of 98% y-o-y.
The robust recovery in leasing was also reflected in Google Mebility trends with workplace
visitors in India rising by 24.5% in March 2022 as compared to Jan-Feb 2020. In addition to
growth driven by I[TeS/IT, BFSI, co-working, consulting and manufacturing, demand from
new sectors like data centres, e-commerce and technology will continue to rise. Posi_t_ Covid,
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India is expected to emerge stronger as preferred global outsourcing destination owing to
availability of low-cost, knowledgeable talent. This along with maturing REIT environment
and recently relaxed FDI norms will see many new companies planning foray into Indian
markefs.

REIT market opportunity is still significant and largely untapped in India. As of Aug 2019, US
REITs market capitalization was 96% of real estate market, 55% in Singapore and 51% in
Japan - in comparison, it was only 17% in India with only 3 listed REITs. Currently, top 7
cities of India have over 750 mn sq ft Grade A office supply, of which 340 - 360 million sq ft
is REIT-able. Regulatory environment has also evolved favorably over the last few years,

Covid has triggered the world’s largest remote working experiment, but despite companies
committing to continue 25-40% work-from-heme, long term impact likely to be 10-15%.
Tenant expectations and preferences have fundamentally shifted, with premium on
environment, health and wellness to ensure employee centricity. As occupiers lcok for more
flexible, cost-effective and on-demand spaces, they will place increased emphasis on flexible
lease terms as well as technology-enablement to boost productivity.

Residential real estate:

In FY22, more than 5 lakh units were sold across India with a ~23% growth in absorption
over the last financial year. Markets have already rebounded to higher leveis than pre-COVID,
with Q4 witnessing highest absorption in several years. More than 4 lakh units were launched
in FY22, an almost ~30% growth in new launches over last year. Pricing has increased by
5+% over the last financial year, Inventory overhang, ~17 months in Q4 FY22, is at one of
the lowest levels in several years. Real estate sentiment in India is at an all-time high since
the inception of Knight Frank’s index 8 years ago.

The move towards higher transparency and accountability has continued, evidenced by the
continued consolidation in the market towards reputed, trust-worthy developers with strong
processes and fiscal positions. Post-Covid, homebuyers’ expectations have fundamentally
shifted with homes emerging as ‘safe havens’ and ‘home offices’, leading to preference for
larger, digitally enabled, ready-to-move-in units overall. However, government’s policy push
to affordable housing with its efforts under Housing for All as well as infrastructure status
will continue to drive traction in the affordable housing segment as well.
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Regulation in the Sector:
The following regulatory reforms provided much needed stimulus to the real estate sector,
with some showing upfront benefits and others to have an impact in the near future:

o {orperate tax reduced from 30% to 22% excluding all cess and surcharges, for domestic
companies — will help boost companies’ investment abilities.

« Historical lowest home loan rates especially for the Affordable housing sector (under
PMAY scheme)

e RBI's loan EMI moratorium and liquidity measures for developers and consumers -
helped the sector deal with initial COVID-caused lockdown challenges

» Passage of policies like National E-commerce Policy & Personal Data Protection 8ill —
boost to localization of data and growth of Data Centre asset class

« Bxternal commercial borrowing relaxed for developers to obtain overseas funds

o Provision for reduction in minimum capitalisation for FDI investment from US $10 million
to US $5 million

s Section 10AA of the Income Tax Act, units in SEZs get a phased tax-holiday for a period
of 15 years; However, under the SEZ Sunset clause this benefit was availabte to only
those units that start operations before 31st March 2020

« GST on under-construction properties outside the affordable segment were revised to
5% with no Input Tax Credit (ITC) and 1% without ITC for affordable housing properties

+« The DESH policy, which is expected to replace current Special Economic Zones (SEZ)
Act, is expected to bring much needed respite to the SEZ sector and bring greater clarity
on the future of SEZs since the Sunset Clause implemented in 2020. The new policy is
expected to be tabled in the Monsoon Season of FY 22-23 in the Parliament.

*Sources: RBI Annual report, IBEF, Anarock, JLL, CBRE, PropEquity, Media reports, Press
articles

Infrastructure:

FY 2021-22 was the year in which the Company achieved significant milestones with the
declaration of Final Commercial Operations Date {COD) for its two road & Dharamshala
Ropeway projects besides Appointed Date (AD) for Pune Metro Line III. The Company
continues to explore exit opportunities in both Roads and Ropeways.

At the start of financial year, the country was reeling under the second deadly COVID
pandemic wave & despite the challenges including severe disruption in supply chains &
mobitisation of labour and extreme weather events, the Company completed construction of
Dharamshala Ropeway with all certifications from the Concessioning Authority. Further,
occupation certificates for both stations were received in record time. The Project was
inaugurated by Honorable Chief minister of Himachal Pradesh, Shri. Jayram Thakur during
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the third Covid wave in January 2022 in the presence of various dignitaries & officials of Tata
group. The Project has been receiving a good response despite opening during the lean
season. Toll revenues which were impacted in the last financial year due to COVID, have
returned to normalcy and some of the corridors have also seen better than expected traffic
growth.

In the coming financial year, the Dharamshala Ropeway project is expected to stabilise and
considerable construction activity for piles, pile caps and piers is likely to be completed for
Pune Metro Line Iil.

Lastly, there are clear signs that there would be increased impetus to development of
infrastructure, especially under the Parvatmala initiative for ropeways and large investment
requirernents in the ensuing years and the Company is well poised to participate in these
opportunities. In the coming year Company would also be focusing on completing
Jdeveloping its existing Projects and monetise its operational projects.

. Share Capital and Other Securities:

. Share Capital:

During the year under review, the Company has not issued and allotted any share capital.
As at March 31, 2022, the issued, subscribed and paid-up equity shares capital of the

Company stands at Rs.1617,30,76,920/- divided into 161,73,07,692 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
each.

. Debt Management:
As on March 31, 2022, the Company has outstanding debt of Rs. 4,080 Crore, an increase
of Rs. 1,035 Crore over March 31, 2021. The Company has raised additional debt for

repayment of existing debt and investment requirements.

The Company raises debt through various sources such as Non-Convertible Debentures,
Commercial Papers, Short term loans and Overdraft facilities and Inter-Corporate Deposits.
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C. Credit Ratings:

Your Company has been offering itself to be rated by rating agencies as per following:

Instrument RoHng Rating Amount Remarks
Agency
commercial | ypa ICRA Al+ 2 2200 crore Reaffirmed
Paper
{(Short term) CRISIL CRISIL Al+ ¥ 1800 crore Reaffirmed
CARE
. CARE A1+ ¥ 2200 crore Reaffirmed
Ratings
Egs;ertible o ICRA ~ AA ~ (Stable) e Re-affirmed
CRISIL CRISIL AA (stable) X 775 crore
Debenture
short. term | o
Bank Facilities . CARE A 1+ % 75 crore Re-affirmed
Ratings
- Fund Based
Short term
Bank Faciliti CARE
an actities . CARE A 1+ T 190 crore Re-affirmed
—  Non-Fund | Ratings
Based
Short term
Bank Facilities
~  MNon-fund | CARE CARE A 1+ ¥ 135 crore Re-affirmed
and Fund | Ratings
Based
{proposed)

10.Depository System

Your Company’s Equity Shares are in dematerialization (Demat) form done through National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). The International Securities Identification Number
(ISIN) assigned to the Equity Shares of the Company under the Depository System is
INE371K01016. In case of any guery, you may please get in touch with the Company or the
Registrar & Transfer Agent i.e. Kfin Technologies Limited, Address: Karvy Selenium Tower
B, Piot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad — 500 032, Phone:
+91 040 6716 2222 and +91 40 6716 1602. As on March 31, 2022, 100% of Equity Shares
of your Company were held in dematerialized form.
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11.Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established
and maintained by the Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory, cost and
secretarial auditors, including the audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by management and the relevant board
committees, including the audit committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s
internal financial controls were adequate and effective during FY 2021-22.

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge
and ability, confirm that:

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have
been foliowed and there are no material departures;

ii. They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and of the loss of the
Company for that period;

iii.  They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv,  They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v.  They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively;

vi. They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

12.Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The Company’s composition of Board is adequate blend of Executive, Non-executive and
Independent Directors. In addition to provisiocns of the Act the governance guidelines
adopted by the Board, set out the role and respensibility of the Board, composition of the
Board and code of conduct.
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The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Reguiations”) (as amended) became appiicable
to the Company with effect from September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until
March 31, 2023 and on a mandatory basis thereafter, pursuant to notification of SEBI {Listing
Obtigations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021. The
Company is in the process of identifying the Independent Directors and shall comply with
the Composition of Board of Directors in due course and other regulations of the Listing
Regulations.

As on March 31, 2022, Board of your Company consists of following Members:

Mr. Banmali Agrawala - Chairman and Non- Executive Director;

Mr. Sanjay Dutt - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer;

Mr. Farokh Subedar - Non- Executive Director;

Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal - Non- Executive Director;

Mrs, Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar — Non- Executive and Independent Director; and
Mr. Prabhakar Panda - Non- Executive and Independent Director

ISR

Mrs. Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar (DIN: 00021947} was appointed as Non-Executive Director
with effect from June 24, 2021. Further, the Board at its meeting held on March 22, 2022
after considering the professional knowledge and expertise, changed the designation of Mrs.
Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar from Non-Executive Director to Independent Director with effect
from March 22, 2022 for a term of 3 vears, subject to members’ approval.

During the year under review, the Board after considering the professional knowledge and
expertise, appointed Mr. Prabhakar Panda (DIN: 02860918) as Non-Executive and
Independent Director of the Company with effect from October 08, 2021 for a term of 3
years, subject to members’ approval. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors
possess the requisite expertise and experience and are persons of high integrity and repute.
They fulfill the conditions specified in the Act as well as the Rules made thereunder and are
independent of the management.

Pursuant to the regulation 17(1C) of the Listing Regulations, approval of shareholders was
required for appointment of a person on the Board or as @ manager at the next general
meeting or within a time period of three months from the date of appointment, whichever is
earlier. Accordingly, the members at its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on June 15,
2022, regularized and approved the appointment of Mrs. Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar and
Mr. Prabhakar Panda as Independent Directors of the Company for term of 3 years.
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Mr. Farckh Subedar, Director of the Company who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment. A resolution seeking shareholders’ approval for his re-
appeintment forms part of the Notice of ensuing Annual General Meeting (*AGM").

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the independent directors have
submitted declarations that each of them meets the criteria of independence as provided in
Section 149(6) of the Act along with Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of
the Listing Regulations. There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status
as independent directors of the Company. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of Listing
Regulations, they have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation
which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to
discharge their duties.

During the vear under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees and reimbursement of
expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board/Committees
of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of
the Company as on March 31, 2022 is Mr. Sanjay Dutt, MD & CEG of the Company (appointed
with effect from April 01, 2018 for a period of 5 years). The details of KMP's appointed and
resigned during the period are mentioned below:

Sr. | Name of KMP's Designation Appointment/ | Date
No. Resignation
i Mr. Sanjay Sharma | Chief Financial Officer | Resignation December 01,
2021
2 Mr. Sudhakar Compaﬁy Secretary Resignation March 31, 2022
Shetty
3 Ms. Rashmi Jain Company Secretary Appointment April 01, 2022

Note: Mr. Aravind Maiya is appointed as the Chief Financial Officer and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
effective from June 1, 2022, For the interim period, Mr. Bhavesh Madeka was appointed as the Interim Chief
Financiat Officer and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company from May 10, 2022 untlf the dlose of business
hours of May 31, 2022.

13.Number of Meetings of the Board

There were 9 (nine) meetings of the Board, held during the year under review. The said
meetings were held on May 24, 2021, June 17, 2021, July 23, 2021, September 17, 2021,
September 30, 2021, October 28, 2021, November 12, 2021, February 14, 2022 and March
22, 2022. Details of the Directors’ attendance are given herein below:
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Name of the Board Member ) Board Meeting Attendance
Mr. Banmali Agrawala 9outof 9
Mr. Sanjay Dutt 9outof 9
Mr. Farokh Subedar 9 out of 9
Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal 9out of 9
Mrs. Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar 7 outof 7
Mr. Prabhakar Panda 4 out of 4

14.Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance and
individual directors including Chairman pursuant to the provisions of the Act.

The performance of the board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the
directors on the basis of criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness
of board processes, information and functioning, etc.

The Board reviewed the performance of individual directors on the basis of criteria such as
the contribution of the individual director to the board like preparedness on the issues to be
discussed, meaningful and constructive confribution and inputs in meetings, eftc.

The above criteria are broadly based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017.

The Independent Directors held a separate meeting of independent directors on March 30,
2022, for FY 21-22 and shared their views for evaluation amongst themselves over the
performance of non-independent directors, the board as a whole and the Chairman of the
Company, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors.

15.Dissolution of the Committees

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("“MCA™) on 19th February, 2021 has notified the
amendments to the Companies (Specification of definitions details) Rules, 2014, pursuant to
which from April 01, 2021, the Debt Listed Companies shall not be considered as listed
companies as the provisions of Act, read along with Rules framed thereunder, Accordingly,
as per the aforesaid requirement, the Company being a Debt Listed Public Company and
wholly owned subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited was not required to appoint
Independent Directors on Board and re-constitute the Audit Committee and Nomination and
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Remuneration Committee of the Company w.e.f. Aprii 01, 2021. Further, all the duties
reposed on Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be
discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company.

The MCA on January 22, 2021, also notified the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020,
pursuant to which Section 135(9) was inserted, wherein if the amount required fo te spent
by a company as CSR Expenditure does not exceed fifty lakh rupees, the requirement for
constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall not be applicable and the
functions of CSR Committee provided under this section shall, in such cases, be discharged
by the Board of Directors of the company.

Considering the aforesaid relaxation provided by MCA, the Board at its meeting held on May
24, 2021, dissotved the following committees of the Company with effect from April 01, 2021:

1-  Audit Committes;
2- Nomination and Remuneration Committee; and
3-  Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters
provided in Section 178(3) of the Act has been annexed to this repert at “Annexure A” and
is also available on www.tatareaity.in. The said policy had been amended by the present
Nomination and Remuneration Committee with effect from May 28, 2022 fo meet the
additional requirement of Regulation 19, read along with Schedule 1I of the Listing
Regulations.

16.Constitution of various Committees:

Owing to amendment to the Listing Regulations issued by SEBI dated September 07, 2021,
the Company was classified as High Debt Listed Company, having listed NCD’s of more than
Rs.500 Crore and the Chairman of the Board, also being related to Promoter Group.

Accordingly, to comply with the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors
at its meeting held on March 22, 2022, constituted following committees with effect from
April 01, 2022:
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a- Audif Committee:

Sr. Name of Committee member Designation
No. )
1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson
2 Mr. Prabhakar Panda Member
3 Mr. Farokh Subedar Member
b- Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
Sr. Name of Committee member Designation
No
1 | Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson
2 Mr. Banmali Agrawala Member
3 Mr. Farokh Subedar Member
c- Stakeholder Relationship Committee:
Sr. Name of Committee member Designation
No.
i Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson
2 Mr. Sanjay Dutt Member
3 Mr. Prabhakar Panda Member
d- Risk Management Committee:
Sr. Name of Committee member Designation
No.|
1 Mr. Farokh Subedar Chairman
2 | Mr. Sanjay Dutt Member
3 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Member

17.Corporate Socia! Responsibility

The brief outfine of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company is set
out as in Annexure C. However, owing to the losses as per the calculation of net profit under
Section 198 of the Act, no contribution was made during the year under review towards CSR
activities. The disclosures as reguired under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 are set out in Annexure D of this report.
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During the year under review, the said policy was maodified to include “Education” as thrust
area in the Policy. The CSR policy is available on website of the Company i.e.
www . tatarealty.in.

18.Internal Financial Control Systems and their Adequacy

Based on the framework of internal financial contrels and compliance systems established
and maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial
auditors and external consultants and the reviews performed by management, the Board is
of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, During the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable
material weakness in the design or cperation was observed. In the opinion of the Auditors
of the Company, there exist an adeguate internal control procedure commensurate with the
size of the Company.

19.Auditors

Pursuant to section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Shareholders of the Company
at their Tenth Annual General Meeting {"AGM™) held on August 24, 2017, had appointed M/s.
Delgitte Huskins and Sells LP, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company for a term of 5 years commencing till the conclusion of fifteenth AGM of the
Company to be held in the year 2022. The term of M/s. Deloitte Haskins and Sells, LLP,
Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors, would expire at ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Accordingly, the Company has received a willingness and eligibility letter from M/s. BSR &
Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No.:101248W/W-100022) to be
appointed as statutory auditors of the Company. The Board, by passing a resolution at its
meeting held on August 10, 2022, had recommended to the members, appointment of
M/s. B S R & Co. LLP, as statutory auditors of the Company for 5 years from the conclusion
of Fifteen AGM till the conclusion of Twentieth AGM of the Company to be held in the year
2027.

A resolution seeking shareholders’ approval for the appointment of M/s. BS R & Co. LLP as
Statutory Auditors of the Company forms part of the AGM Notice.
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20.Auditor’'s Report and Secretarial Audit Report

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by M/s
Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Statutory Auditors of the Company, in their Reports on the
Financial Statements of the Company for FY 2021-22.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appoeintment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had appointed
Mis. D. A. Kamat & Co, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice, to undertake the
Secretarial Audit of the Company for FY 2021-22. The Secretarial Audit Report, in the
prescribed Form No. MR-3, is annexed as Annexure ‘B’. There are no gualifications,
reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by M/s. D. A. Kamat & Co in their
Secretarial Audit Report, on the Secretarial and other related records of the Company, for
FY 2021-22.

21.Risk Management

The Company is governed by the Risk Management Charter and Policy Documents. An
integrated Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Charter & Policy has been developed with the
objective of establishing a common understanding and methodology for identifying,
assessing, responding, monitoring and reporting to provide management, the board of
directors with the assurance that key risks are being effectively managed. As per the said
Policy, a Risk Management Steering Committee ('RMSC") comprising of MD & CEQ and
Functional Heads has been formed. The charter and policies provide the overall framework
for Risk Management process which inciudes risk identification, assessment, evaluation,
treatment and other related process. The RMSC is the Apex Committee in the RM
Organization structure comprising of key decision makers within the Organization. It is
responsible for adopting and implementing the RM Framework across the Organization. They
are charged with the responsibility of taking decisions to manage the risks and also report
about various initiatives to the Board / Audit Committee and other stakeholders on a regular
basis.

Based on said ERM framework, the risks identified by the Company are reviewed by the
executive team comprising of employees of the Company including the top management.
Risk identification is @ continual process and appropriate mitigation plans are deployed as
required. All the risks are evaluated on the count of occurrence and impact. Based on the
risk ranking, high risk areas are identified and presented to the Audit Committee.

In order to comply with the provisions of the Listing Reguiations, the Beoard of Directors at
its meeting held on March 22, 2022, constituted Risk Management Committee with effect
from April 01, 2022.
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22.Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Your Company falls within the scope of the definition “infrastructure company” as provided
by the Act. Accordingly, the Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 186 of the
Act (except Section 186(1) of the Act) with regard to Loans, Guarantees and Investments.

23.Related Party Transactions

In line with the requirements of the Act, the Company has formulated a Policy on Related
Party Transactions (Policy), t0 ensure due and proper compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Act. The said Policy also provides guidance for entering into transactions
with related parties to ensure that a proper procedure is defined and followed for approval
/ ratification and reporting of transactions as applicable, between the Company and its
related parties.

During the year under review, all contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by
the Company during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm’s length basis and did not attract the provisions of Section 188 (1)
of the Act. Given that all the transactions entered by the Company during the year under
review were at arm’s length the Company and in the ordinary course of business and that
none of the transactions were material in nature, the disclosure of related party transactions
as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act in Form No. AOC-2 is not applicable to the
Company for financial year 2021-22 and hence does not form part of this report.

Further, the said policy has been modified by the Audit Committee with effect from May 28,
2022 to meet the additional requirement of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, which
were made applicable to the Company with effect from June 15, 2022.

24.Annual Return
As per the requirements of Section 92(3} and 134(3)(a) of the Act and Rules framed

thereunder, the annual return for FY 2021-22 in the prescribed Form No. MGT-7 shall also
be placed con the website of the Company at www.tatarealty.in.
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25.Particulars of Employees

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs on February 19, 2021, had notified the amendments to the
Companies (Specification of definitions details) Ruies, 2014, pursuant to the which the
Company will not be considered as Listed Company as per the provisions of the Act, read
along with Rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, the disclosure pertaining to remuneration
and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appeintment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 will not
be applicable to the Company during the year under review.

26.Disclosure Requirements

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

27.Deposits from Public

During the year under the review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from public
and as such, no amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was
outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet.

28.Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Act, read with the Rule 8(3)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in the “"Annexure E” to this report.

29.Cost Auditors

Your Board has appointed M/s. Kishore Bhatia & Asscciates, (Firm Registration No 00294),
Practicing Cost Accountant as Cost Auditors of the Company for conducting cost audit for
the FY 21-22. A resolution seeking ratification of the members for the remuneration payable
to the Cost Auditors for FY 2022-23 is provided in the Notice to the ensuing AGM.

As required under Rule 8 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company confirms
that it has prepared and maintained cost records as specified by the Central Government
under of Section 148(1) of the Act for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.
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30.Details of significant and material orders passed hy the Regulator or Courts or
Tribunals impacting the Going Concern Status and Company’s Qperations in
Future

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by any
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company’s
operations in future.

31.Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Company and to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report

The Company has enfered into a Joint Venture arrangement with Canada Pension Plan
Investment Board ("CPP Investments”) to develop and own commercial office space across
India. The joint venture will target stabilized and development assets, aiming to reach over
INR 50 billion {C$800 million) in assets under management. The joint venture will be seeded
with two assets, Intellion Park Chennai and Intellion Edge Gurgaon, National Capital Region
of Delhi which are currentlty owned and managed by TRIL.

Pursuant to the said arrangement, the Company has executed a Securities Subscription and
Purchase Agreement (SSPA) with CPP Investment Board Private Holdings (4) Inc ("CPP
Investment”) and amongst others dated April 8, 2022, as amended from time to time.
Accordingly, the Company had divested 24.5% stake in Arrow Infraestate Private Limited,
Gurgaon Construct Well Private Limited and Gurgaon Realtech Limited, subsidiaries of the
Company, in favour of CPP Investment. Also, Infopark Properties Limited had issued
3,65,86,147 equity shares to CPP Investment representing 49% stake in the Infopark
Properties Limited. Accordingly, the Company holds 51% in Infopark Properties Limited,
making Infopark Properties Limited as Joint Venture Company of the Company.

32.Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a
policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at workplace in line
with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules framed thére under for Prevention and
Redressal of complaints of Sexual Harassment at workplace.
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Prevention of Sexual Harassment Committee (POSH) (“Internal Complaints Committee") is
in place as per the policy and provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal} Act, 2013. There were no complaints relating to
sexual harassment, pending at the beginning of financial year, received during the year and
pending as on the end of the Financial Year 2021-22.

33.Vigil Mechanism

The Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism Policy ("the Policy™), under Section 177 of the
Act with a view to provide a mechanism for employees and Directors of the Company to
approach the Ethics Counsellor to ensure adequate safeguards against victimisation. This
policy is also placed on the website of the Company at www.tatarealty.in and would help to
create an environment where individuals feel free and secure to raise an alarm where they
see a problem. It will also ensure that complainant(s) are protected from retribution, whether
within or outside the organization and makes provision far direct access to the chairperson of
the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. We confirm that during the financial
year 2021-2022, no employee of the Company was denied access to the Chairman of the
Board. Further, no Whistle-blower complaint was received by the Company during the FY 21-
22.

34.Corporate Governance Report

The Corporate Governance Report, with the Practicing Company Secretaries’ Certificate
thereon, for the year under review prepared in accordance with the Part C of Schedule V of
the Listing Regulations, forms part of this Annuat Report as “Annexure F”.

35.General

During the year under review, no fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit
Committee or the Board. There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.
There has been no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Further, there has been no details, which shall be required to be
given as regard to difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions
along with the reasons thereof, as no such events have occurred,
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By order of the Board of Directors
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

l{,\f\,\/\/\&.ﬂ/\ 2
Banmali Agrawala

Chairman
DIN: 00120029

Date: August 24, 2022
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure F - Corporate Governance Report
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Annexure A

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER
EMPLOYEES

[Pursuant to Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 read along
with Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations]

The remuneration policy of the company is designed to create a high performance culture and is in
alignment to the core values of Tata Group. This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Human
Resources, Nomination and Remuneration Committee for recommending to the Board the
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees of the Company.

The remuneration philosophy is aimed to provide market competitive remuneration to our executives
and employees, in order to attract and retain the most talented and qualified individual to the
company.

The remuneration policy recognises the size, scope and complexity of the company and the role,
the market standing, skills and experience, Company’s capacity to pay in compliance to pay related
regulatory compliance requirements.

This remuneration policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section L78(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule II of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“Listing Regulations”). In case of any inconsistency between the provisions of law and this
remuneration policy, the provisions of the law shall prevail and the Company shall abide by the
applicable law.

While formulating this policy, the Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee ("NRC") has considered
the factors laid down under Section 178(4) of the Act, which are as under:

“(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;

(b) relationship of remuneration to perfermance is ciear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

{c) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate
to the working of the company and its goals”
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Key principles governing this remuneration policy are as follows:

A. Remuneration for independent directors and non-independent non- executive
directors

(i) Independent directors ("ID") and non-independent nonexecutive directors (*"NED”) may be paid
sitting fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and of committees of which they may be
members) and commission within regulatory limits.

(Ii) Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission will be
recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board.

(i) Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission} should be reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate directors aligned to the requirements of the Company (taking into
consideration the challenges faced by the Company and its future growth imperatives).

(iv) Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to review on a pericdic basis, as required.

(v) The aggregate commission payable to all the NEDs and IDs will be recommended by the NRC to
the Board based on Company performance, profits, return to investors, shareholder value creation
and any other significant qualitative parameters as may be decided by the Board.

(vi) The NRC will recommend to the Board the quantum of commission for each director based upon
the outcome of the evaluation process which is driven by various factors including attendance and
time spent in the Board and committee meetings, individual contributions at the meetings and
contributions made by directors other than in meetings.

(vii) In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the Company may pay to any director such fair
and reasonable expenditure, as may have been incurred by the director while performing his/her
role as a director of the Company. This could include reascnable expenditure incurred by the director
for attending Board / Board committee meetings, general meetings, court convened meetings,
meetings with shareholders / creditors / management, site visits, induction and training (organized
by the Company for directors} and in obtaining professional advice from independent advisors in the
furtherance of his/her duties as a director.

B. Remuneration payable to Director for services rendered in other capacity
The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable for
services rendered by such director in any other capacity, unless:
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(i) The services rendered are of a professional nature; and
(ii) The NRC is of the opinion that the director possesses requisite qualification for the practice of
the profession.

C. Remuneration for Managing Director (“"MD") Executive Directors (“"ED'") and Key
Management Personnel ("KMP")

In accordance with the policy, the Managing Director, Executive Director, KMPs, Senior Management
and employees are paid fixed salary which includes basic salary, allowances, perquisites and other
benefits. Remuneration also covers contribution towards social security benefits / retirement benefits
in accordance with statutory provisions as applicable.

In addition to above, they may also earn annual incentive remuneration / performance linked
incentive / annual performance linked bonus subject to achievement of certain defined qualitative
and quantitative performance criteria and such other parameters as may be considered appropriate
from time to time by the NRC and the Board. The performance linked incentive is driven by the
outcome of the performance appraisal process and the performance of the Company.

Remuneration of MD/ED is as per the contract approved by the shareholders. In case of
any change, the same would require the approval of the shareholders.

The NRC may recommend and provide MD/EDs such remuneration by way of commission, calcuiated
with reference to the net profits of the Company in a particular financial year, as may be determined
by the Board, subject to the overall ceilings stipulated in Section 197 of the Act. The specific amount
payable to the MD/EDs would be based on performance as evaluated by the Board or the NRC and
approved by the Board.

D. Remuneration for other employees

The poficy relating to employees would be as per the remuneration policy of the company as
approved by the Managing Director in consultation with the Head of HR within the overall framework
of above remuneration phifesophy and guidelines.

Exclusion

Excludes employees covered by any long term settlements or specific term contracts. The
remuneration for these employees would be driven by the respective long term

settlements or contracts.




W

TATA

Policy implementation
The NRC is responsible for recommending the remuneration policy to the Board. The Board is
responsible for approving and overseeing implementation of the remuneration policy.

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Sanjay Dutt
Managing Director & CEQ
DIN: 05251670

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Banmali Agrawala W

Chairman
DIN: 00120028

Date: August 24, 2022
Piace: Mumbai
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To,

The Members,

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited,

E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg,
Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400033.

Subject: Secretarial Audit Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22

We present herewith the Secretarial Audit Report for Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited, for
the Financial Year 2021-22 in terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur report of
even date is to be read along with the following:

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Qur examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

S
9 Firm Reg. No.
P 2002 MH045900

MUMBAI

QOur Offices:
Head Office:

A /308, Royal Sands, Shastri Nagar, Andheri Branch Office:
{West), Mumbai 400 053 B/ 208, Shreedham Classic, S V Road, Goregaon
Email: office@csdakamat.com (West), Mumbai 400 104

Tel: +91- 2029661169/ 7208023169
Page | 1
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6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the company.

7 Firm Reg. No. ™ |\
Place: Mumbai <* \ /7200 f‘":""?."'f"sgl‘w /{c-\'!
Date: 10" August, 2022 &‘xi_iifj‘ '?\«‘i(/”z"/
_ANVY SECREZA Y/
“Signature: g

Name of the Firm: D. A. Kamat & Co
D. A. Kamat, Partner

FCS No. 3843

CP No: 4965

UDIN: FO03843D000776219

P.R. No.: 1714/2022

Our Offices:

Head Office:

AS308, Royal Sands, Shastri Nagar, Andheri Branch Office:

{West), Mumbai 400 053 B/ 208, Shreedham Classic, 5 V Road, Goregaon
Email: office@csdakamat.com (West), Mumbai 400 104

Tel: +91- 9029661169/ 7208023169
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FORM NO MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 15T APRIL, 2021 to 315T MARCH, 2022
[Pursuant to Section 204{1) of the Companies Act 2013 and rule No.9 of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited,
Mumbai

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
(hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial audit was conducted in 2 manner that provided
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute baoks, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of the
secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and there presentations made by
the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company
has during the audit period covering Financial Year from 1% April, 2021 to 315 March, 2022,
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafter:

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by the Company. Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Our Offices:
Head Office:
A /308, Roval Sands, Shastri Nagar, Andheri Branch Office:
(West), Mumbai 400 053 B/ 208, Shreedham Classic, S V Road, Goregaon
Email: office@csdakamat.com (West), Mumbai 400 104

Tel: +91- 2029661169/ 7208023169

Page | 3
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We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, reports issued
by various fellow professionals and other applicable records and registers and maintained

by the Company for the Financial Year from 15 April, 2021 to 31% March, 2022 according to
the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under

2. The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992; (As applicable to Debt Listed Entity)

3. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (As applicable to Debt Listed Entity)

4. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; (As applicable to Debt Listed Entity)

5. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; (As applicable to Debt Listed Entity)

6. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993;

7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above to the extent stated in this Report.

Our Offices:
Head Office:

Il. Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed are not applicable to
the Company, for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 under report:-

1. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

2. The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992.

3. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

4. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Dehstmg of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
and

5. The Securitie aex% E'xch.»ange Board {Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
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lIl. We have reviewed the information, documents, records, filings and other certificates
or confirmations received from fellow professionals for the period under review and the
representations made by the company and its officers on the systems, records and
compliances under other laws applicable to the Company. The list of major laws and
acts applicable to the company are stated in Annexure | to this Report.

IV. We have examined the compliances of the applicable provisions of Secretarial
Standards, | and Il issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries, India and notified by
the MCA u/s 118(10) as issued under the Companies Act, 2013.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the year under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act. The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) became
applicable to the Company with effect from September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply or explain’ basis
until March 31, 2023 and on a mandatory basis thereafter, pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021. The Company
shall take further steps to comply with the requirements pertaining to Composition of Board of
Directors and other regulations of the Listing Regulations.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

We further report that during the year under report, the Company has undertaken following
events/ action having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above viz.

1. During the year under review there has been following Changes in the Compaosition of the
Board of lerr___wcto : e Company.

Our Offices:

Head Office: . Ao 1
A/308, Roval 52 @q\ QLP( ’fm’ Aridheri Branch Office:
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(West), Mumbai —10(} ﬁﬁ:::::"-f' ’
Email: office@csdakamat.com (West), Mumbai 400 104
Tel: +91- 9029601169/ 7208023169
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e The Board through Circular Resolution dated 13" October, 2021, has approved the
appointment of Mr. Prabhakar Panda as Additional, Independent Director of the
Company, with effect from 8" Qctober, 2021.

¢ Appointment of Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar as Additional (Woman) Director with
effect from 24th June, 2021 subject to member’s approval in the General Meeting.
in the Annual General Meeting held on 21% July, 2022 the Designation of Mrs.
Sandhya Kudtarkar has been changed from Additional Director to Non-Executive
Director. On Board Meeting held on 22" March, 2022 the designation was further
changed to Independent Director.

s Resignation of Mr. Sanjay Sharma as a Chief Financial Officer and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company with effect from 01% December, 2021.

e Resignation of Mr. Sudhakar Shetty as a Company Secretary and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company with effect from 01 April, 2022.

» Appointment of Mrs. Rashmi Jain as a Company Secretary and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company with effect from Q1% April, 2022.

2. The Company on Board Meeting held on 24™ May, 2021 has reset the Rate of Interest of
Non-Convertible Debentures, Series X amounting to Rs. 195 Crore (Rupees One Hundred
Ninety Five Crore Only) from existing 9% to 6.40% p.a. and the debentures holders has
consented for the same.

3. The Company has issued 3250 Unsecured, Redeemable, Non-convertible Debentures
{NCD) on Private Placement Basis on the following date. These securities were listed on

BSE Limited.
Date of issue Amount (Rs.)
: s
17”1June 2021 e 325,00,00,000/-
/mﬂAT & \\\_
C)_,r/'— _‘ U
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4, The Company proposes to dilute upto 49% of its equity stake in TRIL Infopark Limited.

Canada Pension Plan Investment Board (CPPIB) wishes to invest in completed commercial
real estate projects of TRIL Group and has signed the term sheet accordingly.

For that Purpose Company in its Board Meeting held on 17 September, 2021 has
approved to incorporate the Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) for a stake sale by TRIL for the
proposed Investment by Investor.

The Company has approved Investment in TRIL Infopark Ltd for RITC Project and Arrow

Infrastate Private Limited, Gurgaon Realtech Limited, Gurgaon Construct Well Limited for
TCG project.

On 30" September, 2021, the Board has approved the acquisition of Equity Shares of TRIL
Infopark Limited held by Tamilnadu Industrial Development Corporation Ltd (TIDCO).

The Board of Directors has granted approval for Sale of Compulsory Convertible
Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 22,87,00,000 Crores (Rupees Twenty Two Crores Eighty
Seven Lakh Only) held by the Company of TRIL Constructions Ltd (TCL) to Tata Consumer
Products Limited (TCPL).

During the year under review the Company has approved the Investment Limits including
Additional Investment through Equity shares for projects in Tata Housing Development
Company Limited for Rs. 500 crore.

The Company is in the process of Amalgamation between MIA Infrastructure Private
Limited, Wellkept Facility Management Services Private Limited, Acme Living Solutions
Private Limited and TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited (“Transferors
Company”) and Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited {“Transferee Company”). For that
matter, during the year under review National Company Law Tribunal has conducted two
Meetings between Unsecured Creditors and Company and between Shareholders and
Company which held on 26 July 2021.

Firm Reg. No.

* (* p 2002 MH045900

A/308, Royal Sands, Shastri Nagar, Andheri Branch Office:
(West), Mumbai 400 053 B/ 208, Shreedham Classic, S V Road, Goregaon
Email: office@csdakamat.com (West), Mumbai 400 104

Tel: +91- 9029661169/ 7208023169
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
Compliance with applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10% August, 2022

/" Firm Reg. No.
P 2002 WMHD45800
MUMBAI

Head Office:

A/308, Royal Sands, Shastri Nagar, Andheri
(West), Mumbai 400 053

Email: office@csdakamat.com

Signature: |
Name of the Firm: D. A. Kamat & Co
D. A. Kamat, Partner

FCS No. 3843

CP No: 4965

UDIN: FO03843D000776219

P.R. No.: 1714/2022

Branch Office:

B/ 208, Shreedham Classic, S V Road, Goregaon
(West), Mumbai 400 104

Tel: +91- 9029661169/ 7208023169
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Annexure | - List of other Acts specifically applicable to the Company

Registered Office: Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited.
E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg,
Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400033

Major Acts applicable to the Company: Based on the list of other statutes provided by the
Company, taking into consideration the nature of business, the following list of Major Acts are
applicable to the Company.

a) Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

b) The Maternity Benefit Act,1961

c) Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

d) Acts as prescribed under the Direct Taxes and Indirect Taxes

e) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

f) Maharashtra Shops and Establishments Act 2017

g) Employees Superannuation Scheme

h) Hazardous Waste (Management, Handling And Trans boundary Movement) Rules, 2008
i) Local laws as applicable to various offices of the Company

Flrm Reg. No.

\} 2, P 2002 MH045200
e =T MUMBAL
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Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
Annexure "C"

1. PREAMBLE:

At TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED ("TRIL” or “the Company™), we are
committed to Tata Group’s vision of Integrating environmental, social and ethical principles into
the core business, thereby improving the quality of life of the communities we serve and
enhancing long-term stakeholder value. At TRIL, we are sensitive and concerned about the
communities and region we are operating. Thus believing that through sustainable measures,
we would actively contribute to the Social, Economic and Environmental Development of the
Community.

2. CSR VISION AND MISSION:

The Company recognizes its responsibility towards the society and contributes significantly
towards the betterment of the local communities it serves.

We believe in creating value for the community we work and empowering our stakeholders by
touching the lives of one lakh people by 2025. The said vision- mission is proposed to be achieved
by implementing CSR programs in the key areas of Livelihood and Skill development, Healthcare,
Environment protection, Sccial development and relief.

Activities undertaken in the past:

The Company and its subsidiaries have a wide geographical stretch covering throughout the
nation and has voluntarily initiated numerous CSR activities during its recent past like;

Health:

- Organizing awareness sessions on health and hygiene, free health check-ups and blood
donation camps in and around the project site.

- Installation of water purification plants at schools near project sites.

- Rural development programs like support on providing a garbage vehicle and providing
ambulance support.

Environment Protection:

- Undertaking plantation drives within the communities and schools te bring about an
awareness on environmental issues and creating balance ecosystem.

Livelihood:
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- Entrepreneurship Development program (EDP) for socio-economically backward youth
involved in the construction sector.

- Skill development program for the construction workers.

- An onsite welfare facilitation program for construction workers to improve access to secial
protection schemes.

- Working towards women empowerment by introducing scholarship program for girls coming
from socio-economicaily challenged backgrounds.

Education:
Supporting educaticnal institutes and universities in the conducting academic research.

Social Development and Relief:

- Support to Informat Workers of Urban Areas to Combat Covid-19.
- Support on improving medical infrastructure as a response to the Covid- 19 crises in the
nation.

. DEFINITION - CSR POLICY:

This CSR Policy is a statement containing the approach and direction given by the Board of a
company, taking into account the recommendations of the CSR Committee, and includes guiding
principles for selection, implementation and monitoring of activities as well as formulation of the
annual action plan.

. OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY:

- Define the operational framework and to provide a pathway for undertaking CSR initiatives
for the company.
The Policy sets out the rules that need to be adhered to while taking up and implementing
CSR activities.

- To lay down effective guidelines in carrying out CSR programs by aligning them to the areas
mentioned under the schedule 7 of companies Act 2013 and contribute efforts towards
meeting larger SDGs (Sustainable Development Goals) 2030,

The Company shall timely ensure appropriate utilization of contribution viz financial and human
resources to the benefit of the community at large.

. CSR THRUST AREAS AND FRAMEWORK:

The programs designed towards integrating wider perspectives of SDGs 2030 will reflect on
doing a responsible business and invest in Social good.
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The CSR Framework developed for the next 3 years, focuses on the following areas of
intervention, which are in line with Schedule VII of Companies Act 2013 and beyond business

as usuval,
| LIVELIHOOD | HEALTHCARE | ENVIRONMENT | EDUCATION SOCIAL
(Under Schedule PROTECTION DEVELOPMENT
7, point no. IT and | (Under Schedule (Under AND RELIEF
$DG 1, 8 10) 7, point no. I (Under Schedule Schedule 7, (Under
and SDG 3, 6) | 7, pointno. IT and | point no. I Schedule 7,
SDG 11, 13) Promoting point no.
Education) VII/XII and
Qualifying
overall SDGs
and Schedule
vII)
- Enhancing skill | - Designing and |- Focusing on Promoting - Special
for implementing projects that education, projects to be
employability. awareness have sustainable benefiting undertaken
Supporting campaigns long-term impact the basis
entrepreneurship around and that marginalized immediate
development. sanitation and promotes use of and need and
- E.g. Upskilling hygiene renewable enhancing thereby
and reviving of practices. energy and their fuifilling the
Bamboo crafts in | - Addressing recycling. capabilities objectives of
West Bengal, vital hezlth - Enhancing for the policy.
facilitating social issues in the biodiversity, improving - Engaging
security schemes marginalized natural resource living with
to construction communities. management standards communities
and migratory - E.g. Regular and mitigation of and better affected by
workers by Health climate change guality  of natural
enabling their awareness impacts. jife. disasters,
registration session for E.g. Water Body E.g. while
under Building Construction Restoration in Scholarships meaningfully
and other labors and the Rural outskirts of for girls. responding
construction communities Chennai and towards
workers around. Solid waste strengthening
(BOCW). Management their
project in resilience.
Bangalore-Rural. - E.g. Covid
relief

initiatives.
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6. COMPOSITION OF THE CSR COMMITTEE:

The Committee shall be constituted with following members only if the CSR expenditure amount

to be spent by a company exceeds fifty lakh rupees:

1) With minimum three directors of which at least one directer shall be an Independent Director
from the Board of the Company; or

2) With minimum two directors from the Board of the Company, in case the company is not
required to appoint an independent director under sub-section (4) of section 149 of the
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”).

If the CSR committee is not required to be constituted by the Company as per provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Responsibility of CSR Committee as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, be discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Mandate of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

As per provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 {as amended), the CSR Committee

shall:

Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall
indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company in the areas or subject specified in
Schedule VII,;
Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities;
Monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time;
To formulate and recommend to the Board an Annual Action Plan in pursuance of the CSR policy,
which shall include the following, namely:-
a) the list of CSR projects or programs that are approved t0 be undertaken in areas or
subjects specified in Schedule VII of the Act,
b) the manner of execution of such projects or programs,
¢) the modalities of utilization of funds and implementation schedules for the projects
or programs,
d) monitoring and reporting mechanism for the projects or programs, and
e) details of need and impact assessment, if any, for the projects undertaken by the
company
Any other matter, which may be considered appropriate by the Committee for furtherance of
Company’s CSR activities.

ADDITIONAL MANDATE:

i. Oversee the company’s conduct with regard to its corporate and sccietal obligations and its
reputation as a responsible corporate citizen;

ii. Oversee activities impacting the quality of life of various stakeholders;
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iii. Monitor the CSR Policy and expenditure of the material subsidiaries (material
subsidiary” means a subsidiary whose income or net worth exceeds ten percent of the
consolidated income or net worth, respectively, of the Company and its subsidiaries in the
immediately preceding financial year).

. IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURE/ ANNUAL ACTION PLAN.:

The CSR programs will be designed systematically with defined timelines, objectives and
deliverables. All the CSR initiatives will have well-defined KPIs to measure impacts on target
groups.

Every year Company review the existing programs and will come out with Action Plan for
implementation of each of the CSR projects or programs, which were approved by the CSR
Comimittee.

The company will collaborate with select NGO/ voluntary organization for the implementation of
the programs. The engagement with the partner will be based on thorough due diligence process
and assessing the credibility of the organization.

The Company shall during the financial year i.e. any time between 1% April to 315 March every
year, carry out its above listed CSR activities. The CSR Committee shall, from time to time, decide
on the schedule.

The modalities of utilization of funds and implementation schedules for the projects or programs:

The funds required for utilization on CSR activities shall be allocated out of the profits of the
Company. The Company shall spend on CSR activities an amount of at least two percent of the
average net profits, made during the three immediately preceding financial years. The average
net profit shall be reckoned in accordance with the provisions of Section 198 of the Act.
However, in the absence of any profits, the Company may still volunteer t¢ undertake/spend on
CSR activities.

The Company shall impiement the CSR activities either on its own or by contributing in form of
donation to a registered trust / society.

The Committee may from time to time recommend selecting and implementing any of the CSR
activities enumerated above and to encourage employees to voluntarily participate in such
activities toward society’s betterment and overall well-being.
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9. MONITORING AND REPORTING MECHANISM:

The Committee may from time to time monitor proper implementation of its CSR activities, either
by itself or through appointed authorized representative or by appointing independent agency
or as it may deemed fit. The concerned person shall supervise and submit a report, containing
details on implementation of the CSR activities, to the CSR Committee of the Board.

Details of Impact Assessment, if any, undertaken by the Company:

The Company may on its own or engage the services of professional / independent agency in
order to do the impact assessment of selected or applicable projects or programs on a pericdic
basis, as may be required from time to time.

10.POLICY GUIDELINES AND REVIEW

This CSR Policy has been formulated as per prevailing provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(as amended), the Companies (Corporate Social Respensibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (as amended)
and after taking into considerations of Clarifications / FAQ issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA) from time to time. However, if, due to subsequent changes in the law, a particular
part thereof may become inconsistent with the law, in such case the provisions of the law will
prevail.

This CSR policy document will be reviewed from time to time. Any changes, if necessary will be

approved by the CSR Committee of the Board.

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

W P

Banmali Agrawala
Chairman
DIN: 00120029

Date: August 24, 2022
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE "D"
FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE
BOARD’S REPORT

1. A brief outline of the Company’'s CSR policy, including overview of projects or
programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR
policy and projects or programs:

The CSR policy outlines the objectives, compesition of the Committee, CSR scope, activity schedule,
monitoring and reporting methods. The CSR policy can be viewed on the web-site of the Company
www, tatarealty.in

2. The Compaosition of the CSR Committee:

The MCA on January 22, 2021, also notified the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020, pursuant to
which Section 135(9) was inserted in the Companies Act, 2013 {"Act™), wherein if the amount
required to be spent by a company as CSR Expenditure does not exceed fifty lakh rupees, the
requirement for constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibitity Committee shall not be applicable
and the functions of CSR Committee provided under this section shall, in such cases, be discharged
by the Board of Directors of the company.

Considering the aforesaid relaxation provided by MCA, the Board at its meeting held on May 24,
2021, dissolved the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company with effect from April
01, 2021.

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: www.tatarealty.in

4. Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule {3) of rule
8 of the Companies {Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable (attach the report):

The Company was nof required to implement, monitor and report any CSR activities, during the
year under review.
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Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year, if any: N.A.

Sl. No. | Financial Year Amount available for set-off | Amount required to be setoff
from preceding financial years | for the financial year, if any
(in Rs.) (in Rs.)

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) of the Act: Not applicable, as
Company have incurred losses (based on calculations made as per Section 198 of the Act) in
last three financial years.

{(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): The
Company was not required to spend mandatory 2% CSR expenditure for the year ended March
31, 2022, due to reasons mentioned in item & above.

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years: N.A.

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: N.A.

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): N.A,

(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: N.A.

|

Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Amount Total Amount Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Spent for the transferred to Schedule VII as per second proviso to section
Financial Unspent CSR Account 135(5).
Year. as per section
(inRs.) |—— 1—3ﬂ5(-6~) :
Amount Date of Name of | Amount Date of transfer
| transfer the Fund
- - ‘ - - 2 .
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(b} Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: N.A.

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)
SI. No | Name of the | Item from | Local area | Location of the | Project Amount
Project. the list of | (Yes/No). project. duration. allocated
activities in State | District for the
Schedule project (in
VII to the Rs.)
Act.
T ® (9) (10) (11)
Amount spent | Amount transferred | Mode of | Mode of Implementation
in the current | to Unspent CSR | Implementation - | Through Implementing Agency
financial Year | Account for the | Direct (Yes/No) Name. CSR
(in Rs.). project as  per registration
Section 135(6) (in number

Rs.).

(c) Details of CSR amount spent
financial year: N.A.

against other than ongoing projects for the

([ @ (3 @ [ (6) (7) (8)
Sl. | Name of | Item from | Local | Location of the | Amount | Mode | Mode of
No | the the list of | area | project. spent | of Implementation -
Project. activities in | (Yes/ for the | imple | Through
Schedule No). project | menta | Implementing
VII to the (in ti Agency
Act. Rs.). on -
i Direct
(Yes/
No)
State | Distri |_ Name. | CSR
ct registr
| ation
numbe
r
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(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: N.A.

{e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: N.A.

{f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): N.A.
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: N.A.

Sl. | Particulars Amount (in
No. Rs.)

(i) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section -
135(5)

(ii) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year -

(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i}] -

(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of -
the previous financial years, if any

(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv) -

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: f\.A.

Sl Preceding | Amount Amount Amount transferred to any | Amount
No Financial | transferred |spent in | fund specified under | remaining to
Year to  Unspent | the Schedule VII as per section | be spent in
CSR Account | reporting | 135(6), if any. succeeding
under Financial financial
section 135 | Year (in [ Name | Amount | Date of | years.  {in
(6) (inRs.) | Rs.) of the | (inRs) |transfer |Rs.)
Fund
- | N |
B B ) B B |
|
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{b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the
preceding financial year(s): N.A,

1 @ (3) (4) (3) (6) (7) (8) ()
Sl. | Project | Name | Financial Project | Total Amount | Cumuliative | Status  of
No | ID of the | Year in | duration | amount | spent on | amount the
Project | which  the allocated | the spent  at | project -
' project was for the | project | the end of | Completed
: commenced. project | in  the | reporting | /Ongoing.
(in Rs.). | reporting | Financial

Financial | Year. (in |
Year (in | Rs.) .
Rs).

|

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the
asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise
details): N.A.

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

{b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital Asset

{c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital

asset is registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete

address and location of the capital asset).

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per section 135(5}:

Not applicable, as Company have incurred losses (based on calculations made as per Section 198 of
the Act) in Iast three financial years.

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

|
o

Banmali Agrawala Sanjay Dutt
Chairman of Board & CSR Committee Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 00120029 DIN: 05251670

Date: August 24, 2022
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure “E”

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 8(3)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as under:

A. Conservation of Energy

Considering the nature of activities undertaken by the Company, the Company has taken certain
feasible initiatives/steps towards sustainabitity, which include initiatives which has impact on energy
conservation.

Steps taken or Impact on Conservation of Energy

Sustainability is an integral part of the Company’s business philosophy. The Board of Directors of
the Company has urged its stakeholders for undertaking appropriate steps for conservation of
energy, The Company has always endeavor to undertake appropriate steps for conservation of
energy. In this regard, the Company has taken the following steps in the project:

a. Energy metering. Energy meters for external lighting, municipal water pumping, grey
water pumping (for flushing) and water pumping for landscaping;

b. Installation of energy efficient equipment: Minimum 60% efficiency for pumps greater
than 3HP and ISI rated pumps for others, minimum 75% efficiency for motors greater than
3HP and ISI rated motors for others, elevators operating with intelligent group controls and
water level controllers;

¢. Electric Charging Facility for Vehicles: Electric Charging Facility shall be provided for 5
% of total parking;

d. Use of maximum daylight: Use of maximum Day light in Apartments and common areas
by providing glazed windows facing South /North Direction;

e. Use of natural ventilation: Use of natural ventilation in Apartments and common areas
by providing big size windows facing South /North Direction;

f. Energy efficient light fixtures: Use of Energy efficient fixtures like LED, TS having low
power consumptions;

g. Low loss transformers: Use of Level 2 Transformers which have low / no load and full
load losses,

h. Energy efficient air conditioning: Use of 5 star rated AC having low power consumption;

i. Lighting Automation: Use of {imers and other energy saving devices for common area
lights, in case of day time it will switch off through automation; and
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j.  Home automation: Home Automation is done to reduce ideal mode power consumptions
of lights, fans, AC and other electrical devices.

Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of Energy

a. Employee awareness: The Company has in its day to day working environment have
urged its employees for usage of electronic gadgets which saves energy, encouraging
carpooling, make them aware about water conservation, climate change, waste management
and energy conservation with a view to encourage water and energy conservation.

b. Use of Solar Powered Lights in common areas and landscape to reduce power demand of
project.

c. At Corporate Office, Company switch off 50% AC plant during lunch for one hour. The
Company has also kept water taps on low force setting to save water and used signage’s to
minimize use of paper and water in washrooms. Further, Lights are switched off in pockets
beyond 6.30 pm as staff leaves. Waste bottled water is being used for cleaning and plants.

Capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s;

During the year under review, the Company has not undertaken any capital investment on energy
conservation eguipment.

B. Technology Absorption

(i) Efforts made towards technology absorption:

The Company endeavors to undertake alternatives for technology absorption. However, during the
FY 2021-22, the Company has not undertaken activities relating to technology absorption.

(ii) Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution:

The Company has not undertaken new technclogy implementation during the FY 2021-22.

(iii) Imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year)-

The Company has not imported any technology during the last three years immediately preceding
the FY 2021-22.

{iv) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development.

The Company has not incurred any expense on Research and Development during the FY 2021-22
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C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo

Disclosure of information relating to Foreign Exchangé earnings and cutgo as required is already
given in Notes, which form part of the audited financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022.

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Banmali Agrawala '

Chairman
DIN: 00120029

Date: August 24, 2022
Place: Mumbai
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“Annexure F”

Corporate Governance Report:

Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Effective corporate governance practices constitute the strong foundation on which successful
commercial enterprises are built to last. The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance
oversees business strategies and ensures fiscal accountability, ethical corperate behaviour and
fairness to al! stakeholders comprising regulators, employees, customers, vendors, investors
and the society at large.

Strong leadership and effective corporate governance practices have been the Company's
hallmark inherited from the Tata culture and ethos. The Company has a strong legacy of fair,
transparent and ethical governance practices.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing
Director and the Executive Directors. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct
for its non-executive directors which includes Code of Cenduct for Independent Directors which
suitably incorporates the duties of independent directors as laid down in the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”). The Company’s corporate governance phitosophy has been further
strengthened through the Tata Business Excellence Model, the Tata Realty and Infrastructure
Limited's Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and the Code of Corporate
Disclosure Practices ("Insider Trading Code™).

To the extent possible, the Company had complied with the requirements stipulated under
Regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“"SEBI Listing Regulations™) and
would mandatorily comply will all the regulations by April 1, 2023,

Board of Directors

As on March 31, 2022, the Company has 6 Directors. Of the 6 Directors, 2 are
Independent Directors, 3 are non-execufive Directors and 1 is Executive Director. The
profiles of Directors is placed on the website of the Company
https://www.tatarealty.in/board-of-directors. In order to fully comply with Regulation 17
of the SEBI Listing Regulaticns, the Company is required to appoint 2({two) additional
Independent Directors on the Board of the Company

None of the Directors on the Board holds directorships in more than 10 public companies.
None of the Independent Directors serves as an independent director on more than 7
listed entities. Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positicns in other public
companies as on March 31, 2022 have been made by the Directors. None of the Directors
is related to each other.
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Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b)
of the SEBI Listing Regulations, read with Section 143(6) of the Act along with rules
framed thereunder. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations,
confirmations from Independent Directors have been received confirming that they are
not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated
that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. Based on the
declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors has
confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Regulation
16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and that they are independent of the
management. Further, the Independent Directors have included their names in the data
bank of Independent Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs
in terms of Section 150 of the Act, read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment &
Qualification of Directors) Ruies, 2014.

There were nine Board Meetings held during the year under review and the gap between
two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The said meetings were
held on May 24, 2021, June 17, 2021, July 23, 2021, September 17, 2021, September
30, 2021, October 28, 2021, November 12, 2021, February 14, 2022 and March 22,
2022. The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board
Meetings held during the year under review and at the last Annual General Meeting
{"AGM"), names of other listed entities in which the Director is a director and the number
of Directorships and Committee Chairmanships / Memberships held by them in other
publi¢ limited companies as on March 31, 2022 are given herein below. Other
directorships do not include directorships of private limited companies, foreign
companies and companies registered under Section 8 of the Act. Further, none of
Director is @ member of more than ten committees or c¢hairman of more than five
committees across all the public companies in which he/she is a Director. For the purpose
of determination of limit of the Board Committees, chairpersonship and membership of
the Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee has been considered as
per Regulation 26(1)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations.
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Name of | Category Numbe | Whether | Number of | Number of | Directorshi
the r of | attended | Directorships in | Committee p in other
Director Board | last AGM | other Public | positions held in | listed
(DIN) Meetin | held on Companies other Public | entity
gs 21/07/20 Companies (Category
attend | 27 Chairm | Memb | Chairm | Memb | of
ed an er an er Directorshi
auring | (Yes/No) p - Al
FY profession
2021- al)
2022
Mr. Non- 9 out Yes 3 7 2 2 Tata
Banmali Independe | of 9 Power
Agrawala | nt, Company
Designatio | Non- Limited
n: Executive (Equity
Chairman Listed);
DIN: Tata
00120029 Projects
Limited
(Debt
Listed);
and
Tata
Housing
Developme
nt
Company
Limited
(Debt
Listed}
Mr. Sanjay | Non- 9 out Yes 0 7 0 0 Tata
Dutt Independe | of 9 Housing
Designatio | nt, Developme
n: MD & Executive nt
CEO Company
05251670 Limited
(Debt
B i Listed)
Mr. Farokh | Non- 9 out No 1 5 2 3 Tata
Subedar Independe | of 9 Investmen
Designatio | nt, t
n: Director | Non- Corporatio
DIN: Executive n Limited
00028428) (Equity
B - Listed)
Mrs. Independe | 7 out No 1 7 1 1 Tata
Sandhya nt, Non- of 7 Housing
Shailesh Executive Developme
Kudtarkar nt
Designatio Company
n: \ Limited
|
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| (Debt
Independe | Listed)
nt Director Tata
DIN: Internation
00021947 al Limited
(Debt
Listed)
Mr. Rajiv | Non- 9 out No 0 6 1 4 Tata
Sabharwal | Independe | of & Capital
Designatio | nt, Limited
n: Director | Non- (Debt
DIN: Executive Listed)
00057333 .
Mr. Independe | 4 out NA 0 1 0 0
Prabhakar | nt, Non- of 4
Panda Executive
Designatio
n:
Independe
nt Director
DIN:
02860918 | ]
vi, During FY 2021-22, to the extent possible, information as mentioned in Part A of

vii.

viii.

Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations, has been placed before the Board for its
consideration.

During FY 2021-22, 1{one) meeting of the Independent Directors was held on March 30,
2022,

The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports of all laws applicable to the
Company.

Directors did not hold any equity shares of the Company as on March 31, 2022. The
Company has not issued any convertible instruments.

The Board has identified the following skills/expertise/ competencies fundamental for
the effective functioning of the Company which are currently available with the Board:

Global Understanding of global business dynamics across various geographical
Business markets, industry verticals and regulatory jurisdictions.

Strategy and | Appreciation of long-term trends, strategic choices and experience in
Planning guiding and leading management teams 0 make decisions in uncertain

environments.

" Governance Experience in developing governance practices, serving the best mterests
of all stakeholders, maintaining board and management acg
building long-term effective stakeholder engagements

% M

corporate ethics and values. ﬁ
& W
RE S
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3. Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted Committees with specific terms of reference to focus on specific
areas. These include the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
Risk Management Committee and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The Board of
Directors and the Committees also take decisions by Resolutions passed through circulation
which are noted by the Board/respective Committees of the Board at their next meetings. The
Minutes and the gist of minutes of meetings of all Committees of the Board are circulated to
the Board of Directors for noting.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on 19th February, 2021 has notified the amendment
to the Companies (Specification of definitions details) Rules, 2014, pursuant to which from
April 01, 2021, the Debt Listed Companies shall not be considered as listed companies as the
provisions of Act, read along with Rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, as per the aforesaid
requirement, the Company being a Debt Listed Public Company and wholly owned subsidiary
of Tata Sons Private Limited was not required to appoint new Independent Directors on Board
and re-constitute the Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company w.e.f. April 01, 2021.

However, owing to amendment to the SEBI Listing Regulations dated September 07, 2021,
the Company was classified as High Debt Listed Company, having listed NCD’s of more than
Rs.500 Crore and the Chairman of the Board, also being related to Promoter Group.
Accordingly, to comply with the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board of
Directors at its meeting held on March 22, 2022, approved the constitution of below listed
Committees with effect from April 01, 2022:

(a) Audit Committee

Composition, Meetings and Attendance

Sr. No. Name of Committee member | Designation
1 Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar | Chairperson

|2 | Mr. Prabhakar Panda - __ ~ Member |
3 Mr. Farokh Subedar ' Member

The composition of the Audit Committee is in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the Act
and the Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. All the Members have ability to read
and understand the financial statements and possess relevant finance and / or audit
experience,

Terms of reference

The terms of reference shall be as per Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 read along
with Part C of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations.




v

TATA

(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC")

(c)

Composition, Meetings and Attendance

Sr. No. Name of Committee member Designation
i Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Chairperson
2 Mr. Banmali Agrawala Member

3 Mr. Farokh Subedar Member

The Company is in process to modify the composition of the NRC to bring in line with the
provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the NRC shall be to formulate the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board
a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees and do such other act as prescribed under Section 178 of the Act and Requlation
19 read along with Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors

The performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors is based on various factors
which includes participation and contribution by a director, commitment, effective deployment
of knowledge and expertise, integrity and maintenance of confidentiality and independence of
behaviour and judgment.

Risk Management Committee ("RMC”)

Composition of the Risk Management Committee
Name of the Board member Designation in Committee
Mr. Farokh Subedar ) Chairman
Mr. Sanjay Dutt B Member
| Mrs. Sanchya Kudtarkar B Member |

The terms of reference of the RMC shall be as specified in Regulation 21 read along with Part
D of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations including functions related to cyber security
of the Company.

(d) Stakeholders Relationship Committee ("SRC")

Composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Name of the Board member Designation in Committee
Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar ] Chairperson
Mr. Sanjay Dutt Member
| Mr. Prabhakar Panda ) Member
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The terms of reference of the SRC shall be to specifically lock into varicus aspects of interest
of shareholders, debenture holders and other security holders and do such other acts as
prescribed under Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 read along with Part D of Schedule
I of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

. Remuneration of Directors

. Non-Executive Directors

The Company paid Sitting fees to the Non-Executive Directors ("NEDs”) and Independent
Directors ("IDs™) for attending meetings of the Beard and the Committees of the Board. The
details of the same are as under:

Name of the Director(s) ‘ Sitting Fees paid for attending Board
Meetings held during FY 2021-22

Mr. Banmali Agrawala Rs. 1,80,000/-
Designation: Chairman
DIN: 00120029

Mr. Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar Rs.7,00,000/-
Designation: Independent Director
DIN: 00021947

Mr. Prabhakar Panda Rs.4,00,000/-
Designation: Independent Director
DIN: 02860918 -
Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal Rs. 1,80,000/-
Designation: Director
DIN: 00057333

Mr. Farokh Subedar Rs. 9,00,000/-
Designation; Director
DIN: 00028428

The Remuneration Policy of the Company which, infer alfe, lays down the criteria of making
payments to non-executive directors is available on the website of Company at
https://www.tatarealty.in. None of the NEDs and IDs had any other pecuniary relationships or
transactions with the Company during the year under review.

b. Managing Director

Terms of appointment and remuneration of Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Managing Director are as under

Particulars Details

Period of appointment April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2023

Notice Period and Severance The Contract with the Managing Director may be
Fees terminated earlier by either party giving the other Party

six months’ notice of such termination or the Company
paying six months’ remuneration and other pro-ra
incentive / commission (at the discretion of the
in lieu of such nofice.

There is no separate provision for pa
Severance fees.
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Salary for FY 2021-22

Rs. 18923040

Incentive Remuneration for FY
2021-22 to be paid in FY 2022-
23

Rs. 14007280

Perquisites and allowances Rs. 3093312
Retirement benefits Rs. 838541
5. General Body Meetings
(&) Annual General Meeting (AGM)
Financial Date Time Venue Special
Year Resolutions
Passed
2018-19 23/09/2019 02:30 p.m. | At Bombay House, 3™ fioor, [None
301 Board Meeting Room,
Homi Mody Street, Fort,
Mumbai - 400001
2019-20 29/09/2020 [01:30 p.m. | Through Video Conferencing [To approve
(VC) / Other Audio Visual |issuance of Non-
Means (OAVM). Convertible
The deemed venue fpr the ,Eﬁ\?aet[:atl;rlgieomnent
13th AGM was the registered basis
office of the Company E Block,
Voltas Premises, T B Kadam
Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai -
400033
2020-21 21/07/2021 |05:00 p.m. | Through Video Conferencing | i- Payment of
(VC) / Other Audio Visual Remuneratio
Means (OAVM), n to M
The deemed venue for the ;aar;]aay_ butt,
) ging
14th AGM was the registered Director  of
office of the Company E Block, the Company
Voltas Premises, T B Kadam for the
Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - - ,
period  April
400033 1, 2021 to
March 31,
2023; and
ii- To approve
issuance of
| Non-
Convertible
Debentures
on  Private
Placement

basis
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(b) Extraordinary General Meeting:

FinanciDate [Time Venue Special Resolutions
al Year Passed
2021-22[16/11/2]04:30 | Through Video (VC) | To approve sale of |
021 p.m. / Other Audio Visual Means | 0.001% Non-
(CAVM). Cumulative, Non-
Redeemable,
The deemed venue for the EGM Compulsor”y and FU”Y
was the registered office of the Convertible  Preference
Company E Block, Voltas Shares, ("CCPS”) held by
Premises, T B Kadam Marg, | o Cémpany of TRIL
Chinchpokli, Mumbai — 400033 Constructions Ltd
{"TCL"
21/12/2102:00 Through Video Conferencing (VC) | i- To approve
021 p.m. / Other Audio Visual Means divestment/transfer
(OAVM). of 100%
take/securiti of
The deemed venue for the EGM Eurg/ o Igzivnath
was the registered office of the Expressways Private
Company E  Block, Voltas Limited
Premises, T B Kadam Marg, | . To approve
Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033 divestment/transfer
of 100%
stake/securities of
TRIL Infopark Limited

(c) Whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot — details of voting
pattern — None,

(d)

(e)

{f) Procedure for postal ballot — Not applicable.

Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise - Not applicable.

Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal baliot — None.

6. Means of Communication

The ‘Investor Relations’ section on the Company's website (www.tatarealty.in) keeps the
investors updated on material developments in the Company by providing key and timely
information such as Financial Results, Annual Reports, Contact details of persons responsibie
for resolving investor grievances, etc. The debenture holders can also send in their
queriesfcomplaints at the designated email address at trilsec@tatarealty.in. Financial Results
are normally published in free press journal newspaper.




7. General

(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)

(e)
(N

(9)

(h)

(i)
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shareholder information

Annual General Meeting for FY 2022

Date: September 14, 2022

Time: 11:30 A.M. through audio visual means at

E Block, Voitas Premises,
T B Kadam Marg,

Chichpokli, Mumbai - 400 033 (for purpose of recording location)

Financial Year: April 1, 2021

to March 31, 2022

Dividend Payment: Not Applicable

Listing on Stock Exchange and Listing Fees:

Name and Address of the
Stock Exchange

BSE Limited

P. J. Towers, Dalal Street,

Mumbai - 400 001

Type of Securities Listed

Listing Fees as applicable have

been paid for FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23.

Stock Codes/Symbol: Not Applicable*

Market Price data - high, low during each month in last financial year —

Not Applicable*

Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex,
CRISIL Index etc, — Not Applicable*

In case of securities are suspended from trading, the directors report
shall explain the reason thereof. — Not Applicable

Details of the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company are, given

below:

'Registrar and Transfer Agents

For Equity Shares

For Non — Convertible Debentures

KFIN TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Selenium Tower 8, Plot 31-32,
Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Gachibowli,
Hyderabad — 500 032

Phone: 040-67162222, Fax: 040-
23001153

Contact person: Mr. Gopala
Krishna K V
gopalakrishna.kvs@kfintech.com

Universal Capital Securities Private Limited
Address: 21, Shakil Niwas, Opp. Satya Saibaba
Temple, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East),
Mumbai - 400 093

Tel :+91 (22) 2820 7203-05 / 2825 7641

F: +81 22 2820 7207

Email: ravi@unisec.in

Contact Person: Mr. Ravindra Utekar
Website: www.unisec.in
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(i} Distribution of Equity sharehoiding as on March 31, 2022:
The Company is @ wholly owned subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited.
(k) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity:

All the Equity shares of the Company are in dematerialized form as on March 31,
2022. Under the Depository System, the International Securities Identification
Number ("ISIN"} allotted to the Company’s equity shares is INE371K01016.

Outstanding Global depository receipts or American depository receipts or
warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact
on equity: Not Applicable

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: Not
Applicable

Plant locations: - Not Applicable

Address for correspondence:

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
E Block, Voltas Premises,

T B Kadam Marg,

Chichpokli, Mumbai - 400 033

List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions
thereto during the relevant financial year, for all debt instruments of such
entity or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or proposal:

Details pertaining to Credit Ratings obtained by the Company are included in the
Directors’ Report.

Transfer of Unclaimed / Unpaid Amounts to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund:

During the year under review, no amount was due for transfer to Investor Education
and Protection Fund.

*The equity shares of the Company are not listed on the stock exchanges and hence
certain details are not applicable to the Company.

. Other Disclosures:

(a) disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential
conflict with the interests of fisted entity at large:

There were no material related party transactions during the year under review that have a

conflict with the interest of the Company.
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(b) details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed
entity by stock exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to
capital markets, during the last three years: None

(c) details of establishment of vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy, and affirmation that
no personnel has been denied access to the audit committee:

The Company has @ Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism
for directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour. No person has been
denied access to the Chairman as detailed in the Whistle Blower Policy. The said policy has
been uploaded on the website of the Company.

{d) details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory
requirements;

The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of the SEBI Listing Regulations became applicable
to the Company with effect from September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until March
31, 2023 and on a mandatory basis thereafter, pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021. The
Company is in the process of taking necessary steps to comply with the requirements
pertaining the SEBI Listing Regulations which shall be mandatorily applicable with effect from
April 1, 2023.

(e) web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed;

Following is the web link, where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed at
https://www.tatarealty.in/investor-info.

(fy web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions;

Following is the web link, where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed
https://www.tatarealty.in/investor-info.

(g) disclosure of cammodity price risks and commodity hedging activities: Not Applicable

(h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferentiat allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A): Not Applicable

(i) a certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board
of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
directors of ¢companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory
authority: The Company has obtained certificate from M/s. D. A. Kamat & Co., Practising
Company Secretaries, that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the
Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The same is reproduced
at the end of this report and marked as Annexure 1.
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(j) where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board
which is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year, the same to be disclosed along
with reasons thereof; None

(k) total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated
basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the
statutory auditor is a part.

The particulars of payment of fees to Statutory Auditors is given below:

(Rs in Crores)

Particulars Amount Amount '
Audit Fees 1.10 |
Tax Audit Fees 0.36 [
Certification and other , 0.18 ',
services - 0.12 |
Total | 1.76 |

(1) disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
{Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

a. number of complaints filed during the financial year: Nil
b. humber of complaints disposed of during the financial year: Nil
¢. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: Nil

(m) disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the
nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and
amount’: Nil

Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of sub-paras
(2) to (10) above, with reasons thereof shall be disclosed:

The provisions refating to Regulations 15-27 of the SEBI Listing Regulations became applicable
to the Company with effect from September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until March
31, 2023 and on a mandatory basis thereafter, pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021. The
Company is in the process of taking necessary steps to comply with the requirements
pertaining other regulations of the SEBI Listing Regulations which shall be mandatorily
applicable with effect from April 1, 2023,

10. The corporate governance report shall also disclose the extent to which the

discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II have been adopted:

The Company has appointed separate post of Chairman and the Managing Director, such
that Chairman is a Non-Executive Director and not related to the Managing Director.

The Internal Auditor of the Company directly reports to Audit Committee of the Company
on certain matters of the Company.
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11. The disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements
specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (a) to (i) of Regulation 62(1A) of SEBI
Listing Regulations shall be made in the section on corporate governance of the
annual report.

The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI Listing Regulations became applicable to
the Company with effect from September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until March
31, 2023 and on a mandatory basis thereafter, pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021. The
Company is in the process of taking necessary steps to comply with the requirements
pertaining other regulations of the SEBL Listing Regulations which shall be mandatorily
applicable with effect from April 1, 2023

The Company has provided the necessary explanation in the quarterly compliance report on
Corporate Governance submitted to the Stock Exchange under Regulation 27(2)(2) of SEBI
Listing Regulations for the quarters ended September 30, 2021, December 31, 2021 and March
31, 2022.

12.Declaration signed by the Managing Director stating that the members of board of
directors and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the
code of conduct of board of directors and senior management.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing
Director. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. These Codes are available on the Company’s website
(www.tatarealty.in). All the Directors on the Board and Senior Management Personnel of the
Company have affirmed compiiance with the respective Codes. A declaration signed by the
Managing Director to this effect is reproduced at the end of this report and marked as
Annexure II.

13.Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing Company secretaries
regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance shall be annexed with
the directors’ report.

The Company has obtained compliance certificate from the M/s. D. A. Kamat & Co., Practising
Company Secretaries, on corporate governance. The same is reproduced at the end of this
report and marked as Annexure III.

14. Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account / unclaimed suspense
account: Not Applicable

By order of the Board of Directors
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

\0\,\,@\@4&; | WL

Banmali Agrawa)
Chairman
DIN: 00120029

W

Date: August 24, 2022
Place: Mumbai



D A Kamat & Co

Company Secretaries
Website: csdakamat.com

DLAHAMAT & CO
Patteers in Epenplicnce

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3} and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

Te,

The Membhers,

TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg,
Chichpokli, Mumbai - 400 033

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from
the Directors of Tata Realty and infrastructure Limited having CIN U70102MH2007PLC168300
and having registered office at E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chichpokli, Mumbai -
400 033 {hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’}), produced before us by the Company for the
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-
C Sub clause 10{i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disciosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered
necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending
on 31st March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

The list of Directors as at 315 March, 2022 is as follows:

St. Name of the Director DIN Date of Appointment*
No. '
1 Mr. Banmall Agrawala, Chairman 00120029 24/03/2018
Offices:
A/ 308, Roval Sands, Shastii Nagar, Andheri (West), B/ 208, Shreedham Classic, S V Road, Goregaon (West),
Mumbai 400 053 Mumbai 400 104
Email: office@csdakamat.com Tel: +91- 90290 8023169

3 1 N f _‘_‘.<" Firm Reg. No.
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2 Mr. Sanjay Dutt : 05251670 01/04/2018
3 ‘Mr. Farokh Subedar 00028428 21/05/201%
4 Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal 00057333 24/03/2018
5 Mrs. Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar** | 00021947 24/06/2021
6 Mr. Prabhakar Panda ' 02860918 08/10/2021

*the date of appeintment is as per the MCA Portal.

**Mrs. Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar (DIN: 00021947) has been appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company with effect from March 22, 2022,

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these based an our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For, D. A. Kamat & Co,
Company Secretaries

o
¥

O oty

D A Kamat

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12t August, 2022

“\\ ‘__\ AR A Partner
\u?r—__-f-“’/él;} FCS No. 3843
\\““\q_:_ ECRE =

== CP No0.4965
UDIN: F003843D000776241
P.R. No.: 1714/2022
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“Annexure IT”

Declaration by the CEQ on Code of Conduct as required by Schedule V of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015

I, Sanjay Dutt, Managing Director and CEQ of the Company hereby declare that all the members of
Board of Directors and Senior Management Personne! have affirmed compliance with Code of Conduct,
as applicable to them, in respect of the financial year 2021-22,

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

@Uﬂ_

Sanjay Dutt
Managing Director and CEO
DIN: 05251670

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 24, 2022
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members,
Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg,
Chichpokli, Mumbai - 400 033

1. We, D. A. Kamat & Co., Company Secretaries, have examined the compliance of the
conditions of Corporate Governance by Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited (‘the
Company’) for the year ended on 31st March, 2022 as stipulated in The Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (hereinafter referred to as “Listing Regulations”), as amended from time to time.

2. The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
management. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance

of internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of the
Corporate Governance stipulated in Listing Regulations.

3. Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof,
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements
of the Company.

4. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the infermation and
explanations provided to us and the presentations provided by the Management, we
certify that the provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2015 (as amended) became applicable to the

Ofices;

A/308, Royal Sands, Shastri Nagar, Andheri (West), B/ 208, Shreedham Classic, 5 V Road, Goregaon (West),
Mumbai 400 053 Mumbai 400 104

Email: office@csdakamat.com Tel: +91- 9029661169/ 7208023169
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Coniinuntion Sheet
Company with effect from September 7, 2021 on a ‘comply or explain’ basis until Match

31, 2023 and on a mandatory basis thereafter, pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Reguiremments) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021. In the
Corporate Governance report submitted for last quarter, it was stated that the Company
is in the process of identifying the Independent Directors and shall comply with the
Composition of Board of Directors in due course. In furtherance to the same, the Board
at its meeting held on October 08, 2021 and March 22, 2022 appointed Mr. Prabhakar
Panda and Mrs. Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar as independent on the Board and also
constituted the requisite committees pursuant to Regulations 18, 19, 20 and 21 of the
Listing Regulations, effective from April 1, 2022. The Company shall take further steps to
comply with the requirements pertaining to Composition of Board of Directors and other
regulations of the Listing Regulations.

5. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For, D. A. Kamat & Co.
Company Secretaries
/i

P P

Place: Mumbai X7 ()

\\‘ N - . | ><..
Date: 10% August, 2022 r m“"\ l N aar—4,
.-P_‘1 o o, . J Ll

\y D A Kamat

Partner
FCS No. 3843
CP No.4965

UDIN: FO03843D000776263
P.R. No.: 171472022
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- Chartered Accountants
De I o I tte Lotus Corporate Park
- 15t Floor, Wing A-G
Haskins & SellsLLP e e o Coxt
Off Western Expreszs Highway
Goregaon (East)

Murmbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Fosee81 20 o6 1001

To The Members of Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Tata Realty and
Infrastructure Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then

ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its loss, total comprehensive income,
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financlal statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2 (a) of the standalcne financial statements. As stated in the
said Note, the Company, has written to the Reserve Bank of India (RBI} seeking certain
clarifications from the RBI, and is awaiting a response from the RBI. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

b

Regd. Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 32nd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai-400 013, Maharashtra, Indla.
(LLP Identiflcation No, AAB-8737)
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Key Audit Matter

Auditor's Response

As at March 31, 2022, the Company
had investments in various
subsidiaries, joint ventures,
associates and in other companies
which have been accounted for at fair
value amounting to Rs. 7,538.30
crores (Refer note 5 to the standalone
financial statements).

The determination of the fair value of
investments reqguires significant
judgement, due to various
assumptlons / estimates such as
market rent levels, toll revenues,
expenditure to be Incurred, vacancy
factors, prevailing market vields and
market transactions, cash flows.

The valuation of unquoted
investments is considered to be a key
audit matter as this amount
represents a very significant portion of
the total assets of the Company
included in the standalone financial
statements, coupled with the use of
significant management judgements
and estimates and use of
management’s experts in determining
the fair values, on the basis described
above.

We assessed the Company’s process for the
valuation of non-current investments carried
at Fair Value which involved testing of the
design and operating effectiveness of the
internal controls and substantive testing as
follows: :

s Evaluated the design of the internal
controls relating to the valuation of non-
current investments at Fair Value.

¢ Tested the operating effectiveness of
controls for the review of assumptions and
estimates used in evaluation of inputs for
the purpose of fair valuation. We carried
out a combination of procedures involving
enquiry and observation, and inspection of
evidence In respect of operation of these
controls.

Principal audit procedures performed:

+ Assessed the management’s maker /
checker controls over preparation of the
discounted cash flow model for the
valuation of investments and controls over
management’s analysis of the variances in
values in comparison with previous year.

¢ Ascertained whether the fair value of
investments has been determined by
external, independent valuer, having
appropriate recognised professional
qualifications and relevant experience in
the location and category of the property
underlying the investments belng valued
based on information and explanations
provided by the management. We
assessead their competence, independence
and integrity.

s Involved Internal Fair Value Specialists for
reviewing the key assumptions used in
valuation like Weighted Average Cost of
Capital for the purposes of determining the
discount rate, capitalisation rate, market
rent levels, vacancy factor, toll road traffic
growth/decline volume, Tested arithmetic
accuracy of the cash flow models prepared
by the Management,

« Performed analytical procedures by
comparing assumptions and fair values on
a year-on-year basis and obtained reasons
for the variations.
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Other Matter

We draw attention to Note 46 of the standalone financial statements. As stated in the said
Note, the Board of Directers, in their meeting held on 28 May 2022 have approved only
the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022. The consolidated
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 will be approved at a later date.
Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Report Thereon

¢ The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

« Our opinicn on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
informatlon and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

s In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements, or our

knowledge obtained during the course of cur audit or otherwlse appears to be
materially misstated.

¢ If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance inciuding other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

wd LA
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Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individuaily or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern. '

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materlality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

W 2 LY
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

a) On the basls of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2022 taken on record by the Beoard of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year

.is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

WD LPLé
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The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial

position in its standalone financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, except as disclosed in Note 44 te the standalone financial
statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in Note 45 to the standalone financial
statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)} or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reascnable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain
any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and
has not proposed final dividend for the year.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

O A

Rajesh K. Hiranandani
{Partner)

Membership No. 36920
UDIN: 22036920AJUIFT4093

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2022
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under *‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
{i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as
of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guldance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaiuating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controis system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financiat Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabllity of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
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financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone
financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

o et

Rajesh K. Hiranandani
{Partner)

Membership No. 36920
UDIN: 22036920AJUJFT4093

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2022
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ANNEXURE “"B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ Section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(N

(i)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details
of right-of-use assets. The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars of intangible assets

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets was physically verified
during the year by the Management in accordance with a regular programme of
verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification at reasonable
intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) Based on our examination of the registered sale deed and conveyance deed
provided to us, we report that, the title deeds of the freehold land disciosed in the
financial statements Included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name
of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including
Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have
been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31,
2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for
each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories
when compared with books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time
of the year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility
from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and
hence reporting under clause (ii){(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(iiiy The Company has made investments in, provided guarantee and granted loans,

secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties during the year, in respect of which:
(a) The Company has provided loans during the year and details of which are given
below: '
. Amount (Rs. in crores)
Particulars Loans
A. Aggregate amount granted / provided
(excluding renewed) during the year:
- Subsldiaries 154.20
- Joint Venture -
- Associates -
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- Qthers ' -

B. Balance Outstanding as at balance
sheet date in respect of above cases*

- Subsidiaries 774.90
- Joint Venture -
- Associates -
- QOthers 5.17

* The amounts reported are at gross amounts, without considering provisions
made.

{b) The investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all the
above-mentioned loans, during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest. Certain loans as referred to in clause
(iif)(c) below are interest free, however, these are granted to subsidiaries, and
hence in our opinion, prima facie, they are not prejudicial to the Company’s
interest.

(¢) All the loans granted by the Company are repayable on demand, within a
maximum period of one to three years from the date of granting the loans (refer
reporting under clause (iii) (f} below). The Company has not demanded such
loans during the year, and where applicable has renewed the period of
borrowings on due dates (refer reporting under clause (iii) (e) below). Having
regard to the fact that the repayment of principal has not been demanded by
the Company, in our opinion, the repayments of principal amounts are regular.,
Loans aggregating Rs. 605.39 crores as at March 31, 2022 are interest free. In
respect of other loans, the schedule of payment of interest has been stipulated
and recelpt of interest is regular as per stipulation.

{d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, in respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no
overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

(e} During the year, loans aggregating Rs.514.99 crores fell due from certain
parties which have been renewed during the year. The details of such loans that
fell due and renewed during the year are stated below:

Name of the Party Aggregate Percentage of
amount (Rs. | the aggregate
in crores) of | to the total
existing loans | loans granted
renewed {including

renewed)
during the
year

Arrow Infraestate Private Limited 21.51 3.21%

Gurgaon Construct Well Private Limited 95.11 14.21%

Gurgaon Realtech Limited 16.30 2.44%

International Infrabuilds Private Limited 133.97 20.02%

HV Farms Limited 0.04 0.01%

TRIL Road Pvt Limited 248.01 37.06%

TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private

Limited 0.02 0.00%

Acme Living Solutions 0.02 0.00%

MIA Infrastructure Limited 0.01 0.00%

TOTAL 514.99 76.96%
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(f) The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand details of
which are given below:

Amount (Rs. in ¢rores)
Particulars All Promoters* | Related
Parties* Parties*

Aggregate of loans
- Repayable on demand (A) 780.07 - 774.90
- Agreement does not specify any -

terms or period of repayment (B)

Total (A+B) 780.07 - 774.90
Percentage of loans to the total - 99.34%
loans

* The amounts reported are at gross amounts, without considering provisions

made.

{iv} The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing
guarantees and securities, as applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits. Hence reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi} We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to
the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been
made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the
cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Income-tax, cess
and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have been regularly
deposited by it with the appropriate authorities in all cases during the year.

{b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Income-tax, Sales Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at
March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable,

(c) Details of dues of Income-tax and Service Tax, which have not been deposited
as on March 31, 2022 on account of disputes are given below:

Period to Amount Amount

Name of | Nature | ...\ where dispute | which the | involved | Unpaid

the of

Statute Dues |'° pending anrotunt {Rs. (Rs.
relates Crores) | Crores)

Income Tax | Income | Commissioner of Income | FY 2016- 5.74 5.74
Act, 1961 Tax Tax - Appeals - Mumbai | 2017 ) )
Income Tax | Income | Commissioner of Income | FY 2017- 0.83 0.83
Act, 1961 Tax Tax - Appeals - Mumbai | 2018 ) )
Finance Service Commiséioner of CGST & FY 2012-13,

. . | FY 2013-14, | 5.07 5.07
Act, 1994 Tax Central Excise - Mumbai FY 2014-15
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Finance Service | Commissioner of CGST & | FY 2010- .67 2.47

Act, 1994 Tax Central Excise - Mumbai | 2011 ) )

Finance Service | Commissioner of CGST & | LY, 2010-11,

Act, 1994 | Tax Central Excise - Nagpur FY 2011-12, | 0.88 0.79
d FY 2012-13

Finance Service | Commissioner of CGST & | L, 2010-11,

Act, 1994 | Tax Central Excise - Kochi FY.2011-12, | 1.82 1.64
! FY 2012-13

Finance Kerala | Commissioner of CGST & | FY 2014~ 2.00 2.00

Act, 1994 | VAT Central Excise - Kochi 2015 ' '

Finance Service | Commissioner of CGST & | FY 2010- 0.27 0.25

Act, 1994 | Tax Central Excise - Mumbai | 2014 ) )

Finance Service | Commissioner of CGST & | FY 2015- 0.23 0.22

Act, 1994 Tax Central Excise - Mumbal | 2017 ) )

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no
transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or
disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961) during the year.

(ix)

(a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
any government authority.

(¢) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the
Company were applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which
the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the funds
raised on short-term basis aggregating Rs, 1,766.89 crores, prima facie, appear to
have been used for long-term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements, we report that the Company has not
utilized the unutilized funds as at the beginning of the year from the funds raised
through borrowings in the previous year or the current year to meet the obligations
of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate companies.

(x)

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause
(x}(a) of the Order is not applicable.

{b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)

(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on

the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.
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(b} To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of
the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companles (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during
the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause {xii) of the
Order is not applicable not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, where applicable for all transactions with the related parties and
the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone
financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)
(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.
{b) We have considered the internal audit reports issued to the Company for the period
under audit.

(xv) Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or directors of its Holding Company, or persons connected with them and
hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to
the Company.

(xvi}

(a) We draw attention to Note 2 (a) of the standalone financial statements. As stated
in the said Note, the Company has written to the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
seeking certain clarifications from the RBI that relate its status as a “non-banking
finance company” and is awaiting a response from the RBI.

Whether the Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 will depend on the response from the RBI, which
is awaited.

(b) Based on the written representation received from the management of the
Company:

(i) The Group has more than one CIC as part of the group.
(ii) There are six CICs forming part of the group of which five are registered with
the Reserve Bank of India as CICs and one Is an unregistered CIC.

(xvii} The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs,189.43 crores in the financial year
covered by our audit and Rs. 198.89 crores in the immediately preceding financial
year.

{xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the standalone financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report which is not
mitigated (refer note 2(b) to the standalone financial statements) indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
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date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

{(xx) The Company had incurred losses in the three financial years immediately
preceding the financial year covered by our audit. Hence the Company is not
required to spend any amount during the year towards Corporate Social
Responsibility specified under section 135 of the Act.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

o AT

Rajesh K. Hlranandani
(Partner)

Membership No. 36920
UDIN: 22036920AJUIFT4093

Place: Mumbail
Date: May 28, 2022
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indian rupees In crores)

Particulars Mote No. . Ag at 31 As at 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Mon-Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment {(PPE} 14.47
{b} Capital werk-in-progress -
{t) Intangible assets 6.99
{d} Rightio use an asset 1.20
(&) Financial assets
{I} Investmenls 5,281.45
{ii} Loans 505.08
{iily Cthers 0.0
{h  Mon-current tax assets (nef) 56,85
{g) Other non-current assets 148.22
Total Mon-Current Assets 6,009.05
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 246.95
(b} Financial assets
i) Investments 233.34
(i) Trade recaivables 10.13
(i) Cash and cash aquivalenis 149.47
{v) Loans 1.53
{v] Others financial assets 24.85
(¢} Other current assets 348
Total Current Assets 669.75
Total Assets 6,678.80
ECHITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a} Equity share capital 1,617.21
{b) Other equily 1,427.27
Total Equity 3,044.58
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabllities
{a) Financial liabilfies
{1 Long-term bommowings 1,643.26
{{i) Lease Rablities 1.28
{b} Long-term provisions 5.85
(o) Deferred tax llabilifies {net) 228.98
Total Non-Currant Llabilities 1,880.36
Currant Llabilities
{a) Financial liabiiies
i) Short-term borrowings 1,3081.64
{l) Lease liabilities O
{iiiy Tota! outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprisas -
(v} Total outstanding duas of creditors cther than Micro and Small 37.51
Entarprisas
{v) Othar financial labilities 293.83
(b) Currant tax liabilltes {net) 17.52
{c} Other current liabilities 21 2202
{d) Short term provisions 18 L 17T 1.23
Total Gurrent Liabilitles 318915 1,753.56
Total Equity and Llahllitles §,487.40 6,678.80

The accompanying notas 1 o 48 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements,

In larms of our report of even date attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Charterad Accountants

(Firm's Registration Mo, 117386W / W-100018

Rajesh K. Hiranandan|
Fartner

MMumbai
Dated ; 28 May 2022

|<ud

For and on behalf of tha Board of Divectors of
Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

CiN: UT0102MH2007PLC168300

\LMMAL\ =

it

=T ust

Banmali ala Sanjay Dudt
Chairman Managing Director
DIN - 00120029 DIM - 05261670

Bhavesh Madeka v
Chief Financial Officer
Marmbership No: A38683

Company Secretary
Membership No: ACS18978

Mumbai
Daied : 28 May 2022



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Particulars

| Revenue from operations
Il Other income
M Total Income (1 +Ii)

WV Expensas:
Cost of sale of flats
Employee benefils expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortization expense
Loss on fair valuation of derivative contracts
Other expenses
Total Expenses

¥V  Profitf{Loss) bafore tax {(NHV)
Wl Tax Expenses
Currant Tax
Dafarred Tax
hat Credit entitlement of earlier years written off
Total Tax Expenses
Vil {Loss) for the year {V-V1}
Vil Other Comprehensive Income:
A, Itema that wili not be reclassifled to profit or loss
Remeasuremanis of defined benefit plan
Equity inatruments fair valusd through OCI
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified fo profit or loss
B. itams that will be reclassifled to profit or loss

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (VIkAIN)

X Earnings per equlty share (Face value of INR 10 each)
Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notas 1 t¢ 48 form an integral part of these standalone financlal statements.

In terms of our report of even date allached
For Déloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

{Firm’s Regisiration No. 117366W f W-100018)

Rajesh K. Hiranandan|
Partner

Mumbai
Dated : 28 May 2022

\ 5

For the year
ended
31 March 2021

124,49
168.00

202.49

72.38
60,39
211.08
247
7.65
29.81

383.18

90.69)

[5-.68)

{5.68)

{96.37)

1.56
237.75
{32.82)

206.89

110.32

{0.60}
(060)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tata Really and Infrastructure Limited
CIN; U70102MH2007FLC 168300

-~

Bhavesh Madaka‘/”

Chief Financial Qfficer
Membearship No: 438683

=== Dul

Sanjay Dutt
Managing Director
DN - 05251670

Rashml J;I:n

Company Sactetary
Mambership No: ACS18978

fumbal
Dated : 28 May 2022



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Statetnent of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Currency: Indian rupees in crorers)

Particulars Fotthe yoar ended For the year ended

o M March 202 M March 2021
A Cash flow from operating actlviiles
Profit f {Loss} hefore tax (9069}
Adjustments for :
Depraciation and amorlisalion expense 217
Loss on sale of Property, plant and equipment Q.02
Proflt on sale of current inyesiments {7.09)
Gain on fair valuation of invesimenls and derivative nsimenls @111}
Inlarest Income (62.19)
Unwinding of call option pramium {6.30)
Finance cosls 211.08
Pravigion for employes bensfits .53 57,11
Operating (Loas] before changes In operating assets and liabliities {33.58)
Changes in operating assets and llabllities
il 4D in trade lvab 8.65
Decrease ininventories 6282
{Increase) { Decrease in advances, other current assets and cther non-current 12.94
assets
Increase / (Decreass) in rade payablas and other financlal liabillles (3.27}
80.94
Cash flows genetated from oparating activities 47.36
Tax {paid) / refund during the year {net) 12.80
Net cash flows genctated from operafing activities 60,16
B Cash flow from investment activities
Payment for ptrchasa of Property, plant and eguipment and intanglble assels {0.75)
Procaeds on sala of Property, plant and equipment 0.03
Proceats from Fixed deposits under lan with maturity 412
l@ss than 12 months
Inveslment in subsidiaries and joint venlure companles (87.50)
Invastment In shares of associale company (500.000
Procesds from sala of Investment in subsidiary company -
Wvestrmant i mutual funds {1,979.61)
Proceeds from sale of investments in muiug! funds 246596
Inter-corporate depoeils refunded 56310
Inter-corporate deposits given (F17.32)
Interast Recaived 33.42
Net cash flows used in Investing activitles {218.80)
G Cash flow from financing activities
Procaeds from long-term barowings 975,00
Repayment of long-term borrowings (400.00}
Proceeds from / {repayment} of shorl-term bomowings (307.24)
Finance costs pald {215.46)
Neat cash flows from financing activities 52.30
Net {decrease} in cash and cash equivalents {1065.34)
Cash and cash equivalents at the baginning of the year 255.81
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 149.47
Cagh and bank balances at the end of tha year compeise:
Gash on hand -
Balanges wilh banks 11,68
Deposi| Accounts wilh less than or egual Lo 3 months maturity 137.78
Total Balance 143,47

Motes:
The Staterment of Cash Flows has been preperad under Ihe indirect method as set out in Indlan Accounling Standard - 7 ('Ind AS 7} an Statement of Cash fiows.

-

M

Relar annexure bo the Statement of Cash Flows for a reconcillation of changes in liabillties arlsing from financlal activilies.

The accompatying notes 1 to 48 form an Integral part of hese slandalone financial statemants.

In tarmes of our report of even date aflachad

For Deloftte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartared Accounlanls ‘Taka Realty and Infrastructure Limited
(Firm/'s Rogistralion: No. 117366W / W-100018) CIM: U70102MH2007PLG188300
\ — =TT~
sl A
hand 4
Rajesh K. Hiranandani Banmall Agrawala Sanjay Dutt
Parlnar Chalrmian Managing Director
DIM - 00120029 DIM » 05251670
Mumbai
Daled ! 28 May 2022 \’
Bhavesh Madeka -—y RashheJ
Chiaf Fnancial Officer Company Sacratary
\ n(,\’% Membership Mo 438683 Membership Ma: ACS16978

Muribal
Datett : 28 May 2022



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Statement of Cash flows for the year endad 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in crorers)

Annexure to the statemont of cash flows

Reconcillation of changes In Nabilities arising from fl activities

I Financing Cash| Non-Cash Changss
Particulars 1 April 2021 Floes (Dt G 952 [ 31 Maren 2022
Longterm borrowings
Mon Converliyle Dsbenlurss 2,370.00 {400.00) - 1.870.00
Shortterm borrawings
Commerckal Papers rom Mutual furds 676.00 1,146.34 (1.34) 1,820.00
Shon Ten Loan from Bank - 260.00 - 3000
MHhers
Finance cosls 198.06 (361.07) 214,98
Total 304506 | . 87547 | 215.62 |-
Particulars Financing Cash| Non-Cash Changes

1 Aprh 2020 Fl_w_'fg {Othar cnang:g] 31 March 2021

Lorg-term bocrowings
Hon Converlible Dabemures 1,706.00 67600 - 2,570.00
Shortterm borrowings
Commerclal Papers from Mutwal funds FEQ.00 {107.24) 224 75.00
Short Temn Loan o Bank 20000 (200.00) - -
Qdhars
Fingnce coshs 202.45 (21546 21109 198.06
Total 297743 |- = 5290 13,33 3,243.08
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Statement of Changas in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indian rupaes in crores)

A Equity Share Capital

" F A at 31 March 2022 As at 31 Macch 2021
Particulars umber of Shares Amourit 7 . Numbar of Shares Amount
Subscribed and Fully Pald up Capital
Equily shares of INR 10 each
Opening Balance 1.017,307.692 101731
Changes In Equity Share Capital during the year 600,000,000 600.00

1,617,307,692 1,617.31

Closing Balance 1,617,307,602 1,617.31
Qther adquity
ftems of Other comprehensgive
Reserves and surplus Income
Share
Particulars Retalned S tle: appmaﬁoﬂ D benefit eql-:ly Iml'l‘rgtmhents T‘-‘:::u‘:g‘e"
n acuritios money p 9 fined en roug Br
Gapital rosorve earnings premium raserve | AlloWent | piaq adj Comprehensh
Income reserve
Balance as at 01 April 2020 4783 (735.52) 157.69 1,200.00 907 1,246.88 1,416.95
{Loss} for the year - {66.37) - - - - {96.57)
Allotrnent of shares during the year * - - 800,00 {1,200.00} - - {600.00}
Other comprehensive income for the year
Equiy nstruments falr valued through Ciiher i i R .
Comprehensive Income - 237,75 =178
Remeasuremants of defined benefit plan - - - . 1.56 - 1,56
Income tax relating on above - - - - (0.41) (32.21) (3282}
Balance as at 31 March 2421 47.83 (831.89) 75769 - 122 1,452.42 1427.27
{Loss) for the year - {5.24} - - - - {5.24)
Other comprehensive income for the year
Equily Instruements fair valuas through Other . _ B R .
Comprehensive lncome 974.31 4.3
Remeasurements of defined benaflt plan - - - - (0.48) - {0.45)
Income tax relaling on above - - - - 0.12 (117.03 (11691}
Transferred from OCl o Relained aamings on R R . R 1060
derecogntion of equily instruments (10.69) -
Balance a “ATB3 . T 5088 i 2,299.017 2,278.97 ..

* 'The remainlng amount of INR 600 crores |s included in Equily Share Capltal.
The accompanying notas 1 to 48 form an integral pert of hese standalone financial slal l

In lerms of our report of even date aitached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Charlered Accountants

{Flrm's Registration Mo. 117366W / W-100018)

Ralesh K. Hiranandani Banmall Agi
Pariner Chailrman

DIN - 00120029
Murmbal
Daled : 28 May 2022

Bhavesh Madeka

-

v

Chief Financlal Offiger
Mermnbership Mo: AJBEE2

\W3

For arwl on behalf of ihe Board of Directors of
‘Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Cli: U701020H2007PLC163300

= >us

Sanjay Dutt
Managing Dirsctor
CiIN - 05251670

Rashml Jain .
Company Secretary
Membership No: ACS18878

Mumbal
Daled : 28 May 2022



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: indian rupees in crores)

1

Background of the Company

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited ("the Company') was incorporated on 2 March 2007. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Tata Sons Private Limited.

The Company is exclusively engaged In the business of real estate and infrastructure development (including purchase, construction or
sale of immovable property, project management consultancy services and investment advisory services). These business aclivities of
the Company are mainly carried out through Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) in the form of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.
In carrying out such activities through the SPVs, the Company funds the SPVs through a judicious mix of equity investments, loans or
advances basis the requirement of each of the eniities.

Basls of preparation

{a} Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

These standalone financlal statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act) and presented
in the manner required by Division Il to Schedule Il to the Act, after considering the nature of the Company’s business described above.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the investments in SPV constituted more than 90% of Company's tofal assets.
Consequent to significant gains credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss, resulting from revaluation of certain investments {issued by
{ pertaining to SPVs) (in compliance with IndAS 109} at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss coupled with lower residential sales has
resulted In Operating income, primarily from sale of properties and management fees, being less than 50 percent of the total income.

The principal business of the Company remains real estate and infrastructure development (including purchase, construction or sals of
immovable property, project management consultancy services) within it's SPVs, which are excluded from the definition of “financial
institution” as per the provisions of Section 451 {c) of the RBI Act, 1934. Therefore, itis the view of the management that, the Company
would not fall within the definition of a non-banking financial company as per the provisions of Saction 45 {f) of the RBI Act, 1934. The
Company has communicated and has sought clarification from RBI on the applicability of aforesaid provisions of RBI Act 1934.

The slowdown in the economy and temporary low residential sales in it's projects, coupled with non-recurring fair valuation gains have
resulted in skewed operating lncome, which In management’s view s transient in nature, With various measures taken by the Company
backed by turnaround of the market and end of pandemic, the management s reasonably confident that a major portion of if's total
income shall continue to come from operating revanue in ensuing years, In view of above circumstances, the Company in it's recent
communication to RBI, has also sought extension of time for determining eligibility to register as NBFC. The response from the RBl is
awaited.

{b) Going Concern

The Company is primarily engaged in development of Commerclal and tnfrastructure projects to generate stable cash flows and capital
appreciation over tha life of the assets through investments in various project SPVs.

As at 31 March 2022, the Company has a net current liability position of INR 2,711.89 crores where the current liabilities at INR 3,189.15
crores exceed the current assets at INR 477.26 crores. Based on scheduled repayment of borrowings, INR 3,055.00 crores (included in
the current labilities figure of INR 3,189.15 crores above} is due for repayment within 12 months from the approval of these standalone
financial statements. The Company has also provided comorate guarantees / agreed to provide financial support of INR 659.00 crores to
its subsidiaries and joint venture companies.

Assessment: The Board of Directors have assessed the above operational conditions and indicators and have come fo the conclusion
that no material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem based on cash
flow forecasts and the plan management has put in place.

Mitlgating factors: In spite of difficult market conditions over a period, the superior nature of portfolio of the Company’s developments
has increased the Fair Value of these assefs to INR 7,538.30 crores over its historical cost of INR 4,343.79 crores.

Based on projections for FY 2022-23, the SPV's are expecled to generate operational net cash flow of more than INR 375.00 crores
which will increase the value of investments of the Company. The Company has entered into definitive agreements for divestment of
selected assets in its project SPVs' which is expected to generate more than INR 3,200.00 crores {net of taxes) as equity vaiue.

Going forward the management intends to madify the sirategy to replace, to the extent possible, short term funding with long term
funding arrangement.

The equity capital from the parent i.e. Tata Sons Private Limited, of an amount of INR 4,200.00 crores received during FY 2019-20 has
improvad the Company's net worth and allowing the Company's further ability for additional borrowing in future and is reflected in the
ratings of the Company.

Conclusion: The Board of Directors, based on cash flow forecasts and managemen! plans, have concluded on ability of the Company to
continue as going concern and the standalone financial statements have been prepared on that basis.
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes fo the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores}

{c) Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR}), which is also the Company's functional currency. All the financlal
information have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR} and all amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest crores with two decimals,
axcapt for share data and as otherwise stated. Due to rounding off, the numbers presented froughout the document may not add up
precisely to the totals and percentage may not precisely reflect the absolute figures.

{d} Basis of measurement
The standalone financial statements have bsen prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following assets and liabilities which
have been measured at fair value:
1 Cerlain financial assets and liabiliies (including derivative instruments)
2 Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value

{e) Critical accounting judgemsnts and key sources of estimation of uncertainty
In preparing these standalone financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumpfions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, llabiliies, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accouniing estimates are recognised
prospectively.
{1} Judgements
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised In
the standalone financial staterments is included in the following notes:

Note 38 — measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

Note 39 — determining the fair value of investments on the basis of significant unobservable inputs.

{ii} Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

[nformation about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment during the
year is included in the following notes:

Note 38 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;
Note 39 - determining the fair value of investments on the basis of significant unchservable inputs.

{f) Measurement of fair values
The Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financiat assets
and Yabiliies. The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has
overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the CFO.

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments, If third party information is used to measure fair values
then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the
requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hisrarchy In which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a ltability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are
categorized into differont levels in a falr value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Levet 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liabitity, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Lavel 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {(unobservable inputs).
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hisrarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement.

{g) Forelgn currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are translated into fhe functional currancy using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the seltlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Mon-monetary ifems that are measured at fair value In a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities cartied at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. The gain or joss arising on wranslation of nen-monetary lkems measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in falr value of the ifem (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
OC) or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the standalons financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Curre

3

ncy: Indian rupees in crores)

Signlficant accounting policies
Ravenue recognltion

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured.

Sale of completed proparty.

Revenue from sale of completed property (residential and commercial} is recognised when:

1, The Company has transferred to the buyer significant risk and rewards of ownership of the completed property;

2. The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually assoclated with the ownership nor effective
control over the completed property sold;

3. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

4, Itis probable that the economic benefit associated with the transaction will flow to the Company; and

5, Costincurred or to be incurred in respact of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Asset management fees and Project management consultancy fees are recognized in accordance with terms of agreement with
customers.

Dividend s recognised as revenue when the right to receive payment has been established. For all debt instruments measured either at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR).
EIR is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the finandial insfrument or a
shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability,

3.02 Property, plant and equipment

{i} Recognition and measurement

Freehold tand Is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impainnent losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

a) its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

k) any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it © be capable of operating In the
manner intended by management,

¢) the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, the abligation for
which an entity incurs either when the item is acquired

Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, are recognised in profit or loss.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss.

{ii} Subsaquent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure s capitalised only If it Is probable that the future economic benefits assoclated with the expenditure will flow to
the Company.

{ili) Depreciation
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value.

Depraciation s provided using the straight line method in the manner and at the rates prescribed by Part 'C' of Schedule I¥ of the Act.
Depreciation Is charged on a monthly pro-rata basis for assets purchased or sold during the year,

In the following cases, the useful life is less than the corresponding useful life prescribed in Part 'C' of Scheduls Il of the Act, based on
intemnal technical evaluation, taking into account the nature of the assets, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of
the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes etc.:

Data Processing Networks - Servars and Networks 5 years
Motor Car 5 years

Leasshold improvements are amortised over the primary period of the lease.

Depraeciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount, These are included in profit or loss within
other gainsf(iosses).

Expenditure incurred on acquisition /construction of property, plant and equipment which are not ready for their intended use at balance
sheet dato are disdlosed under capital work-In-progress. Capital work in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises of expenditures incurred In respect of capital projects under development and includes any attributable / allocable cost and
other incidental expenses. Revenues earned, if any, before capitalization from such capital project are adjusted against the capital work
in progress.

Borowing costs relating to acquisition / construction / development of tangible assets, intangible assets and capital work in progress
which takes substantial period of tima to get ready for s infended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such
assefs ara ready to be put to use,
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.08

Intangible assets

Infangible assets comprise application software purchased / developed, which are not an integral part of the related hardware and are
amortised using the straight line method over a period of the software license, which in the Management's estimate represents the period
during which the sconomic bensfits will be derived from their use. Subsequent expenditure is capifalised only when it increases the
future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

Impalriment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Management perodically
assesses using, external and internal socurces, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.

The recoverable amount is higher of the asset's net selling price or value in use, which means the present value of future cash ftows
expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and its eventual disposal, An impairment loss for an asset Is reversed if, and only
if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying amount of an
asset is Increased to lts revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any accumulated amorization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior
years.

Borrowing cost
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are

capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that nacessarlly take a substantial period of tinte to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific bomowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which thay are incurred,

Incoma-tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates items
recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

{i} Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment fo the tax
payable or receivable in respect of previous years. it Is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax retums with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provislons whare appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authotities.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
b) intends either (o seftle on a net basis, or fo realise the asset and setile the liability simulaneously.

{ily Deferred tax

Deferred tax Is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabiliies for #inancial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arlses from initial recognition of an asset or llability in a
transaclion other than a business combinafion that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax
loss).

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to ihe extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be avallable against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it is ne longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed
when the probability of future taxable profits improves. Unrecognised deferred fax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the fax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date and are expecied to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liabllity is setiled.
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3.07

3.08

3.09

Deferred tax liabiliies are not recognised for temporary differences between the carying amount and fax bases of investments In
subsidiaries, branches and associates and Interast in joint arrangements where the company is able to control the fiming of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foresesable future.

Deferred tax assels are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
subsidiaties, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements where it is not prebable that the differences will reverse in the
foreseeable futura and taxable profit will not be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Defarred tax assets and liabililes are offset only If:

a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off cutrent tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilittes relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the sama taxable
entity.

{iii} Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly In equity / deemed equity, in which case, the curent and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity / deemed equity respectively. Where curent tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax sffect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpase of presentation in the statement of cash fiows, cash and cash equivalent includes cash on hand, deposits held at call
with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an inslgnificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Inventorles

Direct expenses like land cost, development rights, site labour cost, material used for project construction, cost of borrowing, project
management consultancy, costs for moving the plant and machinery to the site and general expenses incurred specifically for the
respective project like insurance, design and technical assistance, and construction overheads are taken as the cost of the project work
in progress and cost of unsold flats.

Material at site comprise of building material, components, stores and spares, consumables

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, cost is determined on weighted average basls. Net realizable value is the
astimated salling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the
sale,

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one endity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another enfity. Financial instruments also include dervative contracts such as put options, call options; and forward contracts.

{i) Financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI} or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual eash fiow characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial recognition and meaasurement

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acqulsition or issue of financial
assets (other than fair valued through profit or loss} are added to the fair value of the financial assets, as appropriate . on initial
recognilion. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financlal assets fair valued through profi¢ or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in thelr entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Debt instruments

1, A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the follewing conditions are met:

a) The assetis held within a business model whose abjective is to hold assets for collecting coniractual cash fiows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates {o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)
on the principal amount outstanding.

2, After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amorlised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

3, Debt instruments included within the fair value through profit and loss (FVTFL) category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.,
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Equity instruments

The Company measures its equity investments in equity shares of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates at fair value through other
comprehensive income.,

Equity investments in companies other than equity investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are measured at fair value
through profit and loss account.

Where the company'’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive
income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss, Dividends from such investments are
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the company's right to receive payments is established.

De-recogmnition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to recelve cash flows from the assset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a} the Company has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has fransferred its rights to receiva cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through atrangement, it
evaluates if and fo what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment
loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are dabt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, and bank
balance

b) Lease receivables

¢) Trade raceivables

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

Trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component.

All lease receivables resulting from transactions.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changas in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impalrment
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLS at each reporting date, right from its inifial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initlal recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss, However, if credit risk has increased significantly, ifetime ECL is used. I, in a subsequent period, credit
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no Jonger a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the enfity
raverts {6 recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

(i) Financial liabilities

Classification
The Company classifies all financial liabililes as subsequently measursd st amortised cost, except for finandial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabllities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilides or equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arangements and the definitions of a financiat liability and an equity instrument.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initlal recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments In an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financlal liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
atiributable transaction costs,

The Company's financlal liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative
financial instruments.
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Flnancial liabilitles at fair value through profit or loss

Financiat liabilities at falr value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial [abilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial lisbiiities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109, The Company does not have any separated
embedded derivatives.

Gains or losses on liabilitizs held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial fiabiliies designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition,
and only if the criterla in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in
own credit risk ara recognized in OC, These gainsAoss are not subsequently fransferred to profit and loss. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recogrition, Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amoriised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as liabilities. The dividends on these preference
shares are recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

The fair value of the liability portion of an optionally convertible bonds is datermined using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bonds. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption of the
bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is attributable to the equity portion of the compound instrument. This is recognised and included in
shareholders’ equity, net of income tax effects, and not subsequently remeasured.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the
liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability and the falr value of the equity insruments issued.

De-recognition

A financial liablity is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is freated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Embedded derlvatives

If the Iybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind-AS 109, the Company does not separate embedded
derivatives. The Company applies the classification requirements contained In Ind AS 108 to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives
embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value If thelr economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or Joss. These embedded derivatives are mesasured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instrumenis. Reassessment only oceurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabiliies are offset and the net amount is reported in the batance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to
offsot the recognised amounts and there is an intention fo settie on a net basis or realise e asset and seltle the liability simultanecusly.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the avent of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company has entered into derivative financial instruments, such as put and call option contracts and forward purchase contracts to
acquire stake from Non-controlling interests. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value through profit or loss account. Derivatives are
canied as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financia! liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The Company has not designated its derivatives as hedging instruments.
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3.10

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a confract that requires issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
hecause a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debf instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of

(i) the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment reguirements of Ind AS 109; and

{iijthe amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recegnised in accordance with the principles
of Ind AS 18,

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interast rate

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at
FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of :

(i) the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and

{iithe amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of incoms recognised In accordance with the principles
of Ind AS 18.

Employae benefits

{i} Short term employee henefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service Is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be

paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employes and the obligation can be estimated refiably.

{ii) Compansated ahsences

The liabililes for earnad leave and sick leave are not expected fo be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in
respoct of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method, The benefits are
discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

{lil) Defined contribution plans
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset fo the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

{iv) Defined benefit plans

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have eamed in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan
assels.

The calculation of defired benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When
the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions In future confributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of
economic benefits, consideration is given fo any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
interest) and the effect of the asset celling {if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income (OCl).
Net interest expense {income) on the net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net
defined liability {asset), to the net defined liability {asset) at the start of the financial year after taking into account any changes as a result
of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the
gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or foss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a
defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs,

{v) Other long-term employee benefits

The Company's net obligation in respect of long-terin employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have eared in
return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Re-measurement are
recognised in profit or koss in the period in which they arise.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as : Investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk:

D
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(i) Investment risk : The present value of the defined bensfit plan liabifity is calculated using the discount rate which is datermined by
referance fo market yields at the end of the reporting petiod on govemment bonds. For other defined benefit plans, tha discount rate is
determined by reference to market vields at the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds when there is a deep market
for such bonds; if the retum on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively
balanced mix of investments in government securities and other debt instruments. Further.

(il} Interest risk : A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an Increase in
the return on the plan's debt investments.

(i} Longevity risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality
of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the
plan's liability.

{lv} Salary risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan Niability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
participants. An increase in the Salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the ysar. The weighted average number of equily shares cutstanding during the year is adjusted for the events for
bonus issue, Honus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split {consalidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss} after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to
expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilufive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of
squity shares considered for deriving basic eamings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have
heen issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Leases

The Company evaluates each contract or arrangement, whether it qualifies as lease as defined under Ind AS 116.

The Company as a lessee

The Company assesses, whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract Is, or contains, a lease if the contract involves:

{a) the use of an idendified asset,

(b) the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identified asset, and

(c} the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

The Company at the inception of the lease contract recognizes a Right-of-Use (Rol) asset at cost and corresponding lease liability,
axcept for leases with term of less than twelve months (short term) and low-value assets.

The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or
before the inception date of the lease plus any initial direct costs, less any lease incentives received. Subsequently, the right of-use
assels is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The right-of-use assets is
depreciated using the straightdine method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use
assets.

The Company applies Ind AS 36 1o determine whether a Right-of-Use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

For lease liabilities at inception, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at

that date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily determined, if that rate is
not readily determined, the lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate.

The Company recoghizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liabllity as an adjustment to the right-of-use assets. Where the
carrying amount of the Aght-of-use assets is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the
Company racognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Lease payments (other than short term, low value leases) have been classified as cash used in Financing activities in the Statement of
Cash Flows.

Lease payments for short-term and low value leases, have been classified as cash used in Operating activiies in the Statement of Cash
Flows.

The Company has no assets given on lease fo others.
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313 Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"} has nofified new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {tndian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23 March 2022, MCA amended the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below.

a. Ind AS 16 — Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the
cost of testing, i any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of
cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment, The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginhing on or
after 1 Aprit 2022, The Company is currenily evajuating the impact on its standalone financial statements.

b. Ind AS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets ~ The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract {examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfiling contracts (an
example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract),
The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022, The Company Is cusrently
evaluating the impact on its standalone financial statements,
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4 Propaerty, Plant and Equipment , Intanglble assets and Right to use an assst
lant and agquipment {PPE
TR E H F—

et

COST/ DEEMED COST

As at 01 Aprll 2020 " 1145 4.78 0,20 1.28 301
Addillons o - - - - 020
Disposalstidjustments - (0,09} (0.02) {0.39) {0.12)
As at 31 March 2021 11.45 467 D.18 0.50 318
Addions - - - - o3
ustments _ - _ - - (0.79) {0.89)
AR ]2 N W 8- 01 o, 285
As at 1 April 2020 - T 1M 0.04 108 537
Charge for the Year - 1.08 006 0.18 0.17 : T2
DisposalsiAdjustment - {0.09) {0.01) {0.35) {0.12} (0.43) - {1.00)
As at 31 March 2021 - 2.38 0.09 0.88 2.52 1.08 043 737
Charge for the Yoar - 106 0.06 003 0.23 041 - 1.49
- (0.79) {0.89) (0.28) - {2.06)
T g B 010 & tEr 248 ~082% % A3 FEp.80.
14.47
1338

=2

Gapital Work in Progress

FZ i ooy, 3 Padiculars - 3000, - otal .

As at 01 Aprll 2020 -

Additions

As at 31 March 2021
itions

31 March 20225, -

Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) agelng schedule

As at 31 March 2022:

Partlculars Amount of CWIP for a period of Total
Less than1| 1-2Years 2.3 Years More than 3

year
Project in Progress 0.62

Years
- 0.62

Project Temporatily suspanded -

\w>
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4 Property, Plant and Equipment , Intanglble assets and Right to use an asset
[H a}ﬂntangi_l:;h’s As;ets

Comipiter -

i i 8sE Software-
GROSS BLOCK
As at 01 Aprll 2020 364 3.64
Additions _ 0.50 _ 0.50
Disposals/Adjugiments (0.08) {0.08)
As at 31 March 2021 4.08 4.06
Additlons . 0.15 0.5

AR 423"
&M_QBI]QAT[ON _ _ _
As at 01 April 2020 2.87 287
Chargg forthe Year n 0. 28 ) 0.28
DisposglsiAdustments {0.08) {0.08)
As at 31 March 2021 3.07 3.07
Charge for the Year 0.46 0.46

Disposalsiad) uslments _ _ - -

AZ a3 Marchi2022 & b - 8353 -

NET BLOCK

Ag at 31 M h2021 lJ 24 0.59
Asat31) B T ek T TR T - -

d Right to use an asset

Particulars 2 5 “Total &
BLOCK
As at 01 Aprll 2020 _ - 15
Additions -
As at 31 March 2021 1.51
Addltlons -
MORTISATIOﬂ )
As at 04 April 2020 0.04
Charge for the Year 017
As at 31 March 2021 021
Cha g for the Year 017
: 4. Macsh. 20@‘*’“ o At - Ry ; in o .38
uET BLOCK
As at 31 March 2021 1,30
5 -4 _ge 3 < T \2: j.@
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5 Investments

Parliculars

As at 31 March 2022 B Asg at 31 March 2021

Amount Quaniily Amount

a) Non-current Invesiments
(1) Falr valued through Qther Comprehensive lncome:
Unguoled Equily shares of INR 10 each, fully pald-up:
B tment In subsidlary pan
Acme Living Soutions Private Limbad

- 50,000 -
Arsowy Infra Estates Private Limited -4,035,582 102,200 2087
Burgaon Constnichwel Privals Limited 11,917,624 65,700 TaM
Deemad Equity Invesiments In Gurgacn Construchsall Private Limitad - - B.20
Gurgaon Reakech Limiled 4,261,264 £6,500 56,68
TRIL Roads Private Limited T.745,012 7745012 202.44
Deemed Equity Investments in TRIL Roads Private Limiled - . 2158
TRIF Gurgaon Housing Profecls Private Limited 50,000 60,000 -
TRIL Urban Transport Prvale Limited 00 125,628,000 90.37
Deenmad Equily Investments in TRIL Urban Transpor Private Limited - -
Welkept Facliity Management Sendces Private Limited 400,800 -
TRIL Gonsfructions Limited 24 400,000 20,93
TRIL Infopark Limited {Refsr Foot Mota 1) 628,500,000 1,317.96
HY Farms Private Limfted 0000 0.01
MIA Infraslructure Private Limited 2,770,000 -
inlernational infrabultd Privale Limibed 20,000 -
o] d Equily & nt lonal Infeabulkd Private Limied - 56,60
Tril Bengaluru Real Estaie One Private Limited * 1,000 -
TRIL Bangaluru Consulianis Privale Lenied * 1,000 -
Yl Bengalury Real Estale Thres Private Limied * 1,000 -
Infapark Properles Limilad - -
TRIL IT 4 Private Limbad - -
1] Irrvast Lin Jolnt
TRIL T 4 Private LimHad 740,000 480.43
Mikado Realtors Privats Limitad 18967400 215.97
Indusirlal Minerals and Chemlcals Company Private Limlled 3258 227.95
Wi} Investment In assoclates:
Tata Housing Developmenl Company Limited 185,185,185 500.00
Unquoled Preforence shares, fully paid-up {Comg i fi lal | )
Y tment In subsichary pani
0.001% Compulsory Converiie Prefarance shares of INR 10 sach i TRIL Conslructions Limbted 59,260,000 FeNh]
0% Compulsory Convertible Preference shares of IMR 100 each In TRIL [nfopark Limited 30,000,000 B26.62
Unguoted Debentures, fully paid-up:
1) Investment In Jolnt venture:
Compulsorfly Gonvertible Det of INR. 100 &ach in Indusiial Mingrals and Chamicals Company Private Limited 1,787 460 11,767 460 121,14
(1) Falr valuad through Profit and Loss;
Unguatad Equity sharas of INR 10 ¢ach, fully paki-up:
i1 tnient In olher companl
TRIL Conslrucions Limitad - -
Taj Adr Limited 10,000,000 -
Unquotad Praference shares, fully pald-up {Comg d fl tal Inst H
1y 1 tin other '
0.001% C dsony G liyte: Pref: shargs of INR 10 each in TRIL Construciions Limiled - -
Unguoted Debentures of INR 10 sach, futly pald-up:
0 | n subsidiary |
0% Oplionalty Convertible Debentures In TRIL Urban Transport Private Limdled. 11,340,400 11,240,400 11465
0.01% Compulsorly Converlible Debanlures in TRIL Lrban Transport Private Limited . 32,353,750 2305 32,353,750 2357
0% Cpllonally Convertible Cebeniures in TRIL Roads Private Limiad . 430,805,000 . 43160 410,020,000 411,66
0.01% Compulaorily Convertitle Debentures in TRIL Infopark Limited, - T : 250,000,000 523.85
0% Oplionally Convertibks Debentures in HY Famis Private Limlted . 1,000,000 1,000,000 10.64
0% Optionally Convertlble Debentures In International Infrabuild Private Liniled 2,760,000 2,780,000 192
Gucled Debentures fully pald-up:
0 tment In subsldlary pani
18% Red ke Mon-ci riible Debenil of [INR. 627,500 each in TRIL IT4 Private Limked (Rafer Fool Mole 2) - -
11} Investmant In joint venture
15% Red bla Mon- tible Detyent of MR 687,500 each in TRIL IT4 Private Limited (Refer Faol Note 2) 1,184 08140
5,281.45
Aggregata value of quoted Investments
Aquregaie book value 81.40
Aggregate falr value 81.40
Aggregate value of unquoted investments E,200.05
b} Cuerent Investments s As at 3 March 2022 Ag al 31 March 2021
Invastmeant In mutual funds {Falr valuad through Profit and Loss): ; Quantity Amount Quantily Awmount

Axis Owernighl Fund Direcl Growth ~ NAY per unit {in INR) NIL {2021 : 1087.9106) - 15,050.00 1.64

HOFC Liquld Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Oplion - NAY per unlt {in INR) NIL {2021 ; 3068 0616) s ’ - 2,208.76 .68
ICICH Prudential Liguld Fund - Direct Plan - Growdh - MAY par unit {in INRY ML {2021 : 304,7384) c. : - 754, 76541 23.00
TATA Hould fund - Direct Plan - Growth - HAY per unlt {in INR} 3360.4521 (2021 : 3247.6337) 11,9726 640,529.77 206,02
s 233.34

* - Denctes amounts lsss than INR 50,000~

Fool notes:

13Nl {2021: 50,000,000 equily shares of TRIL Infopark Limigd have been pledged wilh Tamiinadu indusirial Development Comporakion Limited.

2} in the absense of any ransactions, the book value of TRIL IT4 Limited is considered as Ihe falr value.

3} The Company has provided non disposal undariakings to the lenders | Investors of ils subsidiares and jant venlures for the harehaiding that the Company needs 1o mai until e fnal geit b dhats of

the loan.

V)



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limlted
Notes to the standalk ts for the year ended 31 March 20
{Currancy: Indian rupees in crores)

6 Financial Assets « Trade recelvables

22

Particulars Ag at 31 March 2021
= Non Current Currant
Trada recelvablos from relatad partles (Refer Note 36)
Unsecured, considered good
Recalvable from related parlles - 7.92
Ungecured, credi mpairsd
Regeivable from relaled parles - 306
Lasgs : Provislon for cradit Impelred Trade Recalvables - (3.08)
Trade regelvables from others
Unsecured, consldered good
Recelvabls from olhers - 2.21
Total - 10.13
Foot Note :
1] Trade Racelvable ageing analyais:
Particulars Ag at 31 March 2022 Total
Legs than & months | 8 months - 1 year 1-2 Yoars 2-31Years More han 3
Years
{iy Undlspuied - Congidenag guod a.41 3.16 - QA0 12.97
{il} Undlzputed - Cradil impalred - - - - -
{lli) Disputed - Considered good - - - - -
{iv} Disputed - Creditimpalred - - - 3.08 306
Parllculars As at 31 March 2021 Total
Less than 6 months | 4 months - 1 year 1«2 Years 2«3 Years More than 2
Years
(i) Undispuried - Conalderad good 43 07 013 1.10 1013
(€} Undiaputad - Credit Impaired - - - - -
{ili} Dispured - Conslderad good « - - - .
{iv) Disputed - Cradh impaired - - - 3.06 300
7 Flnanclal Assets: Loans
Parliculars A3 at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Mon Currarit Curvent
{Unsacured, consldered good)
Inter eomporals depasits to relaled parties {Refer MNota 38)° SO6.06 -
Other advances - 1.53
(Unsecured, cradit impaired)
Inter corporale deposlis ko related parties - 096
Less : Provisions - (095}
Inter corporate deposils Lo other parties . 517
Less ! Provisions - (3,17}
Total H05.06 1.63
* After adpstments of IND AS - 109
& Other Financial Assets
Partlculars Ag at 31 March 2022 As ot 31 March 2021
in Currant Culy Non Currant Gurrent
lnherasi acorued recaivable from related partles (refer Note 36} - 20.55
G tuglh e axp from relaled partles (Refer Nota 38) - a6t
Sacurty deposils - 68
Fited deposits with morg than 12 months malurity (Refer Foot Nole) 0.01 -
Total 01 2485
Foot Naota:

Bank depaosit of INR 0.01 crores (2021; INR 0.01 erores) is having llen in favour of Commercial Tax Clficer, KVAT Works Coniract Emakulam,

9 Mon-currant Tax Asgets (nef)

Parficulats Agdt 31 March 2022 Ag at 31 March 2021
Advance Payment of laxes y 100.50
Pravision for tax (43,85}

Tolad £5.55
16 Othar Assets
Particulars As at 3 Warch 2021
Non Current Currant
Capital Advances 1.60 -
Cofl Cptlon Premium {Refar Fool note) 6929 -
Detlvative asset (Refer Fool nole} 8.3 -
Balancs with Tax Authorifies - 1.74
Prepaid Expenses - 068
Olher Receivablas - 1.16
Total 4,60 - 149,22 .48
Foot nofe:

The Company had paid an klerest free advance of INR 71,10/- ¢rorss to Indian Holels Company Limied (JHCL) vide MOLI dated 23 February, 2010 and MOU dated 11 July, 2011. The

for the ad
disclosed above as Call oplon p
11 Novembasr, 2021.

and Derlvative Asset ap

\w>

was with an ppllon to acquire the equl.ly fvastment of TRIL Infopark Limited lor an amount of INR 71.10f- crores. The fair valoe of Ihese shares wera
i prialely, Tha opion was exercised by e Company and the related squity shares were Iranaferrad to the Company on
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11 Inventorles {Lower of cost and net reallaable vahte]

Partloulars Ag at 31 March 2021
Finishad Goods 248,95
Total 245.95
12 Cash and cash squivalents
Partlculars Aa at 31 March 2021
Cash on Hand -
Balances wilh Banks
= In cument accounta 1166
- In deposit actounts with leas Whan or gqual to 3 months original malurity 137.79
Total 14947
13 Equily Share Gapital
(2] _Authorised, lssued, Subscribed and Fully Pald up:
Partlculara ! As at 31 March 2021
Mo of Shares Amount
Authorised Gaplial ;
,00,00,00,000 {2021: B,00,00,00,000) equiiy shares of INR 10 aach 8,000,000,000 5,000.00
Igsued, Subscrlbed and Fully Pald up Caplial :
1,61,73,07,692 {2021; 1,61,73.07,692) eauity shares of INR 10 sach 1.847,307.602 1617.31
Total 1,617,307,692 1.817.34
{b) _Reconglllation of Numbar of Shares O fing
Particulars As at 24 March 2021
No of Sharea Amount
As at lhe baginning of the year 1,017,307,692 1,H7.H
Add: Issued during the year B00,000,000 600.00
At ai the end of the year 1,617,307.692 161731

{£} Terms and rights attached to the equily share

The Company has enly one class of equity shares having par vals of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equily shares is enliled ko cne vote

per share. Tha Company declares and paya

dividands, if any, In Indian mpees. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the app af holders in tha ing Annual General Mesting. In the avenl of
liquidatlon of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entifsd to racetve remalning assats of the Comy aftor distrbulion of ali praferential Ls. The distribullon will ba n

praportion ko the number of equity shares hald by the sharsholders,

[0} _Shares of the company held by the Holding company

Name of Shareholder

As at 31 Mareh 2021

Tala Sons Private Limited and lls nominess

Ro of Sharzs Amount
1,817,307 602 181731

{e) _Datails of shareholding more than 5% In the Company

Hame of Sharshelder

As at 31 March 2021
No of Shares % Holdln:

Tata Sons Privale Limited and its nominaes

100% 1.617,307,602 100%

(8] _Detalls of shargholding of promotars and percen of change during the yaar

Name of Sharehclder

] As at 34 March 2022 3 A at 31 March 2021
: pdding’ No of Shaves % Holding

Tala Sona Private Lmited and ils nominees

100% 1,817,307.662 100%

Fool Mote:
Thers has been no change in ¢

&

of | 1l harehalding durlng the currant year as wall as in the pravious year.
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14 Other Equity

Partlculars RN 5 af S1.March z022 5 As at 31 March 2021
Reserves and susplus )
Securities Premlum resans 757.6%
Capllal resarva 47.83
Ratained aarnings (831,89}
Itemz of Other comprahensive Income
FWOCH - equlty Instruments 1,452.42
Dafined benedfit plan adjstiment 107
TOTAL 1,427.27

Share application money pending allotment

Particulars

As at 31 March 2021

Balance al tha baginning of the year
Less: allotment of shares during Lhe year

1.200.00

Balan;:o at the end of the Year

{1,200.00)

Securitles prefmjum resarve

Partlculars

Balzanoe al the bagmning of the year

A3 at 31 March 2021

157.62

Add: on alletment of sharas during The year 600,00
Balange at the and of the Year 787.68

Capltal reserye

Partlculars As at 31 March 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 47 .83
Balance at the end of tha Year 47.93

Retalned samings

Partlculars As at 31 March 2021
Balangs al the baginning of Lhe year (735,52}
Transferrad from OC) 1¢ Retained Ings on gnition of equity insl I -
Profit / {Loss) far lhe yoar (96,97}
Balanco at the end of the Year (831.89)

Enuliy lnstrumenis through Other Comprehensive Income {OGI

Partlculars As at 31 March 2021
Balanca at the baginring of the year 1,246.68
Ecquity ir s fair value through OCI {(FVOCH 29775
Income tax relating Lo llems that wil nol be reclassifiad 1o profit or loss {3221
Transfamed from £C 1o Retalned earnings on derecognition of equity msnuanents -

Balance at the end of the Year 1,462.42

Other comprahensive Income - Defined heneflt plan adjusfment

Parficulars As at 31 March 2029
Balance st tha baginning of the year .07
Remeasuramants of defined beneft liabllity 1.5¢
Income tax refaling to ams thal will nol be reclassified o profii or Jass (0.41)

Balance at the end of the Year 1.22

Naturs and purpoea of tha resarve

Secwitias premdum resarve

1) During FY 2015-18 100,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 ¢ach at a pramium of INR 10 each wera issuad on conversion of cortain converlible prafersnce shares.

23 0.01% Compulsorily o ik b WS ¢ isorily convertibks into aquity shares by 25 August 2015 or befors at the optien of investor. [niring the financial year 2016-17

{on 24 August 2016), these debaniures were convertad Into 192, 30'.-' 692 Equity shares of INR 10 #ach at a prembum of INR 3 gach,
3} During the pravious year, $0,00,00,000 Equity shares of INR 10 each wers allolled from share application money p

Capital raserve

of INR 10 each.

Capital raserve was created to record excess of nst assals taken over pursuant to scheme of merger sanclioned by tha Bombay High Court in the year 2015-16 belwean Tala Realty

and Infrastructure Limlted, Mara Builder Privates Limited and TRIF Real Eslate and Davelopmeant Limited.

Dabentura yedemption reserve

The Company has not crested debenture redemption resarve: as per Section 71 of Ihe Companies Act. 2013 due lo losges ngurred post issuancs of debentures.

Ecpulty | hrough Othar Comprat Ive b

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the Fair value, of invesimants in equity and p

sccurmulaled within the FYOCT equity investmenls resene wilhin equily.

Tha Company lranstsrs amounts from Inis reserve 10 retalned sarnings when the relevant eqully secuilies are deracognised.

WD

in olher comprenensive income. Thase changes are
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15 Flnangcial Lisidlities - Borrowings

Particulars As at 21 March 2021
Non Curcent Current
Non Converlible Debentures « Unsecured, Listed
1,970 {2021: 2,570} 6.50% - £.50% Hon converllblg debenturas {NCD) G IMR 10 Lacs sach, 2.370.00 -
fully paid up (Refer Foot Nole Mo. 1 below }
Lass : Current Maturlty of Lh 1 Long lerm b ing 725.00
1,645,00
Lass : Unewplred lssuants ¢osls {1.76}
Commerclal Papats fram Mulval funds {Refer Foot Note No, 2 balow) £75.00
Less : Unaxpired dscount (17.01)
Current Maturily of Unsacured Long term borrowings 725.00
Less 1 Unexpired issuance costs {1.35)
Short Tem Loan from Bank - .
TOTAL - 3,031.74 1,643,726 1,361.64
The above amount Includes
Secured Borcowings - -
Ui d Borowings 1,643.26 1,391.64
Foot Notes:
1] Terms of repayment and Intarest of Unsacured Non Convertible Debantures:
Particulars As at 31 Mazch 2021
— . Hon Current Currant
Taita Raalty And Infrastructure |imked Seriss VIT -Injarest ¢ 8,574 % payable on maturity. Princlpa
oh Bullel rapayment on maturity, on 20-Apr-2021. . - 42500
Tala Reahy And Infrastruciurs Limited Seres 1X -Interest 6 9.50 % payable on maturlty, Prncipal on
Bullet repaymeant on maturlty, on 0d-Jun-2021, - 400.00
Taka Realty And Infrastructure Limiled Series X -interest @ 8,40 % woed. 12 June 20219 {g9% uph
17 June 2021) payable on mawrlty. Principal on Bullet yment on maturily, on 18-M b 195,00 -
2022,
Tata Really And Inlrastructure Limited Sarles X1 - @ 8.65 % payabh My, Principal o
Bullet rapaymant an malurity, on 29-April-2022, 200.00 -
Tata Realty And Infrastruciure Limltsd Serss XI. -n t @ 540 % payahl ly, Pringipal on -
Bulket repayment on maturity, on 06-June-2022. 275.00 -
Tata Really And infrastructure Limited Serles Xl Interest @ 7.30 % payable annually, Pringipal on
Bullst t on malurily, 06 10-Ho 2023, 400.00 -
Tata Really And Infrastructure Limited Serles XIV Interest @ 7.09 % payable annually, Principal o
Bullet repayment on malurily, oh 21-June-2024. : 300.00 -
Tata Really And Infrastructure Limited Serles XV Interest @ 8,50 % paysbie annually. Principal on
Bullel t on maturity, on 23-Saplembar-2022. 27500 -
Tala Really And Infrastructure: Limiled Sarles ) interest @ 6.50 % payabile annually. Principal on
Bullsl repaymant on maturity, on 17-July-2024, - -
TOTAL 1,845.00 726.00

2} Commercial paper lssued to mutual funds are al a discount rate ranging from 2.09% -5.00% per annum {2021: 3.80% -8.70% per annum), and the same ars repayable within one year al

the agread upon full face vale.

16 Financial Liabilities - Trade and otier payables

Particulars As at 31 March 2021
Non Current Current
Trade Payables {Refor Foot Notes]
Tolal culstanding duss of Micre and Small Enlerpdses - -
Tolal oulstanding duss of craditars other than Micro and Small Enterprises - 37.51
Total - 37.51

Foot Notes

11 Basead on information recelved by the Company from iis vendors, the amaunt of principal oulstanding in respect of MSME as at Balance Sheet date coverad under the Micro, Small
and KMedium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 I8 MR ML Thers were no delays in the payment of dues bo Micro and Small Enlemrises.

2] Tracto Payable ageing analysis:

Partioulars Ag a1 31 March 2022 Toidl
Lexss than 1 year 1-2 Years 2«3 Years More then 3 Years
i) MSME - - - = T
(i} Olhers Tt 028 027 0.74 3052
(lliy Dispuled dues - MSME - - - - -
{iv} Disputed dups « Others - - - . .
Par As ai 31 March 2021 Toi!
Leas than 1 year 1-2 Yoars 2-3Years More than 3 Years
{1 MSME - N N B R
{ii) Others 25,68 0.80 023 0.60 37.51
(i} Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
]{i\r} Disputyd dues - Cihers - - - - .
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Tata Realty and Infrastructurs Limited

Netes to the standalone financlal stalements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

17 Financial Llabllivies - Others

Particulars As al 31 March 2029
MNon Curreni Current
Interast accrusd but not due on botrowinga - 21507
Derlvatlves - Put apfion (Refer Foot Mote) - 78.76
- 20383
Faot Mote:
AS per agreemeant of the Company with Tamll Nadu Indusirlal Devalopment Comporalion {TIDSO) dated 24 March 2008 and suppl i Is entered Into

betwesn lhe parlias, TIDSC has an oplion, sxercisable untl 30 Seplember 2021, (9 sell il investments in TRIL Infopark Limited, oompllslng 500 00,000 equity shares of INR10 sach,
reprasenting 8.67% holding kh TRIL Infopark Limited, to the Company. The considaration was to be computed al an agreed IRR, on the basis of which the conskderation, a5 at 21 March
2021,is INR 198.12 crores, As & socurdy for the above ransaclion, the Gompany has pladyged its Investmant in TRIL Infopark Limitad with TIDCO, {5,00,00,000 equily shares of INR 13
aach, fully pald) and also placed post-talad cheque of INR 190,12 crores. In Iha turrent yaar the oplion has basn exercised by TIDCO at 3 consideration of INR 19812 croces.

18 Provislons

Particutars “As at 31 March 2022 Ag al 31 March 2021
_ Non-Gurreat Current Hon-Current Suwrrent
Pravision for Employee Beneflts; -
Gratuity Q.64 251 0.30
Compensated abaances 1.33 234 .93
Total 1.77 5.685 1.23
19 Current tax Habilitlas (net)
Particulars A3 °at 31 March 2022 - A a_}_31 Marcle 2024
Prowislon for taxation A 9968
Advance Payment of tanss {72.14)
Jotat 1752
20 Deferred tax llahllities {net)
Movenmant Resogmised RI:::::rd
Particulars As at Ins Statemant of Profit {1y Othr As m
31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022
Loss ooinprehenaive
Jncarae.
Daferred Tax Asaols
Fropery, plant and equipment and Infanpible asgels 0.50 027 - {7
Fair valuathon of dedvalives at FUTPL LiN) ] {15.52)] 5.4 -
Delined banadit obbyation 184 027 042 2z
Deptad nyestmant on KD discounting 737 B.63 - 16.30
Deferrad Tox Llablites -
Fair valustiona of Eqully | at FwoCl [207.707 - {340.14)
Falr vahiations of other financlal assels al FyTPL (3210 [17.76)] [49.58)
Yotal - (3. 70.70)
Movemant Recognlzad RI:::orr:r:’
Partiowlars As ot in Statement of Profit g As 2t
31 Marah 2020 and 31 March 2021
Loss somprehensive
inGome
Deferred Tax Assels
Proparty, plant and equipmant and Itanglble Assets 2.61 {2.11} - 050
Fair valuation of dedvalives al FVTPL 2.0 {(1.88) - an
Delined bensfi abligation 212 0.43 {041 184
Ceamed Invesiment on IG0 discounting LiX:i] 677 - 7
Deforrod Tax Liablitos
Falr of Equily al FYQC {175.49) - (32.21) [207.70)
Falr of alher inanolal assets af FYyTPL {23.61) (2.43) -_l [32.10)
Total 1191.69) (ﬁ.ss']l {32.62)| (229,98)|
21 Other Current Llabillties
Partloudars As at 31 March: 2022 As at 31 Masch 2029
Advances from cuslomsns - 11.86
Statutory dues includlng proviient fund and lax deducted al source 317
I lon gn d df f .11
Corpus fund colieation 505 5.34
Sacurily deposits from customers 053 0.58
Other Payably G.96 0.96
Tolal 2235 22.02
22 Revenue from Qperations
Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2021
Sala of regldantlal Hats 06,00
Sale of services
Project managemeni consullancy fess 11.90
Assot manggement feas 12.80
Maintenance and other raceipls 290 27.60
Total 124.48
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notas to the standalone fi lal stal ts for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currsncy: Indian rupeas in crores)

23 Othar Incoma

Parilculars

For tha year sadead
3 March 2021

Intarest Income on;

Intar corporale daposils f non 56.06

Income-tax ralund 0.98

Fixed deposits wilh bank 5.33

Unwinding of call option premium B.30
Proiit on sale of Currenl Investments F.O0%
Prowlslon for Doubtful Advances Writlen Back 045
Galn on fair valualions of Invesiments 7209
Galn on fair yalus changes

- of put options -

- on call oplions 1616
Wark 1o harket gain on currant fnveatment in Mulual funds 062
Other income from residential projects 203
Miscellanapus Income 0.30

Tolal 1648.00
* Includes Unwinding of Interest amounting lo INR; 26,18 crores {2021: INR. 22,51 crores)
24 Gostof gale of flats
Partlculars For the year ended
3 March 2021
Materlal consuméd

Opening Stack of congtruction melerial 0.52

Less : Closing kyenlorss of sonstuction mataral -
Totat cost of materlals consumed 0.52

Expenditure during the yaar
Opening Stock of Inventorles 309.05
Additlon during the year
Professlonal feas and lechnical fass 0.36
Approvel end p l P .02
Conslruclion cost 726
Hhar expenses 2,13
a8
31633
Less: Closing Stock of lnventories (Refar Mole 113 {246.95)
Total 7238
2% Employee banefils axpanse
Particulars * For thie year any For the year anded
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Salardes, wayes and bonus ¥ 60,73

l.ess: Papulation charges recoverad 15.30)

Graluily charges and Contrtbulions to Provident and pansion funds 2.88

Staff welfare sxpenses 124

Compensaled ab 083

Total 60,30
26 Flnance Costs
Particulars For the year ended Far the year ended
arch 2022 M March 2024

{nierasi Expensa

- on NGO fom banks and financlal institulion 156.26

~ on commercial paper 38.39

« on term loan fom bank 12,79

« on Lease liabities 0.14

Fnance charges 250

Total 211.08
27 Depraclation and amor p
Pariiculars For the year ended
34 March 2021

Depreclation on Property plent and equipment 172

Amortisation of Intangitle assed 0.25

Amoriisalion of dght 19 use assels 017

Total 217
28 Losa onfalr of derleative contract
Particulars For the year ended For the yaar ended
3 March 2022 . 31 March 202
Loss on f2ir valuation of put oplions i 7.65
Total 7.56
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the standalong financial statemants for the year ended 39 March 2022
{Curmrericy: Indian rupesas in crores)

29 Other Expenses

Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2021

Advertsemant and busness promotion

445
Audlt Fees (Refer Foot Note) 048
Directors Siting Fees 048
Feas and Consultaliong 1340
Insurance 048
Loss on Sale of Property plant and equipment 0.02
Office and arga malnl harg 4,62
Power and UtiRles 4.07
Prinling, courler and alationery Q.02
Rates and Taxes 186
F [ t and conf g 0.49
Rent 106
Repairs and malnlenance 119
Security charges 0.23
Travelling and conveyance 028
Miseellaneous expenses 0.51
Tolal 29.61
Foot Nobe:
Remuneratlon to Statutory Audltors:
For the year ended For the year afidacd
Particulars 31 Mardhi 2022 31 March 2021
Statulory Audit * 0.2
Other Services # Q.08
Tax Audit 0.03
Total 0.45
* Includes fees for Imited reviews ! audit of condanzed interim financlal Information
# Includes staiulory audl feas for wholy owned subsidiany panies undear ach of I fan pending app froam MGLT
30 Tax Exponse
" For the year énded For the year anded
Partioutars _ - 31 March 2022 : 31 Warch 2021
(a) Amounts regagnlsed In profit and loss j :
Current income fax - -
Defarrad Tax (23.81) {5.88)
Mat Credlt enltiement of earlier years written off {Refar Mot {e) balow) -
Tax expense for the year {6.68)
(]! taxr Ised in other preh I
Iterns that will nol be reclassifled 10 profit or loss
Remeasuremenis of e defined benefit plans {r.41)
Equity Instruments through Other Comprahenslve Income 32.21)
Tax axpense for the yoar (32.62)
{¢) Incoma tax expensa for the year can be iled to the Ing profit as foll
Profit f (Loas) befare tax (89.13)
Tax using ha Company's domestls tax rats 26.00% (2021: 26.00%) -
Tax effect of:
Tax effect of amounts which arg not taxable in cakeulaling lexable income -
Deferred lax on falr valuation through profit or loss {3.70)
Deferred lax on Dusingss expenses {1.88)
Mal Credit entilemenl of eadler yoars witlen off (Refer Note (&) below) -
I tax [exg 1 benafit recognlised in Stat t of profit and loss 566

{d} Movement In deferred tax halances

Particulars g

Delerred lax lablly

8.81}
1641}
Particulars Met balance Recognlsedin Recognised Hat balance
1 Apcll 2020 profit or loss In QCH 31 March 2021
Defarsd tax Bablity {191.68) (668} [32.82) {220.09)
{191.68) (5.68) [32.62} [229.98)

Tha Company offsels tax assats and lablRtiss if and only if it has a legally enforceable dght lo sel off currant Lax asseta and current lax Hablites and tha daferred tax assats and deferred tax
HabHities ralate to Income taxes leviad by the same tax authority.

Stgnificant Judh I redquirad in o i pravision for income tax, deferred income tax assels and liabliles and recoverabillty of defered Income tax assets. The
reciverabiiity of deferred Income tax assets |s based on sstimales of Iaxable income and the periad over which defemed Incoms bax assats will ba recovered. Any changes in luture taxabia

incoma would impact the recoverabiily of dafiemed lax asssls.
Tax Vosses carrled forward

Deferred 1ax assels have not been recognised In raspect of unabsorbad busi losses, b K13 nat p fe thal hrlors capllsl gaing £ taxable profit will be avallable againal which
the Company can use tha kenakls therafrom,

(e} Mat Cradit entitlement of earller years writton off

The Company has declded 1o exercloe the opfion 1o be taxed under the section 115BAA of he Income-Tax AcL1961 (the Act) with effect from the financlal year ended 31 March 2022,
Tharefore, the MAT credit antilement of Rs. 28.98 crores, aceounied in the books of account wil no longer be recoverakde, Accordingly, this amount has baen written off.
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the standalone fi ial st ts for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

3 Expendture In foretgn currency {on accrual basls)

For the yaar andad
31 March 2021

Particulars

Professional fes
Training and conference expensss
Membarship and Subscripilon Expensss

o
0.07

32 Earning Per Share
Earnings Fer Share {EPS} = Nat Profit altri bis to Shareholders { Walghted Namber of Shares Qutsianding

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Particulars

(Loss} afler tax alfribolable to equily shareholders
Calculatlen of welkghted g ber of equlty sh
Numbar of equily shares at the baginning of the year
Eequity shares issued on 9 April 2020
Mumber of equily shares cutslanding at the end of the year
Weighled avarage number of equily shares culstanding during the year

©6.37)

1.017,207,662
600,000 000
1,617,307,692
1,604 157,007

Eaming Per Share — Baslc {INR) {0.60)

Earning Per Share — Diluted (NR) {0.80}

33 Contl fes and I

Particulars

T Contingent Liabliitlaa (Rofer footnotes)
Clalms agalnst the Company not acknowledged as dabts
~ Income tax demands conlested by the Company
- Indirect tax demandsa conkested by the Compeny
- Gther Legatl Claims

As at M March 2621

10,18
0.75
6.55

Foot Note:
The Campany does nol gxpect any outfiow of economie resourcas in respect of the above and therefores no provision ls made in raspect thereal,
{l) Commitments

Parilculars
{a) Indemnity for rapresentallons and warrantles for disi L in retall busl

31 March, 2021

13.5¢

{b) Bank guarantes lzsued on behalf of the Company and Its Subsidariss and Joint Venl out of the overall non fund bagad limits of the Company INR 24.58 crores {2021: INR 181,72
crores).

(&) The Company has Issued leller of comfort Lo banks In respect of loans avalied by a fow of its subskiarfes / joint venlures :

Hame of Subsldlaries / Jelnt Mawre of Comfort given

hdikads Realtors Private Limited Shorifall undartaling 10 meel any shortal during (he tenurs of facilly

{d) The Company has issuad financiat support letler to following subsidlarles ;
1) Acme Living Solutions Private Limited
2) MIA Infrastruciurg Privale Limited
3} Walkapl Faclity Managemant Services Private Limiled {Previousty known as TRL. Hospttally Private Limitad)
4} TRIF Gurgaon Houslng Projacls Private Limbed
5} Gurgaen Constructwall Privats Limitsd
&) Arrow Inlraestats Privale Limited
7) Gurgaon Realtech Limiled
) HV Famms Private Limled
9) TRIL Roads Private Limited
10} TRIL Urban Trangport Private Limlted
41} Intemaltional Infrabuilkd Prlvate Limited

{e) The Company has tssued Corporate Guarantees o bank in respect of loan avalled by & [sint venture
Name of Subskitarles / Jolnt ventutas )

Pune Solapur Expressways Privata Limisd

31 March, 2021
19740 18740

31 Margh, 2022

34 a) Capital commitmants
Pariculars

Estimated amount of contracks remaining 13 be executed on capital account and not provided for
{nel of sdvances)

. s at 31 March 2022 As sl 3 March 2024

. 038 0.2

b} Financlal commitments
Particulars . As'at 31 March 2022 °
[E 3 15 Investrnent in 0.001% Mon Cumulallve Ce ibde: P shares of . R j
TRIL Constructions Lid.

w3

As at 31 March 2021
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Hotes to the standalone i ial stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Cumency: Indian rupees in crores)

a5 The operations of lhe Company are Wisd as infrasiruciure faciiies’ as defined under Scheduls VI 1o the Acl. A fingly, the disck qui pecified in sub-seclion 4 of
Section 189 of the Act in respect of loans given, | made or given or security provided and The ralated disclosures on purposesd utllisation by reciplent companles, ore
not applicabls to ths Company.

Detalls of Investmants made by Company a3 on 31 March 2022 {including investmants made during the year)

Hame of the entity 31 March 2021 Wiveshments mad Bala of Investrnards

during the year shuriryg tha year Ind AS adjusiments M March 2022

A Momgurrert bivestments

Tuvealnent in subsldigriog
Invsralivwiit jn aquity sh

Acme Living Soluilons Privats Limiad - - - - .
Arrow Infra Eslales Private Limited 087 3,08 - 35.06 76
Gurgaon Conslructwel Privats Limtad Tam 1186 - 111.20 19698
Deemad Inyastment In Gurgaon Constructwall Private Limited G20 - - {6,209 .
Gurgaan Reatiech Limiled 58,68 4.2 - 81.35 124,26
TRIL Roads Privats Limitsd 20244 - - 42.40 324.84
Deemed Investmant in TRIL Roads Private Limited 21.50 - - 21.48 4304
TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited - - - - -
TRIL Urban Transporl Private Limbed 2037 106.40 - (32,06} 166.71
Deamed imastment in TRIL Urban Transport Private Limited - - - 16.63 19,63
Wallkapt Facilty Managament Services Private Limllad - - - - -
TRIL Constructions Limiled 20.03 - 20.93 - .
TRIL Infopark Limited 1,317.08 1,818.43 - £02.36 9,730.78
WA Infrastucture Private Limiled - - - - -
HY Farms Privale Limited 9. - - - o
Inemational Infrabuild Private Limited - - - - -
Deamed Investment in Intarnational infrabuikd Privats Limiled 59,60 - .00 (4.84) £3.87
Tl Bengalury Real Estals One Privats Limited * . - - - -
TRIL Bengalur: Consultants Private Limited * - - - - .
Trll Bengalury Real Egtate Three Privale Limited * - - - - .
TRIL IT 4 Privala Limited - H00.01 - 44.26 644.28
Infopask Propanies Limiled - LX) - - .01
1,000.861 2,510.85 30,02 205.72 673,16
* - Dengtes amounts keas than INR 50,000/-
Divesd ) ah.
TRIL Constructions Limied rag2 - 7272 - -
TRIL Infopark Limiled G28.62 - 428.82 - -
Znroa ETET
Investment Ip Dobeniures
TRIL Urban Transport Private Limied 34,02 - - 0.00) 33.93%
TRIL Roads Private Limited 411,68 2010 - (0.86) 451.68
TRIL Infopark Limiled 523.85 - 523.65 - -
HY Farms Private Limited 10.84 - - - 10.84
Inlamational Infrabuild Private Limited 1.2 - - .86 278
TRIL IT4 Private Limitzd - 110.00 - - 110.00
963,09 15076 629.95 {101} 568.94
Investinant in assoslate companfes
Ioxsalpent it sauity shares
Tata Houging Davelapment Company Limited 500.00 500.00 - 5.50 1,006,456
600.00 600.00 - 6,66 1,004,568
Iweatonent I Jolit vonbure eompanles
Investment In eauite sbareg
TRIL IT4 Private Limiled 4843 - 48043 - .
Indusival Minerals and Chemicals Campany Prvate Umited 227.85 - - 184 2080
Mikado Raaltors Prlvats Limited 215.97 - - (34,52} 191.45
933,35 - 46043 {32.6a) 41134
Invasimant In Debentures
Incustrial Mingrals and Chemicals Company Private Limited 12174 - - 1.04 12279
TRIL IT4 Privala Limited 8140 - 81.40 - -
203,14 - .40 4,04 122.78
Invastmaint I other eompanles
Inveatmenl In el L1
TRIL Sonstruclions Limlked - 2083 - (6.52) 2440
Ta) Air Limited - - - - -
- 20.53 - {5.59) 24.40
Inestment in Profersnve shares =
TRIL Constructions Limited - 7272 47.13 13,44} 12,15
. .72 47.13 (12,44 1215
B, [y sirwnls
Inyesiment ln Mutusl Fuids
Axis Overnight Fund Dirsct Growth 1.64 - 1.64 - -
HOFC Liquid Fund - Dirsct Plan - Growth Optlon 0.68 1,062,62 1,083.20 - -
ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund - Direct Fan - Growth 2300 - 23.00 - -
TATA liquic fund » Diract Flan - Growth 208.02 571,82 74003 4.21 402
25%.94 1,664.94 1,607,097 4.21 4.02
Total §,514.7% 494463 3,771.05 255.90 754232
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Motes to the fal fi ial stat te for tha year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indian rupess In ciores)

36 Digcl ¢ of iy tizig with Ratated Parties, as reguired by Inddian Accounting Standard (Ind AS} - 24 "Related Party Disch " has been set out helow:
{a) List of Related Parlies where control exlats:
Holding Company:
Tata Sons Prvate Limlted
Subsidlary Companlaa:

Acma Living Solutions Privale Limited
Amow Infraeslate Private Limitsd
Dharamshala Ropewsy Limited (subsidiary of TRIL Lfban Transport Private Limiled)
Durg Shivnath Expressways Private Limited {wholly owned subsidiary of TRIL Roads Private Limited)
Gurgaon Constructwell Privale Limlted
Gurgaon Realtech Limited
Hampl Expressways Privale Limited {wholly owned subsidiary of TRIL Roads Private Limlted)
HY Farms Prlvats Limlied
Internallonal Infrabulld Privats Limisd
Manall Ropewsy Private Limlted {subsidiary of TRIL Urban Transport Privale Limiled) {upto 31 August 2020)
Matharan Rope-Y¥ay Private Lindlled (subsidiary of TRIL Urban Transporl Privals Limited)
MIA Infraslructurs Privale Limied
TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Privaie Limited
TRIL Congtructions Limited (upto 17 November 2021)
TRIL Infapark Limied
TRIL Roads Privals Limited
TRIL Urban Transpor Private Limited
Ushit Exprassways Privale Limited {wholly owned subsidlary of TRIL Roads Private Limitsd)
Wellkept Faclity M t Servicss Private Limied
Tril Bengaluru Real Estate One Private Limited
TRHI Bengaluru Consultanis Private Limited (formeiy known as Trl Bengaluru Real Eslale Two Private Limiled)
Tal Bengaluru Real Estata Three Privata Limied
Tril Bengaluru Raeal Estate Four Private Limited (upto 21 July 2020)
TRIL iTd Privale Limied (became 100% subsldary w.af, 28ih July, 2021}
Infopark Propedies Limlted {w.e.f. 3 December 2021}

{) Jelnt Vantures:
A& T Road Ce 1 Mg, ancd O fon Private Limited (Investment is hatd by TRIL Roads Private Limlted, which is 100% subsidiary
of Tala Realy and Infrasiructure Limited) {uple 28 January 2022}
Ire i s and Chemicals Company Private Limlted
Mkade Realters Private Limited
Fune Solapur Expressways Private Limited (Investment Iz hekd by TRIL Roads Private Limited, which is 100% subsgidiary of Tata Really and
Infrasiruclura Limilad}

TRIL T4 Private Limited {JV upta 27th July, 2021}
Pune IT Clty Metro Rail Limlted

(c} Assoclate:
Tala Housing Devetopmant Company Limitad (w.a.f, 23 March 2021}

(d) Other ralated parlles with whom fransactiona have taken placs during the year:
Fallow Subskllaries:

Ewart Invesiments Limitad

Tala AlG General Insurance Limited

Tata Asset Managament Limited

Tala Communications Limiled

Tata Congultancy Serviges Limited

Tata Sonsuliing Engineers Limited

Tata Electronics Privale Limitad

Tata Telaservices Limiled

Tata Houaing Davelopment Company Limlted {up to 24 March 2021)

THOC Management Services Limlled

(e] Key Managertal Personnal;

Sanjay Dutt Managing Direclor & CED

Sanjay Sharmea Chief Financial Cfficer {upto 30 November 2021)
Bhavesh Madeka Chied Financizl Officer {w.e.F. 10 May 2022}
Sudhakar Shalty Gompany Secretary (uplo 31 March 2022)
Rashmi Jain Gompany Secretary (w.af. 1 Apr 2022)
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Tata

Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the standalons financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indian rupees in croras)

Note 36
{f) Related Party Transactions

Sr. For year ended
No. Party Name MNature of Transaction 31 March 2022 |31 March 2021
1 |Tata Sons Private Limiled a) Expenses
{Holding Company} Slaff Training expenses 011 0.12
b} Other Transactions
Recovery of Expenses 088 062
¢) Outstanding Balances Recelvables .
Other Recoverable LR 0.26
d) Outstanding Balances Payable )
towards expenses 0.05 "
2 |Acme Living Solutions Private Limited a) Outstanding Balances Recelvables )
(Subsidiary} Inter Corporale Deposit - Non-Current - Unsecured .02 0.02
3 |Arrow Infraestate Private Limited a} Income
{Subsidiany) Asset Managemeani fees 0.32 0.21
Interest on ICD 270 3.74
h) Expenses
Rent expensas 0.26 0.30
<) Other Transactions
Investments in Equity 393 -
Inter Corporate Deposits given 11.29 229,96
Inter Corporate Deposits refund received 295 21265
Recovery of Expenses * 0.00 0.00
Deposit given 0.07 -
d) Outstanding Balances Recelvables ]
Inter Corporate Deposit - Current - Unsecured 20.85 21.51
Interest Accrued but not due 243 3.46
Trade Recelvable 0.59 0.24
4 |Oharamshala Ropeway Limited a) Other Transactions
{Subsidiary) Recovery of Expenses - 0.1
b} Outstanding Balances Receivables -
Trade Recelvable 0.41 0.41
5 |Durg Shivnath Expressways Private Limited aj Income
{Subsidiary) Asset Management fees 0.15 0.13
b} Other Transactions
Recovery of Expenses * - 0.00
c) Outstanding Balances Recalvables
Trade Receivable 0.02 0.02
6 |Gurgaon Constructwelt Privaie Limited a} Other Transactions
{Subsidiary) Investmends in Equity 11.85 -
Inter Corporate Deposits given 4.77 49.30
Inter Corporate Deposits refund received 11.85 0.05
Recovery of Expenses * 0.00 0.01
b} Outstanding Balances Recelvables
Inter Corporate Deposit - Current - Unsecured 95.1 102,19
Other Recoverable® 0.00 0.00




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notas to the standalone financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 36
{f) Relatad Party Transactions

Sr. For year gnded | For year ended
No. Party Name Nature of Transaction 31 March 2032 | 31 March 2021
¥ | Gurgaon Reallach Limited a} Income :
{Subsidiary) Project Managemenl Consultancy fees 0.2 0.43
Asset Management fees 0.83 0.59
Interest on ICD 203 229
b) Expenses )
Office, common area maintenance charges 0.04 0.056
¢} Other Transactions _
Investments in Equity 4.2 -
Inter Corporate Deposits given 17.30 208,70
Inter Corporate Deposits refund received 6.45 204,00
Recovery of Expenses Q.75 0.78
Deposit given a.m -
<) Outstanding Balances Receivables
Inier Gorporate Deposit - Current - Unsecured 27.15 16,30
Interest Accrued hut not due 0.20 212
Other Recoverabls 1.47 0.66
Trade Receivable 247 0.70
¢} Outstanding Balances Payable _
Trade Payable * 0.00 0.00
8  |Hampi Expressways Private Limited a) Other Transactlona
{Subsidiary) Recovery of Expenses * - 0.00
9 |HV Farms Private Limited a} Other Transactions
{Subsidiary) Inter Corporate Deposits given 0.02 0.02
b} Outstanding Balances Recelvables
Inter Corporate Deposit - Gurreni - Unsecured 0.06 0.04
Other Recoverable 0.03 0.03
10 |{Infopark Properties Limited a) Income
{Subsidiary) Interest on ICD* (.00 -
b) Other Transactions :
Investments in Equity 2.01 -
Inter Corporate Deposits given 1.26 -
a) Dutstanding Balances Receivables
Inter Corporale Deposit - Gurrent - Unsecured 1.25 -
fnterest Accrued but nol dus * 0.00 -
11 [International Infrabuild Private Limited a) Incoma
{Subsidiany) Asset Management fees - 0.10
b} Other Transactions
Inter Corporate Deposils given 3.0 39.61
Inter Corporate Deposils refund recefved 3.10 1.36
Recovery of Expenses 0.25 0.28
¢} Outstanding Balances Recelvables
Inter Corporate Deposit - Mon-Cutrrent - Unseciired 133.97 134.07
Other Recoverable 0.73 0.33
Trade Receivable - .10
12 |MIA Infrastructure Private Limited a} Qutstanding Balances Receivables
{Subsidiary) Inter Corporate Deposit - Non-Current ~ Unsecured [eX1}] 0.01
Other Recoverable 0.32 0,33
13 | TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited a) Outstanding Balances Receivables
(Subsidiary} Inter Corporale Daposit - Non-Current - Unsecured 0.02 0,02
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Tata Realiy and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the standalone flnancial statements for the year endad 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 36
{f} Related Party Transactions

For year ended

Sr. For year ended
No. Party Name Mature of Transaction 31 March 2022 |31 Warch 2021
14 |TRIL Constructions Limited a} Income :
{Subsidiary) {upto 17 November 2021) Interest on ICD 1.19 1.85
b} Othar Transactions
Inter Corporate Deposits given 0.26 0.44
inter Corporate Deposits refund received 18.88 -
¢} Dutstanding Balances Receivables
Inter Corporate Daposit - Current - Unsesurad - 0.44
Inter Corporate Daposit - Non-Current - Unsecurad - 18.18
Interast Accrued but not due - 3.99
Other Recoverable 204 205
15 |TRIL Infopark Limied a) Income
(Subsidiary) Project Management Consultancy fees - 1.79
Assel Management fees 48.73 10.02
Lease mapagement fees -
Flnance facility arrangement fee -
Interest Incoma on CCD 0.02 0.03
b} Other Transactions
Recovery of Expenses 2.46 0.01
¢} Quitstanding Balances Raceivables
Interest Accrued but not due * - 0.00
Trade Receivable 8.12 2.54
16 |TRIL Roads Privale Limited a) Income ]
{Subsidiary) interest on ICD 11.64 . 11.64
ib} Other Transactions
Investments in OCDs 20.73 33.20
Proceeds from maturity of OCDs 0.01 -
Inter Corporate Deposits glven 26.81 56.21
Racavery of Expenses - 0.01
¢) Outstanding Balances Receivables
lnter Corporate Deposit - Non-Current - Unsecured 370.28 343.47
Interest Accruad but not due 10.48 10.77
17 |TRIL Urban Transpor Private Limiled a} Expenses
(Subsidiary} Faas & Consultancy expenses - 0.05
b} Other Trangactions
Invesiments in Equity 108.46 54.39
Inter Corporate Deposits given -80.4% 43.08
Inter Corporate Deposits refund recelved 4.50 48.30
Recovery of Expenses - 0.33
Employee benefit transfer - 1.52
Provision for Inter Coporate Deposit 0.95 0.95
¢} Outstanding Balances Recelvables
inter Corporate Deposit - Non-Currenl - Unsecurad 117.16 3217
18 |Tdl Bengaluru Real Estate One Private Limited a) Other Transactions
{Subskdiary) Inter Corporate Deposlts given 0.01 -
Investments in Equity * - 0.00
1) Quistanding Balances Recelvables 0., -

Infer Corporate Deposit - Current - Unsecured

>




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the standalone financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in croras)

Nots 36
{f) Related Party Transactions

Sr.

No. Party Name

Nature of Transaction

For year ended

For year endad

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

19 |TRIL Bengalwu Consultants Private Limited

{ifermmandy known as TRIL Bengalury Rao! Estole Twe Privels Linied )
{Subsidiary)

a) Other Transactions
Inter Corporate Deposits given
Invesiments in Equity *

by Outstanding Balances Recelivables
Inter Corporate Deposit - Currant - Unsecured

0.01

0.04

0.00

20 |Tril Bengaluru Real Estate Three Private Limited
{Subsidiary)

a) Invastments in Equity *
Investments in Equity *

b} Outstanding Balances Receivables
Inter Corporate Deposit - Current - Unsecured

o0

0.01

0.00

21 | TRIL IT4 Private Limited
(Subsidiary we.f, 286 July 2021}

a} Income

Project Managernent Consultancy fees
Asset Management Fees

interest on NCDs

b} Ouistanding Balances Receivables
Interest Accrued but not dua
Trada Recoverable

0.08
1.25
13.34

0.87
0.26

22 [lichit Expressways Private Limited
(Subsidiary}

a) Income

Project Managemenl Consultancy fees
Asset Management fees

b} Other Transactions
Recovery of Expenses

c) Outstanding Balances Receivables
Trade Raceivable

6.03

0.76
0.13

0.02

23 |TRIL 1T4 Private Limited
{Joint Veniure upto 27 July, 2021}

a) Income
Asset Management Fees
Interest an NCDs

b} Other Transactions
Investments in Equily
Recovery of Expenses *

¢} Qutstanding Balances Recelvables
Intarest Accrued but not due
Trade Recoverable *

0.78
478

0.29

1.69
14.65

0.00

0.00

24  |Mikado Realtors Private Limited
(Joint Venture)

a) Income
Project Managament Consultancy fees

b) Other Transactions
Recovery of Expenses

¢) Qutstanding Balances Receivables
Trade Receivable

206

2.02

0.03

205

25 |Pune Solapur Exprassways Private Limited
(Jaint Venture)

a) Other Transactions
Recovery of Expenses *

0.00

26 }Pune IT City Metro Rail Limiled
{Joint Venture)

a} Other Transactions
Recovery of Expenses

b) Outstanding Balances Recelvables
Other Recovarable

0.34

0.53

Wl
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the standalone flnanclal statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: indian rupees in crores})

Note 36
{f) Related Party Transactions
Sr. "For year ended | For year endad
No. Party Name Nature of Transaction 37 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
27 [Tata Housing Development Company Limited a) Expenses
{Assoclate) IT common cost Expenses 268 -
b} Other Transactions .
Recovery of Expensas 4.82 4.05
Investments in Equity 500.00 500.00
¢} Outstanding Balances Receivables
Other Recoverable 0.27 1.56
d) Outstanding Balances Payable .
Other Payable . 289 -
28 |Ewart Investments Limited a) Other Transactions
{Fellow Subsidiary) Sale of Investments * - 0.00
20 |Tata AlA Life Insurance Company Limited 2) Exponses
{Fellow Subsidiary) Insurance expenses 0.31 -
30 |Tata AlG General Insurance Limited a} Expenses
{Fellow Subsidiary) Insurance expenses 017 0.0
31 |Tata Communications Limited a) Expenses
{Fellow Subsidiary) Leassline expenses 0.18 [sX41]
b) Outstanding Balances Payable
Trade Payable - 0.00
32 [Tata Consultancy Services Limited a) Expanses h
{Fellow Subsidiary) Information Technology and outsource expanses 3.48 0.39
k) Other Transactions
Purchase of property, plant and equipment - 0.26
¢} Cutstanding Batances Receivables
Trade Receivable 3.02 .69
dj Outstanding Balances Payable 0.08 -
Trade Payable
33 [Tata Consuting Engineers Limited a) Expenses
{Fellow Subsidiary) Feas & Consultancy expenses 212 1.63
b) Other Transactions
Deposit given - 0.02
¢} Outstanding Balances Payable
Trade Payable . 0.07
34 {Tata Electronics Private Limited a) Other Transactions
{Fellow Subsidiary) Recovery of Expenses * - Q.00
35 |Tata Teleservices Limited a} Expenses
{Fellow Subsidlary} Leassline expenses 0.03 0.03
b) Outstanding Balances Payable
Trade Payable 0.1 -
368 |THDC Management Services Limited a} Other Transactions
{Fellow Subsidiary) Recovery of Expenses - 0.16
37 |Key Managerial Personnsl |Remuneration to KMP
Sanjay Dutt # 8.04 6.69
Sangay Sharma 2,78 282
Sudhakar Shedly 1.47 1.03
* - Denotes amount less than INR 50,000/~
# - Remuneration io KMP does not include provisions for encashable ieave, gratulty and premium paid for group health insurance, as separate acturial valuation f premium paid

delails are not availabla. Also recovery of manageral remuneration from faliow subsidiary is not netted off for Ihis disclosure.

W



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the standal financlal stat ts for e year anded 31 March 2022
{Curréncy: Indian mipess in croras)

37 Segment Reporting
Tha G y s { In davel of real aslate and Infrastuciure facilies for lential use and projact managemenl concullancy servces for real estale and Infrastruciurs
development. Thus, the Company Is | In ihrge busi viz. development of residential property for oulright sale, project t and ltancy services and
Invesiment and Lending services. Further, the Company Is angaged in providing services In domestls markel ondy. Hence, there are no sepatale reportable gecgraphical seaments.

and Lending saryigaa Talal

Toval E rosideniial property Tt
sole
© 31 March 2022 31 Manch 2021

22. 31 Marah 2021 31;h_|_al¢h 2021

REVENUE

Het sales i . i M

Segment Revenus 10182 & B ! 165469 2124
Inter segmenl sales : - -
Total revanus 104,62 ; : - 164.60 .21
Segment Expenses B6.60 ;- 185.40
RESULT

Begment Resull 108,10 135,81
Unalooated ncona - 1.28
Unallaoated expenses - 1453
Operating Profll f {Loss) 108,19 12256
Financa costy 24108 - 211.08
Depreckation f Amonisation 101 - 247
Hat Profit {{Loss ) {103.90) {90.88)
OTHER INFORMATION

ASSETS

Segment Aseets 276.15 B,316.75 #,622.26
LUnaBocaled assels - 548,54
Total Ascots 2reas 8.316.¥5 0,676.00
LIABILIMES

Begment Liablilifes 3,024.89 3,085.19
Unallocated Liabilities - B6R.04
Tolal Liabllilss 3,024 .80 . 3034.22
Cost incumad to acqulrs Sagment

properdy, plant and agulpnient 7812
Huiteg the year

Segment accounling policles are In line wilh accounting policies of the Company. In addilon, the following specific accountng policles have baen followed for segmeant reporting:

Segment revenue Includes inceme directly identilable wilh the segments,

Expensas lhal are direcly ldentiflakla with the seg ars idered for d ining the sagment result. Expensses which relate to the Company a5 & whole and not aliocable to segments and expenses

which relate b the operaling eclivilles of the segment but are Imp 10 aflocale to the are included under "Unallocable expenses”.
Incoma which relales to Ihe Company as a whole and not allogable to segments ks includad o Unalocable Incomy and nefled off from Unallocable expenses.

Seqgmenl assels and Rabiles include those direclly identlliable with the respscive seqmenis. Unallocable corparate assels and liabililes reprasent e 23sels and llabliles that relate 1o the Company as &
whale and nol alleczble ko any segment,

\o2



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the standatone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Curmrency; indian rupees in crores)

38 Employee Beneflts:
(it The Company has adopled Ind AS 19 on "Employee Benellis™ as prascrbad by the Companies (Indian Atcounting Standards} Rules, 2015 issuad by lhe Cantral Govemmant.

(i} Contrlbution to Provident fund

31 March 2021
Contribulion to provident fund gnissd as an exp 118
benahils®. .
{1} Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuley
The Company has a delined benellt gratulty plan. Evary employes who has compl five years or mora of service gels a gratulty on death or

| or t 1 a3 per the Payment of Gralully Act, 1972 wilth no celling,

3% March 20325 1 31 March 2021

| Changa In tha defined benefit obligation
Liabilify at the heglnning of tha ysar

Interest cost
Current service coat 0.60
Eenelils pald {0.15}
Acluarial loss on obligations {1.56)
Llabiily acquired on acquisition f (sefiled on Divestiurs) -
Liahlfity at ihe end of the year 2.8
RA Recognlsed in the Bal Shest
LiablRiy al the end of lhe year s
Fair Valua of Plan Assets at the end of the year -
Difference 281
Amount recagnised in the Balance Sheet 281
Exf Recognlsed in the t of profit and loss
Current Service Coat 0.50
Interest Cost 1]
Expected Relurn on Flan Assels -
Nal Actuarial (Gain) / Loss To Ba Recognised {1.66}
Past service cost
F R Ised in the stat 1 of profit and loss 0.95)
Balance Sheet Reconclilation
Cpening rel liablily a8
Expensa as above 10.85)
Employer's contribution recelved / (pakd} {0.15)
A ised In Bal Sheet 2
Actuarlal Assumplions :
Discount Rale £.90%
Salary escalation ~ 9.00% B.00%
Altrilan Rale - 20.00% 16.00%
Eslimales of fulure salary increasas, consklerad in acluarlal valation, take t of Inflation, senlority, p lon anr other relevant factors, stich a3 supply and demand in the
amployment markel.
The Company’s liabdlly on account of graluity 18 nol lunded and hence, Ihe disclosures relating 1o the planned assets ara nol applicable.
Experlence Adjusimenis: 3 Mafsh-2022 | 31 March 2021
Deflnad benafit cbiigallan B 368 281
Plan assets "
Surplus f (Dalcit) f2.81)
Experience adjusimant on plan labllites -
Experience adjusimant on plan assets -
Sensitivity analysis
The sengltivity of Ihe dslined bansiit obligallon as al the balance shest dale, W a change ko one of the rel fuarl ptions, holding other assumplions constant, wotkd have

affacted tha definad bensfit obligafion by the amounis shown below:

Impace on definad bunafit obEgation
31 March 2021 1 March 2021

Impact on d::uﬁr:n:e:i henefit obliga
3 March 2022 . MM

Deatrease Increase
Discount rate { +/+ 0.50% movement) 2.8% 2.7%
Salary hatlan { -+ 0.60% i) 2.7% 2.8%
Allritlon Rate [ -4+ 50% novement) Q7% ~7.3%

(v} Other lony term employment benefila
Compenzgaied absences

Tha liabiify g5 Comp d ab for the year ended 31 March 2022 racognlsed in the Balance Sheet based on acluarial valuatlan using the projected unll eredit methad
amounled to INR 4.86 crores (2021: INR 4.27 crores).

e



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the standalone i fal stat ta for the year ended 31 March 2022
[Currency: Incilan rupess in crores)

39 Financial instruments - Fair vatues and risk management
AL Ascounting classification and fair values
The following lable shows the carrying ameunts and fair vales of inancizl assets and financlal lkabikfles, ncluding their levels in the fair valug hlgrarchy. it does nal Include fair value information for financial
assets and financlal lisbiiies If the camying amount ke a reasonable approxmation of falr value, The Cempany's secured [oan under current maturilles has besn contracted ot Soating rales of Interest, which are
raget at short Inbarvals. Accordingly, the catrying value of such long-tetm dabt approximates fair valse.

Carrylng amount Falr valug
FYTR Level 1+ Quotod pree Lovel 2 - Bigniftoant  Laved 3 - Slgnificant
31 March 2022 - Evroa Amortised Goat Total In acilve marketa ohsarvabla Inpuls  unchservelde iyuts Total

Finanoial assats
Ron-curront financial asssts

- Equity instnaments in - 6,825,658 - 5,020.58 - - ,B28.68 6,626.56
subsidiarss, (it venures,

assodiate and ciher enfilles

- Pralarence eharas - - - - - - - -
- Debeanturas 47804 12278 190,00 TILTE - - i1} B 60472
Loans 42209 - - 423,83 - - 422.00 423.93
Oiher nen-cuprent Imanclal assels - . 001 (XL} - - - -

Current flranclal asseis

Crarenl Investments 102 - - 4.02 402 - - 442
Trada recalvables - - 12.07 12,67 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalenis - - 7608 Ta.08 - - - -
Shod-tarm loans and sdvantes - - 156,45 168,48 - - - -
Other financial asssls - - 20,66 20,08 - - - -
Total Finanolal Assels 20689 8,049,396 37640 4,232.95 442 - 765222 785024

Finanzial Dabllitles

N t Flnancial linbHib
Long-testn borrowings - - 102333 1,023,323 - - - -
Oither linanclal latdies - - 115 115 - - - .
Currart Financial liahilities -
Short-tamm borrowings - - A,031.74 300174 - - .
Treda and olkar payables - - 38.62 28.52 - - - -
Other financkal liaklkisz - - 7726 7725 - - -
Tedal Financial Lishilkles - - 4,171.99 417109 - - - -

Canrylng amount Fair value

4 Lave? 1 - Quolad prica Levet 2 - Signllloant Lovol 3 - Skinkioant

#1 Heeah 2024 FVTFL FyToct Hized Soat Total In activa markels cheervalde inputs  unchsarvable Inpula Total

Financial assals
Nemcurrent finonalzl aasets

- Equliy Instramernts n - 330006 - 3,300.00 - - $,202.00 356008
substdiaries, joint ventures and

assoclate

- Prafarance sharas - 0134 - 013 - - 701.34 701,34
- Debanlures 4530 121.74 .40 1,185.15 - - 1,104,75 1,104,76
Loans 505.08 - - S05.06 - - 50506 50508
Cither non-eument linancisl asaels - - ool 0 - - . -

Currand finanaial aasets

Currant inveslmants 233,34 - - 232.34 2§34 - - 2333
Trade receivables - - 1012 0.4 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalonts - - 14847 140.47 - - - -
Othver Bank Balancss - - - - - - - -
Shorelenn loans and advances - - 153 153 - - - -
Othew nanclal assets . - 24.8% 24 86 - - - .
Total Flnoncial Assels 1,721.41 4,217.04 28739 9,205.94 233.34 = 5, 105.10 5,9M8.44
Financial Rabilifias

Non-currest Financlal llablitos

LangHem bomawings - - 184325 1,843.25 - - - .
Other {inanctal fiakikies - - 126 128 - - - -
Guyrent Financlol llabltitkes

Shat-lann barmowings - - 1,381 64 1,301.64 - - - -
Trade and ciher payshles - - 35 751 - - - -
Othew linanclal kabdliy ra.re - 29518 28084 - - T TBTS

T2.78 L 3,278.06 3,367.62 - - TETS TBT6

FVTPL ; Fair valued throwgh prafil or tosa
FVTOC] : Fair valued through other comprahensiva Insoma

s



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limlted
Notes to the lalong financial ts for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indlan nupees in crores)

B. Maasurament of falr valuas
Valuation tochiiques and slgllll‘lnm unchyorvabk Inpuls

The has af Janl vablr to d Ine the lair value of each of [l investmenls. The Company has given cerlaln inohasivable inpuls (o the velwer o computs the vak C lering micre marker and
Indisstry acenatie the veluer has derived val by Lsing appropd hndue for vall The Company has aocounted fair vakiation gain f o5 in valus of its Investments using this report and in certain ceses based on prca
of recent Iinsaclions (Refer Mele 5),

The follawdng labls shows Lhe L hnlques Lsed In ring Laval 2 and Lovel 3 [ir valuss for financial Instumsnts measured al fair value i he statsment of finanolal positian as well as the significam uncbzervable
inputs Lged

Finanolal Iu;mmnrnu measured at fair value

Type

Valuallon tachnlque

Significant
uncsarvahle Inptis

Inter-relallonahip between
signilleant uncbservable npuls
and fair value messurament

Unquoled  eqully  sharss {TRIL
Infepark: Linited )

CRscounted cagh fow DCF mathod Is & financlal
modelling technique baged on axplict assumplions regarding the
mospeciive incame arising out of the stl:jeci property. Incaseof a
waluation of & large land parcel, where tha d

* Renl growth every three yeers (%) 20220 12% -
1B%5), {2024 12% - 18R
* Stablised Ceoupanay (%) 2022: 95% (2024: B4

is
lover & period of imea {i.e. time vakue of money r.omes Into he pleture) and
alsg nhelelhale ara no or few imedate similar praperties {l.o.

DCF method

for relevant
of the project Is uged,

Ungaisted aquily shares {TRIL 1T4
Private Limked}

Unguedad equity shares|
flntsinationsl  nfrebulid  Privats
Limhed)

Unquoted edquily shares (Mikado,
Realiors Privale Livied)

Ungquoted equity sheras (Gurgaon|
Realach  Limfled £ Amow
Infragstate  Privals Limilad [
Gurgaon  Conglruchwall  Privetg
Limitad)

4 éspila]lzallun Rate - Commergial | %) 2022: 8%
(2021: B.6% - 5.0%)

* Capllalizalion Rale - Senvice Appanimenls &
Carwenlion Cenlre (%) 2022; B.5% (2021! 5% -
9.0%}

Eslinaled fale vahie wauld icreass (deoraass) il enpacted lase
ranl weara higher llovwed} Estimatad Talr vahie would [naorsass

{d ) il axpeotad [aace dation were higher

{lowes} Eslimated fai valus would dsorease ifnwupamy la low
Estimatad lair valus wolld i
rate were |swar fhighet),

* Rentgromth every Ihres years (%) 2022 12% -
10% (2021: 12% - 19%)

M Stah]lsed Qocupancy (%) 2022, 06% {2021:
94

: Gapita!lmﬂnrl Rats (%) 2022: £,6% (2021: 8% -
5.5%)

* Rant growlh evety thesa ysars (%) 2022 12% -
8% (2021 12% - 18%).

* Cueupaney (%) 2022 - ~67% ;{2021 7% }

* Caplalizalion Rala (%) - Mol applloable

* Rent promth every lhrep years (%) 2022 1 12% -
18%; (2021: 12% - 10%}

* Stahllieed Oeclpanty (%) 2022 : 66%; (2021:
H4%)

* Capitalization Rate (%) 2022: 0%; (2021 8.6% -
[0.5%)

* Rant growth svsry free yeans (%) 2022; 12% -

18% (2021: 12% - 18%).

* Slabakised Ocoupanoy (%} 2022 1 06% ; (2021

%)

* Coaplalzallon Rate (%) 2022 | 8% ; {2021: 2.0%
1.0%}

Dlscounlad Cash Flow (DCF) : The DOF Mothod values the business by

Unquoted equlty shares  [Tata)
Housing Development corgany
Limiled}

its frae cash flows for the explick ferecast period and lhe
perpelulty vakse theraafter, The fres cash flows represent the sash
avaabie for distribullon to bolly Ihe owners and the creditors of the
businesa, The fres cash llows ars discoumled by Weighted Avarags Cost ol
Capllal (WAGG'), Tha WACC raprasenis the returns expectad by the
investors of balh debil and eqully, welghtad for hair relallve Linding In the
enllly. Tha presenl value of the frea cash ows during the explisil padod
and the perpelully value indlcala the value of the business.

* Sallling Price Esoalatlon ; 3-5%,
Goslof Eqully : 12.6%

WAGS Rate : 17.6%

Temvnal Growth Rare : 2%

{2021 NAY

Estimated agulty valus woukd kicresse (decragaw} I axpacied
anlling prios ware higher (lower). Estimatsd sdquity valus would
Incranss {decrsase) il axpected sost of equily wers highar Jower).
Ezlimaled equily value would decrease If cosl Is increase.
Ezlmaled equily value would Increase (decreass) il WACC /
Growth rate wera tower {higher),

Unmquoted  equity
o o T

shares &) Dk

d cash flow
[

lque: DCF lysiz ls a Ananclal

L} ¥

Dek m

based on explick assumptions regarding the

and Chemicals Private Limiisd)

Inegme arlsing outof the auh]eat |:|r\:|pe|1:|r In caze of a

valuallon of & large [and pareel, where the Iis
over a perlod of B (i.e. ime value of money comes inta he piclure) and
alsowhera there are no or few immediate simllar properbas fi.e.

Tachniue - Land Comparlsan Methed has bean
used for vahallon.

'Esﬂmatad Fair valus would Inoreasef [dacrease] if [air valus of
land increases! decreasas,
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HY Fams Prvate Limlted

The vahie of the plaln vanilla debenivre ks generally actimated aa present
valua of ftura sxpacied cash Nows, The Companyhas used Monte Cora

* Volatiity of sliare price of cotnparsbla
Hol

Gimulation to estimate the falr vakie of the i

| and opllanall Tl dek

compantes - Volatlity Mol applleabls (2021
Applicable )

Type VYelualon lochnlque Slynifice Inter-relationahlp belwesn
uncheeryalde Inputs signifieant uncbasrvable Inputs
andl falr velue measurament

I in unlzled aoy
dabt i nts
Opllonally & Fully C el The value of the plain vanills debeniure is genarally ealimated as prasent  |* WolalRily of share price of companatle *If Equuity valus of urllsied company Inoreasesf{decreases) by
Deabantwas. TRIL Roads Private|value of fulure expected cash flows. The Company hes ised Monts Cade  [companies @ 2022 ; 50.10% of volatllity (2021 10%, theh fair valus would (decreasalincrease.” If (hare s an
Limiled Simulation ko estinmate the fair value of the compulsorly convedtible BTO5 %) incresize / (dadrease) of 10% volatlity b share prices of

d and l compamtts companies , than the fakr value woukd

increasafdecreasa)

Cptionally C: hle Debant,

"Il Eqjuily valus of unlisted company increasesi{dacreases) by
10%, 1hen fabr value would {decrease)inorease.” i lhere is an
Inoreass : (daamase}oi 10% volaiily In share prices of

s thenthe falr value would

Deabertures- TRIL Infopark Limied

inoreacal{dacraaze)
Oplicnally C tibla D The velus of the plain vanllla debenture is genesally ealimated as prasant  [* Volatilly of share price of comparable *If Equily vahue of unlisted cotnpaty incrsasesi{dacreases) by
TRIL Urban Transpot Privale] valus of fulure sxpected cash Nows. The Campany has bsed Manle Cado | companies : 2022 : 50.10 % of volallity (2021 - 0%, then fair vakte would (decressa)incraase™ I thers ks an
LImlied 1o aslimate the fak valua of the computsarly conver|ble B7.06 %6} Incregse f {decreasa} of 10% volallily in shate pricas of
fet and af ¥ it 4 cotnparable compardas. , Than the ke velus would
e e O 1. A f{d 1)

* Volatllity of ghare price of
coumpanies - 2022 ¢ MA (2021 ¢ 40,46 % of
volatility)

Fully Convaitible Preferenca

‘The value Is generally estimaled as presanl value of luturs expecied cash

* Volatiy of shara price of comparable

*F Eqully vahia of unlistad company increasesi{deoreases) by

Zhares- TRIL [nfopark Limiled News, The Company haa vaed Munta Oalto Sirmulatlon Lo esth the falr P02 WAL 2021 : 40.A5% of 10%, Ihan [alr vahe woukl increasefdecrease),
value of the I: p and oplionall il lilly)
preferanca shares * I there s an lncrease f {decreasa) of 10% volatisy in share
pricas of comparable campanies , then ile 1air value woukd
deorease,
[Fully Convenitie Preferance The valua (s genamlly aslimated as prasent value of fulure ted cash | Technlque - Land Gornpatison Method has bsan  |If Equity value of urlisted company ncreases/{decreases) by 10%,
Shares- TRIL Construclions fiows., The Company has uged Monte Gath Simutation ko eshmaie the fal’ ysed for valuation, thadi fair value would (decrease)increase.
Limiled valua of the compulanrily and opil
eferance shares
Derivallve ~Ful oplion
Tarmil Nedu Ind T bon | The Coinpany has used Monle Carla Sinwlation ko estimate he fal value  |* Voloklity of share price of comparable *If Equity valus of unilsled company moreasasfdecraases) by
Limsited {“TIDGO™) Pt oplicn of the opllons, companles ; 2022 ; NA (2021 42.72% of 10%, Ihen fair valus would {deorsasalincraase.” If theve |3 an
volatiiy) Increage { (dacrsase) of 10% volatility in share pices of
compamsble comganies | than tha Fair vatus would
increasafidacraase)
P! coll

The indfany Holsls Company
Litited (1HCL") Call oplion

The Company has usad Monte Caro Simulation to estimale the lalr vaka
of tha options.

* Volallly of share price of comparakle
companies: 2022 | MA (2021 ; 42,10%, of volatiily)

*Il Equily value of unlisled company [nereasas/{dacraases) by
IO% then Ralr valus would {decreaselinorease.” If there iz an

1 fd 3 of 10% volality n share prioes of
camparable eompanles , hen tha falr valus would
increasaf{dacreasa)

Amaricad cost lype llems

{inclutling sacurlly deposits, loans
. eash , Irade receivables and
payables )

h: The val el
4l bed using & risk,

Lha prasenl
1 discownl fate,

value of

Mot applicakle

Mot applleabbe

\WY




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the standalons ial staf iz for the year ended 31 barch 2022
{Cumency; Indian rupses In crares)

40 Discl in raspect of Sale of Residential Flats
o elnrespecl of C Contact

For the yaar andad
31 March 2021

Parlleulars 2 yéar endad

Conlracl anisad as revenue duning Ihe year 95.69

JParliculars
FT] Pr——
Cumulative costs recognised
Fa— o) e
Advances pald
Relenlion monay payable

. Asal3lWarch2021
1,374.81 1.300.70
954.72 919.62
40979 381.08
071 205
0.50 170

41 Financlal instrumants —Falr values and risk managemant
() FInanclal risk management
Tha © has exp tor the Following risks arlsing rom financial instruments:
A. Cran risk
B. Liquidity risk
C. Market risk

Risk managament framework

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the st and ovarsight of the Company's risk management framework. The Company manages miarket rish mrouuh
a lreasury dep wihkh aval and 4 F condral over the anllre process of marted risk management. The lreasun«' dap L recc risk

objeclivas and policies, which ars approved by Board of Directors, The aciivilles of this depart Include g of cash rasources, b g sirategies, and g compli

with market risk limlls and policies.

The Compary's risk management policles are established to idenlrfy and analysa the risks faced by the Company, to sst appropriate sk imits and conirgls and to monilor risks and

adherence lo IImIls Rls‘k W t policies and syst ara larty to raﬂect In market condittons and the Company’s aclvites, The Company, fhrough Hs Iralning
and 15 and p dl alms to mantain a disclplined and llve contred sn In which al employess understand thelr roles and abligations,
The Board of Direclore oversees how management monitors compliance wilh the company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews Lhe adequacy of the risk F |

framework In relation to the tisks facad by the Company. The Boerd ks assisted in its oversighl role by Intemal audiL Intemal audit undariakes both regular and ad hoo reviews of risk
managamant controls and procadures, e resulls of which are reported to the Board of Directors.

A. Credit Rlsk

Cradil sk is the risk of financial lass to the Company il a customer or counlemanty o a fnandlal instrument falls ko meel its contraciual abligallons, and aises prncipally from e Company’s
recalvables from customers, loang and advanceas io relaled parties and invesiments at amoutised cost Credlt dsk is managed through cradit apprcwah establshlng credit Imils and
continuousty monltoning the credi of cush o which the Company grants credlt #2rms In the normat course of busk The € for doutstul

debls and impaiment that represents ils estimate of incurred losses In respect of rada and ofher fvailes, [ans and ad and inveslment

Trade and other recelvables

The Company's exdposng to credil sk |s infuenced mainly by the Individual lslics of each cust The: di hics of the customer, including the defaull risk of the industry
and country in which the customer oparakas, skso hag an influenge on credit risk assessmant. Credk rlsk is managed through credil approvals, eskablishing coedit limits and continualsly
monitoring the creditworlbiness of customers & which the Company granls credit terms In the normal courss of business.

Credi rigk forr k Ining to residential busgi

The risk for trade rscelvables pertalnlng to residentlal busi Is considered nil a3 the pe ion of lhe residential property |s transferred only after the recelpt of payment from Lhe

cushamer,

Summary of the Company's & ra ko craditrisk by age of the outstanding from varlous cuslomers Is as lollows:

Particulars Ag ot 31 March 2022 As ot 31 Margh 2021
Pasl cdus 0-180 tdays : : 683
Pasl dus 181-285 days 207
Pasi dus 386-730 days 013
Past dug 7311095 days -
Past due move than 1095 1.10

10.13

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company held cash and bank balances with cradi worthy banka and fnancial Instiullons of INR ¥8.88 crores and INR 149.47 crores a5 ab 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

respeciively. The cradil worhiness of such banks and financial inst ls by the g n an Ing basis and is considersd lo be good,
Darivatives
The durivatives ar anterad Info with credlt worthy counterpatties. Tha ered|l worthi is evalaled by e oh an Ing basls and is Idared to be good.

Sacurity deposits given to lessors
The securily deposil majorly pertains (o renl deposit amounting 3 IMR 0,81 croras and INR 0,63 croves as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 respectively. Tha Company doss not
expact any lossas from non-performance by theses counter-parlles.

o
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B. Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk |5 the risk fhat the Company will not be able to mest ils financial obhigations as they becoms due. The Company manages s llquidily sk by ensuring, as far as possible, thai it
will abways heve aulficient Bavidily to meet ke llakilitles when due, undar bolh nonmal and siressed conditions, without incuwring unacceptable lesses or dzk 19 the Company's reputation,

The Company has obitained fund and nen-fund based working capltal lines from banks, commerclal papers Issused 1o Mutval finds and through lssue of debentures .The Company also
constantty monktors funding options avallable In the debt and capilal markels with & view b maintalining financial flexiblilty.

Expogurs to liguidity risk
The lable below analyses ha Company's financial flabifiles o relevant maturlty groupings based on thair contracliral maturilles for:
* all non derivalive inanclal Rabliliss

* net and gross selled detlvalive fl fal i 2 for which the | maturllles ara flal for the understanding of tha liming of the cash fiows,
Contraclual cash flows
As at M March, 2022 Carrylng amount Tolat 1 year or less -2 yaars 2-§ years Move than
& years
Hon-derlvative financlal llabiides
Commerclal paper lssued to 1,796.83 1,820.00 1,820.00 - - -
mutual funds
Trade and other payahlas 38.52 38,52 35,52 - - -
Olher financial Fablites 7840 7840 T8AQ - - -
Mon converlible debentures 1,968.24 1,970.00 945.00 400.00 €25.00 -
4171.99 4,196.92 3171.92 400,00 625,00 -
Darivative financlal Habillties
Derivalives Babiitles at fair - - . . . -
valug
Contractual cash Howa
As a1 2% Margh, 2021 Garrying amount Total 1 yaar or less 1-2 years 2-B ygars More than
5 years
Mon-derlvallve financlal Nlabllilles
Commerclal paper issued to 657.92 675.00 G75.00 - - -
mulual funds
Trade and other payables 37.51 ey | 3781 - - -
Othar financ|al Babililles 21640 21646 21646 - - -
Hon converilble debentures 2,366.90 237000 725,00 - 1,645.00 -
3,278.06 3,208.97 1,663.7 - 1,645.00 :
Derivative financial liatifities
Darivalives Bablities at falr VB.16 7876 78,76 - - -
valug
F4.76 78.76 78,76 - - -

Tha inflows#{outfiows) disclosed in the above table represent the conlraciual undiscounted cash Nows relating to derivative fnancial BablRies hetd for risk management purpeses and which
are nof usualy clossd oirt beforg contractual malurily. The disclosure shows niet cash fiow amounts for derlvalives that ara net cash-satted and grosa cash inflow and outow amounts for

that have si gross cash sstilemenl.
G. Markalrisk
Marlcet risk Is the ﬂsk that manges In market pﬂcss such ag foreign exchange rates, interesl rates and aqulty prices — will alfect the Companys income or the vaiug of its hokdings of
The G y is d in inclla and has s and olher (r Hons In its functonal La. INR. A gly tha & y {5 not ext o any
currancy risk.

{I1} Intarast rate risk
Interest rale risk k the risk that e fair valg or futire cash flows of & fi lad insin 't will fh h of changes in markst intargst rates. The Company's exposura o markst risk
for changes In Intaresl rales ralates o fxed deposits and bo gs from fi ki

Exposiure to Interast rate rigk
The: interast rate profile of the Company's intereskbeaﬁrg i ialinslrumenis is as follows:

Farficulars As al 31 March 2022 B As at 31 March 2021
Zeen-rate Insiruments
Financial assets 495773
Financial [kabiliies 332,73
Flxad-rate Ingtrumuants
Financial assets 1.240.11
Financial liablitles 302489

Varlable-rate Instruments
Financial assets
Financlal Kabliles

ttorast rate senstlvity - fixed rate Instruments

The Gompany does not account for any Ixed-rate financial assets or financlal Rebifiles al fair value hrough profil or foss, and the Company does nut have any designats derivatives

(interesl rahe swaps) axcept for cerian invesimants In oplionatly converilble insiruements, where the Company has usad hMonta Carlo simul lo d ina halr falr values
the vty | g 1o risk frea rais will not have any impact on thalr falr vahes.

Therafore, a change In Inberest rates al the reporing date would not allect profit or lass for any of these fixed intarast beardng nancial instruments.
Interest rate senstivity - varlable rate instruments

The SCompany s having onby fixed rate bhorrowings and flxad rata bank deposits which are camled &t amorlised cosl. They ars Tharefors not stibjest b infarast rate sk as dalinad In IND AS
107, since neither the carrylng amount nor the fdure ¢ash fiow will Aucluate because of a change in market Interest rales,
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42 Capital Managament

for the year ended 31 March 2022

The Company's policy is to maintaln a sirong capltal base 6 as to maintsin Invastor, creditor and market confidence and Lo sustaln future devalopment of the business. It $ets the amount of
capital required on the basks of annual business and long-term operaling plans which Incuda capital and clher stratsgle investments.

The funding réquirements are mal through a mixlre of equily, converfible debl securtties, and other borrowings. The Group’s pelty 13 to use short-larm and long-term borrowings to maet
anticipatad funding requirermants,

The Company monitors ¢aplial using a ralio of 'adjusted nst debl' to 'adusted eduity’. For this purpose, adjusted nal debt ks defined as total labiltes, comprising Interest-bearing kvans and
borrowings and abligations under finance leases, lass cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted aquity comprises ali components of equity ather than amounds accumulaled in the hadging

resefve.
Tha Company's adj | net tebt to equily ralle bs as follows:
Particulars Ag al 31 March 2021

Totat llabiltias (comprising of interas| bearing borrowings and Interest accrued theraon)

Less : Cash and cash equivalenl

Adjusted nal debt
Adjusted equity

Adjusted net debt to ad|usted equity ratic

43 Ratlo Analysis

3.239.96
49.48

03045

£ | o

)44,68

1.02

Parliculara HNumeraler Denominator 3 March, 2022 31 March, 2621 % change Remarks
Current Refie Current Assets Curteni Liablilles 0.1 [X) -80.8% The reduction in ratio i3 on account of)
highar short (e borowings In current]
yoar forming part of current blies as
compared 1o previous year,
Debt-Equity Raflo Total Debt Sharghalder's Equily 14 1.0 4.7% MA
Diabt Service Coverape Ratlh | Profit befors Finance | Finance Gost + [¥] 0.1 114.9% The impravement in ratlo s on account
costs, Tax and Frincipal payment of of prafil before tax In Ihe cumeni year as
Depraciation debd during the perlod comparad to loas in previous year.
[Retum on Eqully Ratlo et Profits after laxes | Average . 2% -3.2% 31% NA
{=) Praterance Shareholder's Exquity
Dividend
Inventory lumaover ralle Sales = Sale of Average Inventory 0.3 43 -5.5% MNA
resldantial flats
Trade Recsivables Wmaver  |Hel credil safes = Average Trade 11.0 85 T T% The lmprovemant In rato is on actoun
ralic Revenue from Recsivabla of slighily battar recovery of recslvables
Operakions during lhe ysar and having lower
tetan g Bk as o d o
previous year.
Trade payables wrnover ratle  |Nel credil purchases | Average Trade [ 0.9 -B.0% NA
Payables
Med capital lumover ratio et sales = Revenue [Working caphal = 0.0 O] -53.2% The reduclion in ralio is on acgount off
from QOparations Currant asasts — higher sharl fam bomowings In current
Cutrent Bablilies year forming part of cuirent [ablillies ag|
compared to previous year resullng
lewer returns.
Met profit radlo Profl { {Loss) after tax|Net Sales = Revenue 41% -FT.4% 73.3% The Improvement in ratic is on accouni
from operations of lower loss after Lax In the current year
a3 compared toleas in previous year,
Relurn on Capital emplayed  |Eamings befora Capltal Employed = 32% 1.9%| 1.3% MA
fiterest and taxes Tangltie Nel Worlh +
Total Debt + Deferred
Tax Liabily
Remm oni M Opening 28.0%)| 38% 242% A
Shareholder's Equily |Sharehokder's Equily
for tha yoar
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{vi)

ts for the year ended 31 March 2022

Except as disclosed in the tabls below, no funds ha\re heen advanced or lnaned or Invasted {elther from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the

Company te arin any other g }or {i fgreign enlliez (*Intermediaries"), with the underatanding, whether recorded nwiilng or olthetwdse, that e | lary shall,
dirscty or indirectly fend or Invest In other persons or enlifies idantifed In any manner whatseevar by or an behalf of the Company ("Ulimats B i } or provids any
securily of he tke on behalf of the Ulimale Banaficlarles:
Far the year ended 31 March 2025
Date of Investment by the Type of Investment Arnoank Name of Intavmedinry Dale of further Typro of Investinent Amourt Name of Ultimate
Cotapany (4R In Crores} Company sdvancad by {i¥R In Croras} Benellelary
Inlermodlary Cos. 10 Company
Ultimate Banefalacy
Log
ZA 0521 Eqully Shares 12 26 [ TRIL Urban Transpmt T2 1 Eouily Shares 12.20 |Fune IT Gity Metra
Private Limlled Rl Limited
i4-12-21 Equily Shares 48,20 TRIL Urban Transpor 15-12-21 Equily Shares 85,20 [Puns IT City Male
Pavate Liniled Ref} Limited
220421 Irter Corporate Daposil 28.00| TRIL Urban Transpor 23-04-21 Enquity Sharas 28,00 [Puna [T Cliy Male
Private Limilsd Rall Linjiad
15-04-21 Irter Carporate Deposil %.32| TRIL Urban Trangpon 16-04-21 Cpllonally Gonwaritle
Private Limled Dabaniures (OCDs)
FI05-21 Inter Corporate Deposlt 7.3 | TRIL Uthan Transpon 082 Opllonzlly Convertible
Privats Luniled Dabentures {QCDe)
0-07-21 tiver Corpodate Deposit B.50 [TRL Urban Transport 31071 COplionalty Convertlble
Piivale Linkted
04-10-21 Inter Corporate Deposit 17.30 | TRIL Urban Transpot 04-40-21 Oplianally Converlible
Privata Limited Dobepluras (OGDa}
280121 Inter Corparate Depask 7.50| TRIL Urban Transpost 200122 Oplionally Convartibly
Prrivale Lifnited Debentwes (JCDs}
30621 Optinhally Convaribla 4.03| TRIL Roads Private 1-05-21 Compuleary 4,03 | Hamg Expresaways
Dabanturas (OCDs) Lirnited Convenible Debenlures Private Limited
200821 Cplionally Convertlble 4,70 TRIL Roads Privale 30-66-21 4.70 |Hanpl Exprassways
Debentures {OCDs) Limited Privale Limlied
2B-12-21 Oplionally Converlble 208§ TRIL Reads Privale -2 2.06 |Hampl Exprasoways
Debsniuas {OCDs} Limiied Frivate Limbed
31-05-21 Cptionally Converlitle 4.00 | FRIL Roads Privala 310521 4.00 |Uchi Expreszways
Debertures {OCDs) Limited Private Limitad
24-08-21 Optionally Conventlble 1.0} | TRL Roads Private A0-06-21 1,00 {Uch#t Exprasawrys
Debantures (OCDs) Limied Privata bimited
0-11-21 Cptlonally Convertibla 6.00| TRIL. Roads Private 011121 5.00 |Uchit Exprossways
{lrebentures QD) Limited Frivala Limited
Note: Tha relavant provsions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (42 of 1989) and Companles Act has been complied with for such and the t lans are not
violalive of the Prevention of Money-Laundering act, 2002 (15 of 2003).
Other Statutory Iformation
The Company does not have any Benami properly, where any procaeding has been Inifiated or pending against the Company for holding any Banami propsrly,
The Company doss not have any transactions with companles stuck off.
The Company doss not have any chargss or satisfaction which 15 yet to ba registerad with ROG boyand the slatulory period,
The Company hasg not traded or | n Crypio y o Wirfual Currency during the financial year,
The Company hag not ragaived any fund from any parson(s) or enlifyies), inchuding forelgn entifies (Funding Party)with the und Ing (whether dad in wrillng or o s} that the
Company shail:

{a) directly or Indiracily lend or invest in other persons of entities [dentifed in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of e Funding Party {Ullimale Beneflciaries) or

{b) provide any guarentee, securily or the [ke on behall of the Ullimate Beneficiaries,

Tha Company doss noi have any such fransaction which I nab recorded in tha books of accounts thal has been surrendered or disclosed as Income during the year in the Lax
assassments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survay or any other relgvant provislons of tha Incomme Tax Acl, 1961).
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46 Tha Board of Dkectors, In lhelr mealing heid on 28 May 2022 have approved and authorised for ssue only the standalone 1) ial st

W ta for the year ended March 31, 2022, The
consolidated financial stalements for the year ended March 34, 2022 will be approvad and suthorised for issue at a laler date.
47 Events afler the balance sheet date
Subsequent by the year-end, the Company has i inlo dafink ts wAth an enliy, o seil ks 49% shareholding of lts Ir (in haa) Le. in TRIL Infopark Limiled,
Arrow Infragstals Private Limiled, Gurgacn Construct Well Privats Linlhed and Gurgacn Realiech Limited, subject 1o fullliment of the condilions pracedent as speciied In the sald
agreaments.
48 Prevlous Year's Figuras
Previous year figures heve besn regrauped / reclassified Lo conlorm to curment year pr h considered ¥

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of
Tata Realty and Infrastructurs Limited

@ CIN: UT¢102MH2007PLG168300

Banmatl Agrawala Sanjay Dutt
Chalrman Managlng Director
DIN- 00120029 PIN - 05251670

|

—n
Bhavesh Madtaka RasHirni Jain
Chief Financial Officer Company Secratary
Memberahlp Mo: A38683 Membership Mo ACS13978

tdumbel
Daled : 28 May 2022
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currenczy: Indign rupees in croes)

M March 2022 31 March 2021
A Cash flows Froim aperating activities :
{Loss) before tax 171.29 (29647}
Adjustments for:
Deprecintion and s mortisation 303.33 209.34 ;
Frofit on sale of current invesinients in Mutval Funds {d.60) (7.35) i
Provision for Major Maintenancs of Road 17.82 1818 '
Provision for Major Malntenance of Other Agsets 246 1.83 ;
Mark to Market (gnin / logs on Denvalive Controcts (12.6%) 22.52 .
Mack to Markel gult on current investments in Mutual funds (1.05) {0.62) i
Provision for credit impaired Trode Receivables 082 -
Interest income (13.34) (26.33)
Finance casts 658,62 600.58
Gaim on raineasurement of previously held equity interest {417 -
Shace of lass from an associnte and joint venres 4670 1227
Provision for diminvtion in value of I 1501 34.56
Gain on loss of control in a subsidiary {15.01) -
Pravision for Employee Benefils 376 146
Loss on sale of propery, plant and equipment [11]] Q.02
Operating ProfM belore changes im operating assels and liabllities 174,69 62149
Changes in sperating nsseis and labilites
{Inerease) / Decrease In Trade Recejvalles {1.91) 9.30
Decreass in Inventories £§9.26 64.58
{Deereasa) f Increase in Loans, Other Finaueial Assets and Other Non-Currem Aszels and Other L1000 (46.26)
Cument Asgels
Increase in Trade pavables 20.32 2.52
(D I in Other financiel lakilities, current and non current lighililles and {120.35) 5524
provisions
Cash flows generated from eperating activities 851.01 06.88
Tax (paid) / vefund during the yzar {net) {248 19.58
Not cash flows generated (rom operaling activities £35.53 F26.45
B Casb flows from Investing nclividies ¢ .
Payment for purchass and constroction of propetty, plant and squipment 5.02 {2.58) .
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment .03 147 :
Payments for inramylbles assets £ inlangible assets under development 199,22y (24945}
T for i iy property | property under constticHon (46.80% (53.74)
I in joint and 1 (555.00) (563.3%
Investment in equily shates of other companies 0.04 (049}
Proceeds from sale of investments in mutual funds 1,806.94 2464.24
Investments in mutual funds (1,664,349} (L7021}
Pedemption / (In y in [xed deposits under lien {net) 10.20 (34.67)
Acquisltion of a subsidiary (110.58) -
Procesds on account of loss of control in a subsidiary AT13 1180
Inlerest received 12.31 2788
Net cash Rows {used in} investing aciivities (672.21) (379.74)
C Cash Nows feom finaucing aclivities :
Proceeds / (Repayment} fram short ke bomowings {nel} 1,162.08 (286,24
Proceeds from long tomm berowings 1,959.26 §.674,24
{epayment) of long tetm borowlngs (3,341,449} (1.137.22)
Finance costs pid (950,20} 1714.3M
Net cash flows generated from f (nsed jn) finnncing activities (170.39) (404,113
Net {decrende) In cask nnd hank balances (A+B+C) (407 (11745
Cash and bank balances, beginning of the yenr 181.90 940
Incrense in cesh and cosh equivalents dus b0 acquisition of o subsidiary 605 -
Drecrease in cazh and cash equivalonts due to loss of control in a subsidiscy {01) {0.04)

Cash and bank balunees, end of year (refer nole 17) 13_3.93 181,96
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Background and basis of preparation
Background

Tate Realty and Infrastructure Limited (“ihe Parent Company” or ‘the Company®) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Tata Sens Private Limited, The Parent
Company along with its subsidiaries, joint vent and iates, colleetively referred to as the “the Group™ is cxclusively engaged in the business of real estate
and infrastructure development (including purchase, construction ot sale of immovable property, project management consultancy services and investment
advisory services} . These business activities are mainly carriecd ent through Special Putpose Vehicles (SPVs) in the form of subsidiaries, joint v and
nssociates. In carrying out such activities through the SPVs, the Parent Company funds the SPVs through a judicions mix of equity investients, loans of advances
basis the requirement of each of the entities.

Basis of preparation

Statement of complionce and basis of preparntion

These Consolidated financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS} as per the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standardsy Ruleg, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act’} and other relevant provisions of the Act and presented in the manner
required by Division 11 to Schedule [l to the Act, after considering the nature of the Parent Company’s business described above.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the investments in SPVs constituted more than 90% of Parent Company’s total assets en a standalone basis,
Consequent to significant gaing credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss, resulting from vevaluation of certain investments {issued by SPVs} {in compliance
with [ndAS 109} at Fair Value Throngh Profit or Loss conpled with lower residential sales has lted in Operating i pertaining to primarily from sale of
properties and management fees, being less than 50 percent of the total inceme on a standalone basis.

The principal business of the Parent Company remains real estate and infrastructure developtnent (including purchase, construction or sale of immovable
property, project management consuitancy services within it’s SPVs, which are excluded from the definition of *“financial institution™ as per the provisions of
Section 451 {c} of the RBI Act, 1934, Therefore, it is the view of the managsment that, the Parent Company would nol fall within the definition of a non-banking
financial company as per the provisions of Section 431 (f) of the RBI Act, 1934, The Farent Company has communicated and has sought clavification from RBI
on the applicability of aforesaid provisions of RBI Act 1934.

The slowdown in the economy and temporary low residential sales in it's projects, coupled with non-recurring fair valuation gains have resulted in skewed
operating income on a standalons basis, which In management's view is transient in nature. With various measures taken by the Parent Company backed by
turnaround of the macket and end of pandemic, the management is reasonably confident that a major portion of il's tolal income shall continue to come from
operating revenug on a standalone basis in ensuing years. [n view of above circumstances, the Parenl Company in it's recent communication to RBI, has also
sought extension of time for determining eligibility to ragister as NBFC. The response from the RBT is awaited.

Gotng Concern

The Group has incurred profil amounting to INR 83.34 crores in the current year {previous year toss INR 294.51 crores). As al 31 March 2022 the Group has 2
net curcent liability position of INR 2,993.55 crores where the current liabilities at INR 3,726.41 crores exceed the current assets at INR 73086 crores. Based on
scheduled repayment of borrowings, INR 3,183.43 crores is due for repayment within 12 menths frem the reporting date.

Assessment: The Board of Direclors have assessed the above operational couditiens and indicators and have come to the conclusion that ne material unccttainty

cxists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a geing concem based on cash flow forecasts and the pian management has put in
place,

Mitigating factors: The Group is in the business of real estate and infrasiructure development to penerate stable cash flows over the life of the assets. The Gronp
is developing assets through investmen!s in Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures in various project SPVs. During the yeor, two infrasitueture projects have stacted toll
collection in addition to engoing projects.

During FY 2022-23, based on projections, the SPV's are expecied to gencrate operational net cash flow of more than NI 375.00 crores which will increase the
value of investments in subsidiaties and joinl venmre SPVs. The Group has entered inte definitive agreements for divestment of selected nssets in its project
SPVs' which is expected to generate more than INR 3,200.00 crores (nel of taxes) as equity value.

Negative working capilal is en account of managemen! decision 0 bortow short-term funds through commercial papers to take advantage of interest arbitrage.
However, management has modified the strategy lo replace, o the extent possible, shoit term funding with long lecrm funding arrangement going forward.

The equily capital from the parent ie. Tala Sons Private Limited, of an ameimt of INR 1,200 crores received during the FY 2019-20 has improved the Group's
net worih allowing the Group to further it's ability for additiona! borrowing in future and is reflected in the ratings of the Company.

Conclusion: The Board of Dicectors based on cash flow fo ts and thanag t plans have concluded on ability of the Group to continue as going concern
and the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on that basis.

W
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Functional and presentation currency

These Consolidated fi jal stat ts are p d in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All the financial information
have been presented in Indian Rupces (INR) and ull amounts have been rounded-off to the neavest crores with mwo decimals, exncept for sharc data and ag
otherwise stated. Due to rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the document may nat add up precisely to ihe totals and percentage may not precisely
reflect the absclute figures.

Basis of measurement

The Consolidated financial stalements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at
fair value:

Certain finaneial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments)
Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair valoe

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty

In prepating these Consolidated financial stat ts, s has made judg , estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, incotme and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an engoing basis. Revisions to accounting eslimates are recegnised prospeetively.

{iy Judgeinents

Information about judgements made in npplying accounting policies that have the most significant effects en the amounts recognised i the lidated financial
statements is included in the subsequent notes.

(iiy Control

If the Group owns less than one-half of the voting power and it is able to control the company which inter-alia provides the CGrroup with power to appoint majority
of the board of directors and power over relevant activities. Consequently, the Group censolidates its investment in such o ipanies, {Refer Note Mo, 52(ay)

1€ the Group owns niore than one-half of the voting power but it does not have control aver the Companies then the Group has joint control over the companies,
In other words, decisions about the relevant activities - i.¢. those that significantly affect the returns of the arrangement - require the affirmative congent of the
investors. Cansequently, the Group bias classified its interest in these conpanies as joinily controlled entity (Refer Note ne. S2(b)).

(iily Asswinpttons and estimation uacertainties

luformation about assumptions and estimalion uncertainties that bave a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment duting the yeat is included in the
following notes:

Note 3 1o 8 — impairment test of non-financial assets; key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts inchiding the recoverability of expenditure on acquired
intangible assets (goodwiil); Useful Tife of Property, plant and equipment and other intangibles assets;

Note 12 - recognition of deferred tax nssets; availability of future taxable profit against which tax losacs catried forward can be psed:

Noute 27 = recognition and measurement of provisions and ingencies: key assumptions aboul the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

Note 56 — measurement of defined benefit obligations: key sctuarial assumptions;

Nate 52 — acquisition of subsidiary: fair value of the consideration transferred (including contingent consideration) and fair value of the assots acquired and
lialilities assumed, measured on a provisional basis; and

Note 53 ~ determining the fair value of investments on (e basis of significant unobservable inputs;

Mote 53 ~ impaicment of financial agsets,

Measwrement ¢f fir values

The Group's accounting policics and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Group has
an established contrel fiamework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finnnce team has overal responsibility for averseeing all significant Fair
value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reponts direetly to the CFO.

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third pacty information is used to measure fair values then the finance team
assesses the evidence obtained frown the third partics to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requitements of [nd AS, including the level in the
fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a Liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible, Fair values are categorized into different levels
in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as Follows: :

+ Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asscts or linbilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quated prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.c. as pricos) or indirectly (ie.
derived from prices).
* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based cu observable inarket data (unobservable inputs).

If hie inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a Liability fall into different levels of the fair value hicrarchy, then the Fair value measucement is
categorized in its entirely in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency tr tions are translaied into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
bosses resulting from the scttlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curmrencies at year end
hange rates are g Iy recognised in profit or loss.

ex

Nan-monetary items that are mensured at fair value in a foreig curtency are translated using the cxchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences an nssets and Habilities carried at Fair value are reported as part of the fair value gaim or loss, The gain or loss arising on trenslation of non-
melietary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.¢., translation differences
on {tems whose fair value gain ot loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss me alsa recognised in OCI ot profit or loss, respeetively),
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Significant accounting policies

Eosls of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities {inclhiding structurcd entities) over which the group has control. The group controls an cntity when the group is cxposed to, of has
rights to, variable retorms from its involvement with the eniity and has the ability to affect those retumns theough its power to direct the relevant activities of the
entity, Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The group combities the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and
expenses. [ntergroup tr tions, bal and lised gnins on transactions between group companies are eliminated, Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset, Accounting policies of subsidiarles have been changed where necessacy to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

Non-conirolling interests in the results and equily of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit and Joss, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and balance sheet respectively.

Joint arrangemenis

Under Ind AS 111 Joint Avrang ts, inve ts in joint arrang; ts are classified as cither joint operations ot joint ventures, The classification depends on
the contractual rights and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal stractuce of the joint arrangement. The group has only joint ventures.

Joint ventures

Joint ventures are entities ever which the group has jeint control along with another entity. Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method,
afler initially being recognised at cost in the consolidated balance sheet. The investment is {nitially recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decrensed to recognize the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the acquisition date.

Associaies

Associates are enlities over which the group hes significant influence but not centrol. Investments in associates are accountsd for uging the equity method of

accounting, The investment is initially recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the investor’s share of the profit or logs
of the investee after the isition date.

Segment reporting
Qperating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM). Chief operating
decision maker’s function is to allocate the resources of the entity and access the perfonnance of the opetaling segment of the Group.

The Managing Director the financial performance and position of the Gronp and makes strategic decisions and is identified as being the chief operating
decision maker for the Group. Refer note 46 for segiment information presented,

Revenue recognition

Sale of completed property

Revenue from sale of completed properly (residential and commercial) is recognised when;

1. The Gronp has rransferred fo the huryer significant risk and rewards of ownership of the completed property,

2, The Group tetaing neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with the ownership nor effective control over the completed
property sold;

3. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

4. It is probable that the economic benefit associated with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

5. Cost incurred of to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Service concession arrangeinents

Concession arrangements are tecognized in accordance with Appendix C of Ind AS 115, Service Concession Arcangements. It is applicable to concession
amrangements comprising a public service obligation and satisfying all of the following criteria:

- the concession grantor controls or regulates the setvices W be provided by the operator using the asscl, the infrastructure, the beneficiaries of the services and
prices applied;

- the grantor controls the signiticont residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the armangetment.

Pursuant to Appendix C of Ind AS 115, such infrastructures are not recognized in assets of the operator as property, plant and equipment but in finemeial assels
("financial asset mudel"} andfor intangible assets (Mintangible asset model”) depending on the remuneration commitments given by the grantor.

The intangible asset model applies where the operater is paid by the users or where the concession grantor has not provided a contractual guarantee in respect of
the vecoverable amount. The intangible asset corresponds to the right granted by the o ion grantor to the operator to charge users of the public service in
ret tion of jon services,

Intangible assets resulting from the application of Appendix C of [nd AS 15 are recorded in the financial slaiements as infangible assets. The Group

accoums for such intangible asset (along with the present value of itted payments towards concession arrangement to the grantor at the appointed date ¢.g.
Negative Grant, premium etc.) in accerdance with the provisions of Ind AS 38 and is amortized based on projected traffic count or revenue, as detailed in Notke
2.07, taking into t the esti d period of cog cial operation of infrastructure which penerally coincides with the concession petiod, and are amortized,
gencrally on a stnight-line basis, over the conlract term.

Under the intangible asset model, revenue includes:
+  revenue recorded on a completion basis for assets and infrastmetuce under construclion (in accordance with IND AS LL5),

charges collected from vsers
However, in certain concession arrangeinents, contracts nay inelude a payment commitment on the part of the coneession grantor covering only pait of the
investment, with the balance covered by amount eharged to users. Where this is the case, the investimenl amounl guaranteed by the concession grantor is
recognized under the financial asset model and the cesidual balance is recognized under the intangible asset model. Financiof assets resulting from that are
recorded in the financial statements under the heading other financial assets and recognized at amortized cosl.

Further, where infrastencture is partly regutated and partly unregulated, the portion of infrastructure that is physically separable and capable of being operated
independently and meets definition of cash generating unit as defined under Ind AS 36 is analysed separately if it is used wholly for unregulated purposes,

>
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Rendering of services

Asset management fees. Project management consultancy fees, parking fees, maintenance income and utility income are recognized in accordance with terms of
agreement with customers,

Rental incoine

Rental income from investiment property is recognised as pact of revenue fiom operations in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease
incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, aver he term of the lease, Rental income from sub-leasing is also recognised in 2
similar mannet and included under other income,

Toli Revenue
Toll collection from users of the infrastructure facility constructed by the Company under the Service Co ion Al t is recognised in the period of

collection of toll 7 user fee which coinzides with the usage of the infrastrocture facility. Income from sale of smart cards is recognised on cash basis,

Clalms

Claims raised with the concession granting authority towards reimbursemient for costs incurred due to delay in handing over of nnencunibered land to the
Company for construction ot other delays attributable solely fo the concession granting authority are recognised when there is & reasonable certainty that there
will be inflow of economic benefits to the concerned Company. The ¢laims when recognised as such are reduced from the carrying amount of the intangible nsset
under development to the extent the claims relate to costs earlier included s a pact of the carrying amownt of these assets. Further, thesc claiing are credited to
Profil and Loss to the extent they relate to costs carlier charged off. The claims arc presented separately as a financial asset. In case where the claim is estimated
1o be received over a period of time and the time valug of money is matetial, these claims are measured at a discounted amount &t the time of recognition. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised as an interest income.

Interest and dividend:
Dividend is recognized as revenue when the right to receive payment has been established. For all debt instruments measurcd either at amortised cost or at fair
value throngh other comprehensive income, inlorest income is recorded using the effective inferest mte (EIR). ETR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated

future cash paymenis or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter perlod, where approprinie, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of u financial Hability.

Rendering of International Convention Centre Services:

Revenue from rendering of International Clenvention Centre Services is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation.
Revenue includes room revenue, food and beverage sale and banquet services which is recognized once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are sold and
banquet services have been provided as per e contract with the customer respectively.

Governinent granés

Grants from the government are initially recognised as deferred income at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and the group will comply with il attached conditions, they are then recognised in profit or loss a5 other income on a systematic basis over the useful life of the
asset.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the petiods in which the expenses are recognised.

Property, plant and equipingat

Recopgnltion aml measurement

Frechotd land is caried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipmen! are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

2)  its purchase price, inchiding import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates,

b} any costs directly attribuiable to bringing the assct to the location and condition necessacy for it to be capable of operating in the manner infended by
¢}  the initial estimate of the costs of dismaniling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, ihe obligation for which 2n entity ingurs
eilher when the item is acquired

Income and expenses related 1o the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the itein to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management, are recopnized in profit or loss.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different nseful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items {major components) of
property, plant and equiptnent. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss,

Subsequent expenditure .
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the fucure cconomic benefits associated will the expenditure will flow to the Group.
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Property, plant and equipment (Cowfinned)

Depreciatlon

Depreciable amount for asseta is the cost of an azset, or other amount substituted for cost, less itz estimated residual value.

Deprecinlion is provided using the straight line method in the manner and at the mtes prescribed by Part 'C* of Schedule I1 of the Act. Depreciation is charged on
a monthly pro-rata bagis for assets purchased or sold during the yzar.

In the following cases, the useful life is less than the corresponding useful life prescribed in Part 'C" of Schedule 1[ of the Act, based on intemal technical
evaluation, taking into account the nature of the assets, the cstimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replaccment,
anticipated technological changes ete.:

Plant and Machinery B-15 years
Furnitore snd Fixture 6-10 yaars
Office equipments 3.6 years
Computers 34 years
Motor Vehicles 5-7 years
Commercial building 5-32 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the lease period,
Depreciation methods, ngeful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reponing date and adjusted if appropriate.
Gains and losses on disposals are detenmined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These ave included in profit or loss within other gains/ (loszes).

Investment property

Property that is held for long-tertn rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that iz not occupied by the group, ls ¢lassified as investment propenty.
Investment property is measured initially at its ¢ost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditore is
capitalized to the asset's canying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated wilh the expenditure will flow to the proup and the
cost of the jten can be meazured reliably. AR other repairs and mai cots are ex| d when inourred. When pact of an investinent ptopenty is replaced,
the carrying amownt of the replaced part is derecognised.

Investment property under construction .

Property that is being constructed for futire use ag investraen! propesty is accounied for as investment properly snder constiuction until construction or
development is complete. All costs which are directly attributable to construction of the investment property are capitalized.

Intanglble assets

a) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisilions of snbsidiaries is included in intangible assets, Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually. It is carried at cost
less uceumulated impaitment Logses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Geodwill is allocated te cash-generating units for the porpoze of iinpairment testing. The allocation iz made W those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal manageinent purpeses, which in our case are the operating seginents,

b) Service concession intangible assets

(i) Passenger ropeway facility

Intangible assets comprise a right to charge users for passenger ropeway facility. The cost of intangible assets acquired in exchange of monetary or non-monetary
agsels 18 measured at fair valve unless {a) the excliange transoction lacks commercial substance or (b} the fair value of nelther the osset received nor the asset
given up is reliably measurable. If acquired asset cannot be measured af fair value, its cost is measured at the carrying amount of the asset given up. The fair
value of the nsset {5 measured with reference 1o the falr value of construction services provided.

{ii} Toll collection right

Toll collection rights rep ing right to recetve fees froin users of facility are obtained in consideration for rendering construction, operation and maintenance
serviceg in relation to building and maintenance of the project on Build, Operate and Transfer basis. The consideration voocived in a setvice concession
arcangement is measvred al fair value upon initial recognition. i.e. constouction eost. Subsequent to initial recognition the intangible assct is d at cost,
which includes capitalised boreowing costs, less accumulated amortisation and accwnulated impairment losses,

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific to which it relates,

(iiif) Amortization of service concession intangible assets

The intangible rights relating to these infrastrcture assets, which are recognized in the form of right to choxge users of the infrastructure asset are amortized by
taking the proportion of actual raffic count for the period ever total projecied traffic count from project Lo cost of intangible assets; ie. proponion of actual
traffic for the period over total projected traffic count from the intangible assets expected to be carncd over The balance concession period ag estimated by the
management. However will respect to toll road assets constructed and in operation as at March 31, 2016, the amortizalion of such intengible rights are based on
actual revenue eamed compared to total projected revenue from the project over the balance concession period 1 cost intangible assets, instead of raffic count.
Total projected revenne / raffic count is reviewed at the end of each financial year and iz adjuzled to reflect my changes in the estimates which lead to the actual
collection st the end of the concession period,

¢ Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets comprise application software purchased, which are not an integral part of the related hardware, and are amoutized on 2 written down
value bagis over a pericd of ten years, which in Management's estimate represents the pericd during which the economic benefits will be deved from their use.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits emmbodied in the specific to which it relates
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Irapairment of non-financlal asseds

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annvally for impairment, or more frequently if
evants or ¢l in cireut indicale that they might be impaired. Other asscts are tested for impairment whenever eventz or changes in cireumstances

&

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, Managy periodically using, external and internal sources, whether there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired,

The recoverable amount is higher of the assel's net selling price or value in use, which means the present value of future cash flows expeeted to arise from the
continuing use of the asset and its eveniual disposal. An impainnent loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impaisment loss wag recognized. The carrying amount of an assef is increaged (o its revigsed recoveralle amount, provided that this amount
dees not exceed the canrying amount that would bave been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impaitment less been
recognized for the assel in prior years.

Borrowing cost

Genetal and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, ¢ ion or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the
petiod of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale, Qualifying 2ssets are assets that necessarily take a subsiantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income eamed on the lemporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other bomowing costs are expensed in the petied in which they are incured.

Income-tax

Income tax expense cownprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it refates ltems recognised directly in equity or in
OCI

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in
respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax alse inciudes any tax avising from
dividends. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax retums with respect to situntions in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. [t establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected te be paid to the tax authorities,

Minimum Altemate Tax {'BMATY) under the provisions of [ncome-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as cunent tax in the statement of profit and loss. MAT paid in
accordance with the lax laws, which gives fiture econcmic benefils in the form of adjustment o future income tax liability, is considered ag an asset if there iz a
convinging evidence thar the Group will pay normal tax. Aecordingly, MAT is recognized ns an asset in the balance sheet when it is probable that the future
econoinic benefit associated with it will flow to fhe Group,

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Group:

) hasa legally enforcenble right to set off the recognised amounts; and

by  intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the Lability simultaneousty.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temnporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation porposes. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it atiscs from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a ransaction other than a business combination that at the Hme of the
transaction affeets neither accounting prefit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Deferred tax assets are reeognised for unused tax losses, unused rax eredits and deductible temperacy differences to the extent that it is prohable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they ean be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax bencfit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the cxtent that it has become probable that futare taxable profits will be available
against which they can be uscd.

Deferred tax is measuved at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to tempogary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively
cnacted at the reporling date and are expected to apply when the rclated deferved income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability {5 settled.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in aubsidiaries, branches and
assovintes and intevest in joint arcangements wherc the moup is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foresceable future,

Deferred lax assets ave not recognised for temporary differences between the earrying amount and tax bases of i ts in subsidiaries, branches and
associates and interest in joint arrangeiments where it is not probable that the diff: will reverse in the for ble future and taxable profit will not be
available ngainst which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Dreferred tax assets and liabilitics are offset only i

a)  the entity has a legally enforceable right te set off cucrent lax assets against curcent tax fabilities; and

by thedeferred tax nssets and the deferred tax liabilities celate to inceme taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity.
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Business combinations

The acguisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other assels are aequited. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the;
+ fair values of the assets transferred;
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the ecquired business;
+ equity interests issved by the group; and
* Fair value of any assel or liability resulting from a contingent consideration areangement.

Ildentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities d n a busi combination are, with limited exceplions, measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date, The group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair
value or af the non-controlling interest’s proportionate shere of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets. Acquisiti lated costs are exp d as incurred.

The excess of the

« consideration wransferred;

+ amount of aty non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and

- Acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable nssets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as capital rescive provided there is clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a
bargain purchase. In other cases, the bargain purchase gein is recognised directly in equity ng capital reserve,

- Where settlement of any part of cash consideration iz deferred, the amounts payable in the fotore are discounted to their present value as at the date of
exehange, The diseount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier undet comparable terms and conditions.

- Contingent consideration iz classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a finaneial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

- 1f the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date canying value of the acquirers previously hield equity interest in the ncquire is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition datc. Any gains or losses arising from such t are recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income, a3 Appropriate.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of p ion in the stat t of cash flows, cash and eash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits hald at call with financial institutions,
other shott-term, highty liquid investments with original maturities of theee months or less that are readily convectible to knowm amounts of eash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changss in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank cverdrafts arg shown within berrowings in eurrent labilities in the balance sheet.

Inventories

Ditect expenszes like land eost, development cights, site labour cost, material wsed for project consiruction, cost of borrowing, preject management consultancy,
costs for moving the plant and machinery to the site and general expenses Incurred specifically for the respective projeet like insurance, design and teehnical
assistance, and construction overheads are taken as the cost of the project work in progress and cost of unsold fats,

Material &t site comprise of building material, componenis, stores and spares,

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, cost is determined on weighted average basia. Met realizable value is the estimated selling priee in
the ordinary course of busingss, less estimated costs of iction and estimated costs y to make the sale.

¥

Financial instruments

A financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial
insiruments also include derivative conhracts such as foreign cumency foreign exchange forward contracts, interest tate swaps and cunmency options; and
embedded derivatives in the host contracl.

Fluancial nsseis

Clagsification

The Group shall classify financial assets as subsequently micasured at amoxtised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) ot fair valus
through profit or loss (FYTPL) on the basis of its busi model for ging the fi {al assets and the contractual cash flow ch istics of the fi ial
agsel,

Initial recognlilon and measurentent
All finaneial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of finaoncial assets nof recorded at fair value Huough profit or loss, ransaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisition of the fi fal asset. Purct or gales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by

regulation or convention in the matket place (regular way trades) are recopnized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset,
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Debt instraments

A 'debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following condilions are mel:

a) The nsset iz held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Centractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount
outstanding.

After inilial measureient, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost uging the effective interest rate {EIR) method. Amottised cost i3
caleulated by taking into account any discount or premivm and fees or costs that are an inlegral part of the EIR. The EIR mmortisation is included in finance
income in the profit or loss.

Debt instruments included within the fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL) category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement
of profit and loss.

Equity instruments

The group subsequently all equity iw ts in companies other than equity investments in, joint ventures and associates at fair value. Where the
group’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and lesses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investinents are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the group’s
right to 1eceive payments is established.

De-recoguition

A financinl asset {or, where applicable, a pact of a financial agset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is primarily devecognised {i.e. removed from the
Group's balance sheet) when: .

The rights 1o eceive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Group has transferred its rights to teceive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation te pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a ‘pass«throngh’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has wansferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Group
has neither keansferved nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it
has retained the tisks and rewards of ownership, When it hag neither transferved nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues lo recognise the transferred asset to lhe extent of the Group’s continuing invelvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associnted liability. The transterred asset and the assoeiated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the tights and obligations that the Group
las retained.

Continuing invelvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at ihe lower of the original carrying amount of the assel and the
enaximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Lrapaicment of financlal assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Group applies expected credit logs (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the fellowing
financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a)  Financial nss2ts that are debt instruinents, and ave meagured at amortised cost ¢.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, and bank bal

by  Lease receivables

¢)  Tinde receivables

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impaiment loss allowance on:

Trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component,

All lease receivables resulting from transactions.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to rack changes in credit risk. Rather, [t recognises impainnent loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right (tom its initial recognition.

For recognition of impainment logs on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initiol recognition. If eredit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a signifieant
incrense in credit rigk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Financial instruments

Derlvative contracts

The groop enters into a variety of derivative finaneial inswuments to manage its exposure to interest rafe and foreign exchange rate risk, including foreign
exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the daie the derivative contracts are
entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gainfloss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.
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Financial liabllitics

The Group classifies all financial labilities as subsequently measured at amortised cast, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such
linbilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, are subsequently measured ot fair value,

Initial recognilion and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, ns finanzial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities ure recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and ofher payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafls, financial guarantee contracts and derivative
financial instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair valwe through profli or loss

Financial Kabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities hield for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
catcgory also includes derivative financial instruments cntcred iuto by the Group that are not designated as hedging instrumends in hedge velationships as defined
by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives ave also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilitics held for trading are recoguised in the profit or loss.

Financial habilities designated upon initial recegnition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria
in [nd-AS 109 are satisfied, For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gaing/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These
gains/loss are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss, However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognised in the slat t of profit or 10ss. The Group has not designated any financin! liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans nad borrowlngs

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and botrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized.

Atnortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premivin on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is inchided as finanee costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies 1o interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as liabilities. The dividends on these preference shares are recognised in
profit or loss as finance costs.

The fair value of the liability portion of an optionally convertible bonds is determined using a market interest rate for an equivaleni non-convertible bonds. This
amount is recorded as a lisbility on an amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption of the bonds. The inder of the p ds is
attributable to the equity portion of the compound instrument, This is recognised and included in shareholders® equity, net of incotne tax effects, and not
subsequently remeasured.

Where the terms of a financial {iability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity insirurnents to a creditor (o extinguish all or part of the liability {(debt for
equity swap), a gain or loss is recogmised in profit or loss, which is measured 25 the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair
value of the equity instrumients issucd.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the Lability is discharged or cancelled or expites. When an existing financial liability is veplaced
by another froin the same lender on substantially different terins, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modificd, such an exchange or modification
is treated ag the derecognition of the criginal liability and the rccognition of a new liability. The differenes in the respective carrying amounts is tecognised in the
stalement of profil or loss.

Embedded derivatives

If the hybrid contraet contains a host that is a financial assel within the scope Ind-AS 109, the Group does not separate embedded derivatives, Rather, it applies
the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid conteact, Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are aceounted for as
separate detivatives and recorded at fair value if their economnic characterisiics and risks are not closely related to those of the hest contraels and the hos
comiracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded detivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedgiog instr ts. R nent only occurs if there is cither a change in the terms of the
coniracl that significantly modifics the cash flows.

Offsetting of financizl instruments

Finangial assets and liabilities are offset and the pet t is reposted in the bal sheet where there is a legally enloreeable right to offset the recognised
amounts and thete 8 an intention to settle on a net basis or reatise the assel and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the group or the
counterparty.

Derivative financial Instruments

The Group uses derivative fi ial ingts ts, such as foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate swaps 10 manage its exposnre to inlerest rate and
foreign exchange eisks. For contracts where hedge accounting is not followed, such derivative financial instruments ate initially recognised at fair value on the
date on whiel a derivative contract is entored into and are subsequently ce. d at fair valuc fhrough profit or loss account. Denvatives are carred as

Financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative,
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Employec benefils

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefiis ore expensed as the related service is provided. A linbility is recognised for the amounnt expected to be paid if the Group has a
present legol or constructive obligation ko pay this smount az a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated relinbly.

Compensated absences

The liabilities for eamned leave and sick Ieave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the peried in which the employees render
the related service. They are thorefore measured as the present value of expected future paymenls te be made in respect of services provided by employees up o
the end of the reporling period using the projected unit credit method, The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that
have terms approximating [o the terms of the refated obligation. Re as a result of exporience ndjustments and changes in actuarial assumptiong are
recognised in profit or logs.

Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contribulions to defined contribution plang are expensed as the related service is provided, Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

Defined benefit plans

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earued in the curcent and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets,

The caloulation of defined benefit abligalions is performed anaually by a qualified actuary using the projected unil credit method. When the ealeulation results in
a potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan
or reductions in future contributions to the plan, To caleulate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given te any pplicable minimum fonding
requireinents.

Re tof the net defined benefit Liability, which camprise actuarial gains and losses, the refum on plan assets {excluding interest} and the effect of the
asset ceiling {if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income (QCI). Net interest expense {income) on the net defined
liability (assets} is computed by applying the discount rate, used o measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net defined linbility (asser) at the statt of the
financial year after taking into account any changes as a tesult of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interast expense and other expenses
related to defined benetit plans ave recognised in prodfit or loss,

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognises galns and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other long-tern employee beneflts
The Group's net obligation in respect of longterm employee benafits is the amount of future benefil that employees bave earned in return for their service in the

currcnt and priot petiods. That benefit is discounted to determine its p t value, R til are tecognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Provisions

Long-tenn provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The vowinding of the discount is recogniseil s
finance cost.

Provisions are measured at the present value of 2 *s besl estimate of the expenditure requited to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current markei assessments of the ime value of money and the rigks
specific to the Hability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expenge.

Onterous contracts
A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of
conatinuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Group recognises any itupairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The
weighted aveinge number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for fhe events for bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue 1o existing
shareholders, share split and reverse share split {consolidation of shares).

Diluted carnings per share is computed by dividing the profi 7 (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges 1o expense or income (net of
any atiributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potentinl equity shares, by the welghted average aumber of equity shares considered for deviving basic samings per
share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on conversion of all ditutive potential equity shares



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

I
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Currency: Indian rupees in crores) .
2,18  Recent n¢ ting pr 5 !
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {Indian Accouniing Standards) Rules as |

issued from time to time. On 23 March 2022, MCA smended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below, :

2 Ind AS 16 — Proporty Plant and cquipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale p ds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall
not be rocogaised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly alteibutable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equiptment. The
effective dafe for adeplion of this amendment is anuval periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022, The Group is currently evaluating the impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

b. Ind AS 37 — Pravisions, Coutingent Liabilitics and Contingent Asscts - The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling” a contraci comprises the *cosls
that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate dircotly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contmet (examplos would be direct
labour, materials) ot an allocation of other costs that relate divectly to fulfilling contracts (an exampie would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an
item of property, plant and cquipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective dato for adoption of this amendmen! is annual periods beginning on or after 1
April 2022. The Group is curtently evaluating the impaet on its consolidated financial statements.
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Note d (a}
Dnvestment Property

Particalars Treehokl land Buitding Comp Furnitore Office Electrical |  Flanland Total
and Mxinces | cquipment {ittings Machisery

Caost ! Deomed Cost

AL M March 2020 26.52 51428 .01 126 11.58 163,13 MTRE 312464
Additions - 53 - 0.57 LAL] 0.62 6.16 13.76
Orther adjusiments (0.84) {0.20) - - - “ - {1.04)
Diaposals - - - - - - - -
At31 March 2021 25,68 2571939 0.01 153 1168 163.75 154.01 313636
Additdons - 29543 098 48.36 893 17.00 60.54 43274
Dizposals - - - - - - - -
O ageount of acquisition of n subsidinry (Refer Now 50 - 984.20 - 007 - 494 Py 591,64
by}

ALM March 2022 25.68 1,859.58 099 $0.26 21,61 185.69 41693 4,860,
Drapreclation / anwprtisatlon and impairinent

At 31 March 2020 4.67 51026 - 0.0% 148 5312 15472 Th6.di
Charge for the year - 95.68 - .17 L1% 16.9} 1543 148.50
Disposal - - - - - - - -
At 31 March 3021 467 605,94 - 0.22 4,67 69.25 170.15 854.90
Chatge for the year - 1i7.76 .09 238 4.00 16.21 1078 180.22
Trisposals - - - - - - - -
At M March 2022 4.67 72370 .08 2060 8.67 8546 209.93 103512
Net Block as at 31 March 30621 2001 1.973.45 5.1 1.61 7401 94.50 143.87 21,281.46
Net Block as wt 31 Mnrch 2022 21.01 113588 .94 47.66 12.94 100.23 207.00 3,515.62
i) Amounts recopnised ln profit and Yoss for [nvegtnient property

Particulnrs M Marck 31 Murch

2121 b2 02 1]

Rental lncotine 573003 499,18
Direct operating oap from property thal | rental income 2126 211.5%
Dirzet operating ey from property that did not genene rental income 49.31 1002

ji} Leasing arraugementy

The Group hes leosed propenies under non Iabrle aperating leqzes in the capacity of o lessor. Refer Note 47B for future mininum lzose payinens in respact of thesa properties il the
expiry of lock in period,

1D Measuranent of Caly vaines

The fale value of i Tty are d incd aftor idering valuation by an dited independent valuer who holds 2 meognised and relevunl professional qualification and
experlence in respect ol the |nveal|'nunl properly being valued A valnation model in di with hat led by the L ional Veluation Stundards © ilee has been epplisd
Tor val perfi 1 by i dent valuer. The independent valuer is a regi  valier 25 defncd under rule 2 of Companies (Reglatered Yaluers and Valualion} Rules, 2017,

The fair value measurement for all of the investment property has been categorized os 0 Level 3 fair value based on the inputs 1o the valugtion technique wsed.

¥} Vaiuailon technlgue:

a. Yaluatlon of seme subject propery hos been done by Sakes Comparizon Methed under Market Approsch. A compaﬂson fs ropde For the purpese of yaluation with similor properties shot have
recently been sold in Hie market and thivs ave a Iranzacon price. The soles comparison appeoact is the  pr fi pprraach when sales data are available, G ble properties are selected for

similotity to the subject properiy sonsidering oltribules like oge, size, shape, quality of (N g eatures, condition, design, gentry, e1¢, Their snle prices are then adjusted for their
diferenee Fom the sabject property. Finally o narket value for the subjeet prop is esil d from Ihe adjusted sales price of the compurable properties.

v The Group alse has Pllowsd di d cash fows techiique for sorme propertics which considets the prosent value of et cash flows o be g d frotn the p

p maing risk
dlseount rates.

. In cuse of 2 valualion of 2 large land patec], whers the development patential is realised over a penod ol time {i.c. llme value of money comes into the picture) and alse where thers sm no or
faw il Jiate sioilar properties {ie, parab ilab le for comparisen, DCF methad considering televunl pr il | of the project is used.

Tavestaweni property comprises a number of cammercial properiics Ibat are Imed 1o third perties. Each ol the leass entered are nomelly for 2 period of § 1o 10 years. Subsequent rencwals ary
negatiated wilh (1¢ losset or as per Lhe terms of initisl ogr we ily d. Mo ingenl rents are charged.

Reconcillatipn of fair value
The folewling is the reconcilintion i the falr valwes a3 of 31 Mareh 2021 and 11 March 2022:

Particwlars Amount
Opening batance as of 1 April 2020 5416.30
Additions 363.82
Eolr wetue difference {15784}
Clasing balnnec as of 3 March 2021 5,622,534
Addition on sccount of acquisition of a subsidiary {Refer 100104
Mote 30 {b}}

Addifions 1.
_Fair value dliRersnce 88668

Closing balance as of 31 Mareh pir] 1.961.80




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Carrency: Indian rupees in crones)

Note 4 ()

Right to use an asset

Particulars Lenschold land Oifice Taotal
Promises

Cost

At 31 March 2020 141279 1.51 1.414.30
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
At 31 Morch 2021 1,412.79 151 141430
Additions - - -
Disposgla - - -
At 3 March 2022 141279 1.51 1,414.30
Amortisation and impairment

At3) March 2020 165.93 0.4 165.97
Charge for the year 14.13 0.17 14.30
At31 March 2021 180.06 Q.4 180:27
Chnrge for the year 14.26 o7 14.43
Disposals - - -
At 31 March 2022 19432 £.38 194,70
et Blacle as at 31 March 2021 1,232.73 1.3 1,234.03
Net Block as at 31 Mavch 2022 +, 2847 113 1,219.60

Nute 4 {c)
Goodwill

Goodwill acquired on b

-

is

binotion. The cacrying 1 of Goodwill has been atlocated ns follows:
Particylors 31 March 2022 31 March
2021
Gooldwill in respect of:
'TRIL [nfopark Limited 190.53 19053
TRIL [T4 Private Limited (Refer Mole 50 (b)) 211,73 -
auz26 15053

d, at acquisition 1o the cash generating units (CGUs) that nre expected to benefit from that business




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Note 5
Capital work-in-progress (Refer Note 59}
Project consultancy and technical charges 0.63 0.63
Others 0.62 -

1.25 0.63
Note &
Investment property under construction
Land 11.40 203.84
Project Development Expenses 251.14 260.38
Finance Costs (including unwinding of interest) 598 132,87
Construction Cost to Contractor 0.24 228.98
Direct expenses - 22.68

268.76 848.75

Note 7
Intangible assets under develepment under Service Concession Arrangements (Refer Note 60)
Project Development Expenses - 1,059.37
Professional Fees - 573
Finance Costs {including unwinding of inierest) - 200.88
Construction Cost to Contractor 7.00 123,94
Financial liability for premium payable recognised at fair value - 10146
QOther Expenses - 40.77

7.00 1,732.15

K



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 8
Intangible assets
Particulars Software Service Coneession Total
Arrangenents
(refer font note
below)
Cogst/ Decaned Cost
At 31 March 2029 4.05 1,934.29 1,938.34
Additions 050 2976 3246
Disposals {0.08) - {08y
At 31 March 2021 447 1,964.05 1,968.52
Additiony 13.56 1.850.39 1,903,905
Disposils - - -
At 31 Mnrch 2022 1303 3 854.44 387247
Asnortisation and impairment
At 31 Muoreh 2021 3.15 161.85 165.040
Charge for the year 0.37 43.16 43.53
Disposals {0.08}) - {0.08)
At 3 March 2021 344 0501 208.45
Charge for the year 1.39 104,52 10591
Disposals - - -
At 31 March 2022 4.93 309.53 31436
Net Block os at 31 March 2021 143 1,750.04 1,760.07
Mot Block as nt 31 March 2022 13.24 J.544.91 3,558.11

Service concession agrecments

Name of anlity

Drescription of thve arramg

Significant terny of the arvngement

Intermational Tnfrabuild Pvr, Lid.

As per the O jon Agr {CA}Y Ihe Company i3 required to build
and operate Multi Level Car Patking and collect Parking fecs from
Vehicles and User fees for Public Convenience Fecilities, The CA slso
specifies thoi the Compony i required to buili end operale of the tolal aren
of comniercial infrastructure and an arca of 3% i.e 466 sq.m shall be
reserved for Auto Showrcom/Auto Workshop.

Perind of concession; 33 years (2017-2050)

L grant from ion grantor : Mil
Ly and 1 abligati '.Nil
Basiz upon which re-pricing or R-neg is d ined : [nMuki

Premiwn payablo to grantot :Rs. 2.66 ere plus esealation increase

Hampi Cxpressways Private Limited

Desigh, Bulld, Finance, Cperate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis,
angmentation of the existing road from kin 299.00 to lan 418,750
{approximeatedy 126,18 kra) on the Hospet-Chitradurga section of National

Period of concession: 26 years (2014 - 20413
Rcmunemtlon Tell Fee Collection from Road Users

Highway No.13 (New National Highway Ne.50)

grant from ion grantor : Mil
1 and | obfigations - Nil
Basis upen which repticing or 1 ition is d ined : Inflai

IPremivm payable 1o grantor :Rs. 18,15 cro plus escalation increase

Uchit Bxpressway Private Ltd.

Six Laning of Chitlorgarh-Udaipur Section of NH-76 from Design
Chainage Kin 214.870 te K 308,370 [n the Siale of Rajasthan (Length

Period of concassion: 29 Years {2017-2046)

43,500 Km) on DBFOT ({Toll} Mode under NHDP Phase ¥ {Packags -111)

R ion : Toll Fee Collection from Road Users
L grant from grantor : MIL
I and 1 obligations : MiL

Basis wpon which re-pricing or re-negoliation 8 determined : NA
Premivin payable to geantor : R5. 25 crs plus escalation increase

[rurg Shiviath Expressways Private Limited

Toll collections from the users and eperalion and maintenance of lotal
stretch of 18.5 kins at NH-6, Durg Bypass as agreed between the
{Comy and Motional Higt Authority of India (MFAT) on Build,
{Operato wwl Transfer l'BOT] Imus

13 Peticd of Concession: 32 Years and 6 months (2007-2030)

2)E icn: Toll Fee Coll from Road Users

33 Inveshment Grant from Concession Grantor ~ NIL

4) Basis upon which re-pricing o re-negotiation is determined — Toll Taifl
will be revised 15t April of every yeor considering WP

53 Premium payable to Grontor - NIL

Dharomshala Ropeway Limited

Apeeement entered with The Depaniment of Tourism & Civil Avialion,

Period of ¢conceselon: 40 Yoars fromn 1o appoinimenl date {2020-2060)

Himachal Pmdcsh {*Anthority' ) for the ion of P R jon 1 Collectlon on Ropeway lickels

R g Dl hala te Me leodgnnj, Length of I??? [ grant frotn « ion grantor | NIL

Melers underDBFOT Model (Desu;n, Sulld, Finance, Operate and Invesl and | obligationa : Mil

Transfer Model), referred to oz ™ ger Ropeway Facilit”. Basis wpon which re-pricing or re-negotiation is determined : AS per
congesshon agresmeant
Premivum payable to grantorRs, | ot plus escatalion Increase

Matheran Ropewny Private Limited Development of & Ropeway project in ot Mahbnrashira of approx.  JThe Company has sigtied an Age with The Marl Girisllun Nagar
4500 Meters ting Bhutivali Village to Madhavji Point at bMatt Parishad, Mail on 20th May 2003 for & peried of 99 years, The Company

lon Dgign, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer {DBFCT) basis. The
Project wonld huve all clements of sustainsbility and would be noise free,
eleciricily driven, Eco-friendly and non-polluting; It is esti d that the
Project would snve ~ 1000 tonue of carbon dioxide coaissions.

has agreed 1o pay eompensation squal i 5% of its net profits of each vear 1o
batheran Giristhan Magar Porjshad, Matheran,




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 9

Investment accounted using Equity Method (at carrying cost):

Unquaoted equity shares, fully paid-up
A, Investment in Joint Ventures:

2,386,711 (2021: 2,386,711} equity shares of Pune Solapur
Expressways Private Limited, of Rs.10 each fully paid up.

Nil (2021: 740,000} equity shares of INR 10 each in TRIL IT4 Private
Limited ## (Refer Foot Note 1 below)

Nil (2021: 30,000) equity shares of A & T Road Construction
Management and Operation Private Limited, of Rs.10 each fully paid
up (Refer Note 52)

3,256 (2021: 3,256) equity shares of INR 100 each in Industrial
Minerals and Chemicals Company Private Limited (Refer Foot Note 1
below)

19,987,400 (2021: 19,987,400} equity shares of INR 10 each in
Mikado Realtors Private Limited (Refer Foot Note 1 below) (Net of
Provision for Diminution in value of Rs, 18,01 crores (2021; Rs. 84.56
crores) based on fair valuation}

244,199,995 (2021: 98,797,395} equity shares of INR 10 each in Pune
IT City Metro Rail Limited
B. Investment in an Associate:

368,335,368 (2021 18,51,85,185) equity shares of INR 10 each in

Tata Housing Development Company Limited
A

Investment in debentures of Joint Ventures:

Nil {2021: 814) Quoted Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures of
INR 10 Lacs each in TRIL IT4 Private Limited (Refer Foot Note 2
below)

11,787,460 (2021; 11,787,460) Unquoted Compulsorily Convertible
Debentures of INR 100 each In Industrial Minerals and Chemicals
Company Private Limited

(B)
(A+B)

## Unrecognised share of losses in joint ventures
TRIL IT4 Private Limited (Refer Note 52)

Foot Notes:

As at As at
31 Maxch 2022 31 March 2021

30.05 17.11

- 0.01

218.81 219.21
181.45 21597
234.84 101.86
960.70 500.00
1,625.85 1,054.16

- 31.40

117.87 117.87
117.87 199,27
1,743.72 1,253.43
- (192.18)

1. The Group has provided non disposal undertakings to the lenders / investors of its joint ventures for the minimum

shareholding that the Company needs to maintain until the final settlement date of the loan.

2. In the absense of any transactions, the book value of TRIL IT4 Limited is considered as the fair value.

o

g




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the cousolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 10
Other Investments (non-current)
Investment in Unquoted, Fully paid-up, Equity instruments of Other
Companies (Fair Valued Through Profit and Loss)
136,500 (2021: 117,600) equity shares of Vagarai Windfarms Limited * 014 0.12
2,380,000 (2021:2,380,000) equity Shares of Perinyx Neap Private Limited* 2.38 2.38
45,578 (2021: 105,578) equity shares of Echanda Urja Private Limited * 0,05 0.11
24 400,000 (2021: Nil) equity shares of TRIL Constructions Limited 24,40 -
12,151,200 (2021: Nil} 0.001% Compulsory Convertible Preference shares 12,15 -
in TRIL Constructions Limited
39.12 2.61

Note:

* The said investments represent investments in equity shares of the above mentioned entities pursuant to the requirement
under the Electricity Act, in connection with the power purchase arrangement that the Group has in place with these parties.
As per the terms of these investments, the Group is not entitled to any other returns or benefits and will be entitled to receive
the amount invested equivalent to the face value of the equity shares upon expiry of such agreements.

Note 11
Otlier financial assets (non-current)
Unsecured, considered good

Fixed deposit having maturity more than 12 months under lien 0.01 2.9
Lease rental receivable 2.08 2.30
Security Deposits 10.69 13.12

12.78 18.36
Note 12

Deferred tax assets (Net)

Deferred tax assets on

- Unrecognised losses on investments in joint ventures - 22774

- Other financial assets and derivate instruments at fair value through - 32.38
profit and loss

- Unused Tax losses carried forward 65.77 -

- Other provisions (including provision for employee benefits and 1.44 5.78
other amounts allowable on a payment basis)

- unabsotbed depreciation - 118.05

67.21 178.95

o>
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Tndian rupees in crores)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 13
Non Current tax assets (Net}
Advance tax 201.91 168.29
Less: Provision for tax (104.56) {69.45)
97.35 98.84
Note 14
Other non-current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances 19.45 76.32
Balance with Government Authorities 11.77 12.10
Prepaid expenses 17.14 11.13
Lease equalisation reserve 137.24 130.08
185.60 229.63
Note 15
Inventories
(valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is less)
Consumables stores and spares 0.18 -
Work-in-progress - 24.34
Finished goods {Refer foot note) 201.85 246.95
202.03 271.29
Note 16
Trade recetvables (Refer Note 61)
- From related parties
Secured, considered good 0.28 0.16
Unsecured, considered good 5.46 3.98
Unsecured, credit impairad 306 3.06
Less : Provision for credit impaired Trade Receivables (3.06) (3.06)
- From others
Secured, considered good 14,04 11.89
Unsecured, considered good 1,66 332
Unsecured, credit impaired * 3.20 0.36
Less : Provision for credit impaired Trade Receivables * {3.20) {0.36)
21.44 19.35
* Includes unsecured, credit impaired Trade receivables / provision thereon aggregating INR 2.02 crores on acquisition of a
subsidiary.
Note 17
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.17 0.25
Balance with banks
- in current accounts 105,73 31.52
- in deposit accounts 78.03 150.19
183,93 181.96
Note 18
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Term deposit with original maturity less than twelve months 59.30 48.40
Term deposit with original maturity less than twelve months under lien 2.24 42.34
61.54 90.74

tob



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)
As at
31 March 2022

Note 19
Investments {(current)
Investment in mutual funds, fair valued through Profit and Loss

As at
31 March 2021

Units Held 304,988,725 (2021 : 646,688.418) of Face value of Rs 102,49 210,02
1,000 (NAV - Rs. 3360.4521 (2021 : 3,247.6337)) each in TATA
liquid fund - Direct Plan - Growth
Units Held Nil [2021: 2,208.76] of Face value of Rs 10 (NAV - Rs, - 0.68
Nil [2020: Rs. 3058.0616 ] each in HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Plan -
Growth Option
Units Held Nil [2021: 754,765.41] of Face value of Rs 10 (NAV - Rs. - 23.00
Nil [2020: Rs. 304.7364]) each in ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund -
Direct Plan - Growth
Units Held Nil [2021: 15,050] of Face valve of Rs 16 {NAV - Rs. Nil - 1.64
[2020: Rs.1,087.9196]) each in Axis Overnight Fund Direct Growth
102,49 235.34
Note 20
Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)
Inter corporate deposits to related parties - 20.70
(Unsecured, credit impaired)
Intet corporate deposits to other parties 517 5.17
Less : Provisions .17 .17
- 20.70
Note 21
Other financial assets (current)
(Unsecured, considered good)
Interest acerued on deposits 1.96 0.93
Claims Receivable from NHAI (utility shifting) 9.9¢ 13.33
Contractually recoverable expeneses from related parties 7.29 301
Unbilled revenue 8.96 5.70
Claim Receivable from NHAI (Refer foot note below) 42,61 34.44
Security deposits 0.71 3.20
Others current financial asset 44,68 4792
116.11 108.53

Foot Note:

Claim Receivable from NHAI pertains to claims towards change in law as per clause 41.1 of Service Concession Agreement
entered by Hampi Expressways Private Limited with NHAIL These are back to back claims made by EPC Contractor as per
clause 24.2 of EPC agreement and the same are payable to the EPC Contractor only to the extent such claims are recognised
by NHAI as change in law and payments are released. To the extent such claims are not accepted by NHAI the same shall
accordingly not be payable to EPC contractor and accordingly corresponding liability shall reduce (also Refer Note 32).

Note 22 ’,

Other current assets

(Unsecured, considered good)

Advance to vendors 2.73 0.76

Balances with Government and other authorities 13.37 11,13

Prepaid expenses 11,10 11.45

Lease equalisation reserve 1031 7.51

Others 5.81 2,35
41.32 33.20

Xe
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores}

Note 23

Equity share capital
Authorised share eapital

§,00,00,00,000 (2021: 8,00,00,00,000) equity shares of INR. 10 each

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

8,000.00 8,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
1,61,73,07,692 (2021 1,61,73,07,692) equity shares of INR 10 each 1,617.31 1,617.31

1,617.31 1,617.31
Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Equity shares 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

At beginning of ihe year 1,617,307,692 1,617.31 1,017,307,692 1,017.31
Tssued during the year * - - 600,000,600 600.00
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,617,307,692 1,617.31 1,617,307,692 1,617.31

* _During the previous year, 60,00,00,000 Equity shares of INR 10 each were alloticd from share application money pending alloiment at a premium of

INR 10 each.

Terms and rights attached to the equity share

The Company has onfy one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, The
Cotnpatty declires and pays dividends, if any, in Indian rupees, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, is subject (o the approval of
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to
receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amomnts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity

shares held by the sharcholders.

Shares of the Company held by the Holding company

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid-up
Tata Sons Private Limited and its nominees 1,617,307,692 1,617.31 1,617,307,692 1,017.31
Details of sharchelding more than 5% in the Company
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number of sharesj % Holding Number of shares % Holding
Equity shares of INR. 1¢ each, fully paid-up
Tate Sons Privete Limited and its nominees 1,617,307,692 100% 1,617,307,692 100%
Details of sharcholding of proinoters and percentage of change during the year
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number of shares | % Holding Number of shares % Holding
Equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid-up
‘Tata Sons Private Limited and its nominees 1,617.307,692 100% 1,617,307,692 10084

b




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indian rmipees in crores)
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Note 24
Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Securities premiutn reserve 757.69 757.69
Capital reserve 49.11 49.11
Retained earnings (1,569.16) (1,652.50)
Other comprehensive income
Defined benefit plan adjustment 1.18 1.63
{761.18) {844.0T)
Share application money pending allotment
Balance at the beginning of the year - 1,260.00
Received during the year - -
Less: allotment of shares during the year - (1,200,00)
Securities preminm reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 757.6% 157.69
On allotment of shares during the year - 600.00
757.69 757.69
Capital reserve
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 49.11 49.11
49.11 49.11
Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year {1,652.50) (1,357.99)
Net profit / (loss) for the year attributable to owners 83.34 {294.51)
(1,569.16) (1,652.50)
Other comprehensive income - Defined benefit plan adjustment
Balance at the beginning of the year 1.63 0.29
Remeasurements of defined benefit plan (0.65) 1.76
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.20 {0.42)
1.18 1.63

w”




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non-contrelling interests
Balance at the beginning of the year 55.02 63.84
Less: Reduction due to loss of control in a subsidiary (Refer Note 50 (a)) (52.59) -
Loss for the year (0.43) {(8.82)
2.00 55.02

Nature and purpose of the reserves:

Securifies premium reserve

1) Securities premium is used to record the premivm on issue of shares. This reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes
such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

2) During FY 2015-16 100,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each at a premium of INR 10 each were issued on conversion of
certain convertible preference shares.

3) 0.01% Compulsorily convertible debentures were compulsorily convertible into equity shares by 25 August 2016 or before
at the option of investor. During the Financial year 2016-17 (on 24 August 2016), these debentures were converted into
192,307,692 Equity shaves of INR 10 each at a premiwm of INR 3 each.

4) During the previous year, 60,00,00,000 Equity shares of INR 10 each were allotted from share application money pending
allotment at a premium of INR. 10 each.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve of INR 49.11 crores was created to record excess of net assets taken over pursuant to scheme of merger
sanctioned by the Bombay High Court in the year 2015-16 between Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited, Mara Builder
Private Limited and TRIF Real Estate and Development Limited.

Debenture redemption reserve

Debenture redemption reserve has not been created as per Section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 due to losses incurred post
issuance of debentures.

Note 25

Long-term Borrowings (refer footnote below)

Secured

From Banks and Financial Institutions 4,714.55 4,360.,53
{Net of Current maturities of long term borrowings of Rs. 41.26 crores

(2021; Rs. 173.48 crores)

From Others 239.37 22943
Unsecured
Non convertible debentures 1,023.33 1,643.24

{(Net of Current maturities of long term borrowings of Rs. 944.91
crores (2021: Rs. 723.65 crores)

From Banks and Financial Institutions 90.57 129.67

& 6,067.82 6,362.87
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 26
Other financial liabilities (non-current)
Financial liability for premium payment at fair value 092.63 702.85
Security deposits from customers 140,42 146.11
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.02 .
Derivatives not designated as hedges
- Put option - 14.41
Liability towards purchase of shares (Refer Foot Note below) 3.10 3.10
Retention money payable 0.42 7.85
836.59 874.32
Foot Note:

The Group had purchased the shares of Durg Expressways Private Limited from SMS Limited at a consideration of Rs. 240,76
crores, out of which the Group has paid Rs. 234.75 crores and the balance consideration of Rs. 6.01 crores was held as
"Holdback Amount" and was payable ouly upon fulfillment of conditions by the seller company. The said amount was
accounted as a liability under "Liability towards purchase of shares". During the previous year the seller fulfilled one of the

conditions and as per share purchase agreement the Group had paid Rs 2.91 crores.

Note 27
Long-term provisions
Provision for employee henefits:

- Gratuity 5,75 5.06

- Compensated absences 6.03 6.11
Provision for:

- Construction cost 28.51 12.81

- Major Maintenance of Other Assets 4.49 1.83

- Major Maintenance of Roads # 47.17 13.11

91.95 38.92

# As per the best estimate of the management, provision is been made, towards cost of major maintenance of the roads in

terms of the agreement entered into with National Highways Authority of India.

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 54.39 36.21
Add: Provision for the year 2782 18.18
Less: Utilisation / Settlement (29.16) -
Closing balance:

- Long-term Provision 4717 13.11

- Short-term Provision 5.88 41.28
Note 28

Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

- ot account of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 198.98 -
{on acquisition of subsidiary) (Refer Note 50(b))

- on account of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 67.98 134.31
{Others)

- on straight lining of lease rents and others 7.41 1.04

274.37 135.35

o



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian rupees in crores}

Note 29

Other non-current liabilities
Advance received from customers
Unearned rent

Note 30

Short-terin borrowings (Refer footnote to Note 25)
Secured

- From Banks

Unsecured
- From Bank

Commercial paper

- From Mutnal funds # (Net of unexpired discount of Rs. 23.17
crores (2021: Rs. 17.01 crores)

Bank Overdraft

Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings
Non-convertible debentures
From banks

Loans frotm Others *

Note:

# The said botrowing represents Commmercial paper issued to mutual funds at a discount rate ranging from 3.89% - 5.00% per

As at
31 March 2022

Asat
31 March 2021

- 70.50
37.37 11.95
37.37 82.45
27.14 8.91

290.00 100.00
1,796.83 657.99
43.29 .

944,91 723.65
80.26 173.48
1.00 1.00
3,183.43 1,665.03

anmum (2021: 3.80% - 8.70% per annuim), and the same are repayable within one year at the agreed upon full face value,

* Borrowing outstanding as on March 2022 is interest bearing equivalent to net FD interest rate, which shall be due and
repayable after satisfaction of tranche 1 conditions such as approval from relevant authorities to construct road from Bhivpuri
to ropeway base station, ELA Clearance as required under the Environment Impact Assessment Notification, 2006, approval of
ROW from District Collector and Forest Conservator and other conditions as mentioned in Share Holding Agreement. The

Group estimates that these conditiens will be satisfied by March 2023.
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 31
Trade and other payables {(Refer Note 62)

Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 48)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises

Note 32

Current - Other financial liabilities

Security deposits from customers

Capital creditors

Interest accrued on borrowings

Derivative Liability on put option

Financial liability for premivm payment at fair value
Payable - Claim to EPC (Refer foot note to Note 21)
Other financial liabilities

Note 33

Other current liabilities

Advances from customers

Statutory dues

Corpus Fund collection

Compensation on defayed possession payable
Unearned rent

Security Deposit from Customers

Other current liabilities

Note 34
Short-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits:
~ Gratuity
- Compensated absences
Provision for Major Maintenance of Road {refer footnote to Note No. 27)
Other Provisions

Note 35

Current tax liabilities (Net)

Provision for Tax

Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source

o

31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

0.34 0.97
81.29 60.34
81.63 61.31

116.19 95.65
70,19 83.81
32,42 219.79

- 196.33
48.53 20.35
42.61 34.44

3.13 4.21

363.07 654.58
31.86 18.93
14.46 7.89

5.05 3.34

0.11 0.11
16.96 26.76

0.53 0.58

1,65 1.35
70.62 60.96

0.77 0.45

1.65 1.37

5.88 41.28

1.42 0.72

9.72 43.82
89.95 89.75

(72.14) (72.19)
17.81 17.56




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Cumrency: Indian rupees in crores)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 36

Revenue from operations

(A) Sales of products
Sale of residential flats 73.81 96.89

(B) Sale of services

Construction revenue (Refer Note 51) 240.23 269.15
Toll revenue 324.16 222.76
Lease rentals 573.03 499.18
Maintenance and other receipts 70.53 64.28
Utility income 2737 26.83
Parking fees income 14,26 10.90
Room revenue 2.35 -
Sale of Food and beverages 1.29 -
Sale of scrap 0.17 -
Project management consultancy fees - 3.93
Asset Management Charges Income 4,72 1.64
Revenue from other services .67 -
1,324.59 1,200.56
Note 37
Other income
Interest income on fixed deposits with banks 7.59 9.67
Tuterest income on Inter corporate deposits / non convertible 5.75 17.16
debentures
Interest on income-tax refund 314 1.80
Profit on sale of current investments in Mutual Funds 4.60 135
Mark to Market gain on current investment in Mutual funds 165 0.62
Foreign exchange (Forward Contract Gain) 0.12 -
Fair value gain on derivatives (net} 12.63 -
Other income from residential projects 0.46 2.03
Gain on loss of control in a subsidiary (Refer Note 50 (a)) 15.01 -
Miscellaneous income 1.03 228

51.38 40.91

=



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the conselidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian rupees in ¢rores)

Note 38

Cost of materials consumed

Opening balance - Bought out construction materials
Add: Purchase of materials

Less: Closing inventoties

Expenditure incurved during the year:

Opening stock of Inventories - Finished Goods and Work in Progress
Less - pursuant to loss of contrel in a subsidiary (Refer Note 50 (a))
Addition during the year

Construction cost

Approval and permission expenses

Professional fees and technical fees

Other expenses

A+B

Less: Closing Stock of Inventories - Finished goods and Work in progress
Cost of flats sold

Note 39
Construction ¢osts for Toll Roads (Refer note 51)

Note 40
Employee benefit expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus
Contributions to : Provident and pension funds
Staff welfare
Gratuity expenses
Compensated absences

Less: capilalised to investment property under construction
Less: capitalised to intangible assets under development

Note 41

Finance cosls

Interest costs;

- on term loans and NCD's from Banks and Financial Institutions
- on cash credit and overdrafts from Banks

- on commercial paper from Mutual Funds

- on Lease liabilities

MTM on forwaid contract

Finance charges

Unwinding of interest expense

less: capitalised to investment property under construction
less: capitalised to intangible assets under development

>

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

- 0.52
0.52 -
(0.18) .
0.34 0.52
271.29 33535
(24.34) .
- 7.25
- 0.02
- 0.36
. 0.17
246.95 343.15
247.29 343.67
201.85 27129
4544 72.38
239.47 262.29
239.47 26229
87.39 82.29
334 1.99
3.02 1.51
2.63 217
1.13 1,29
97.51 89.25
0.34) (0.46)
(1.19) (1.65)
95,98 87.14
551.36 501.19
0.61 -
5478 39.39
0.13 0.14
0.05 2.19
3.07 3.92
101.47 77.81
71147 624.64
(12.79) (16.55)
(10.06) (751
688.62 600.58

RS



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Note 42
Other expenses
Power and fuel 30.32 25.80
Provision for diminution in value of Investments {Refer Note 9} 18.01 84.56
Repairs and maintenance
- Building 0.62 0.43
- Plant and Machinery 0.21 -
- Provision for Major Maintenance of Roads (Refer Note 27) 27.82 18.18
- Provision for Major Maintenance of Others Assets 2.66 1.83
- Others 8.95 7.40
Project operating and maintenance charges 72.96 82.91
Fair value loss on derivatives {net} - 22.52
Advertisement and business promotion expenses 57 4,78
Legal and professional fees 19.62 21401
Rates and taxes 8.70 421
Rent (Refer Note 47) 1.00 2.56
Travelling and conveyance 3.66 1.65
Bank charges 0.16 0.44
Telephone and communication expenses .27 0.16
Training and recruitment expenses 1.67 048
Provision for credit impaired Trade Receivables 0.32 -
Auditor’s remuneration {Refer foot note below) 1.76 1.13
Brokerage 5.12 4.51
Insurance charges 5.29 4,00
Fees to NHAI 1.08 0.90
Printing, coutier and stationery 0.11 0.09
Directors sitting fees 0.27 0.68
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.01 0.02
Expenditure on Corpotate Social Responsibility 1.45 0.65
Miscellaneous expenses 8.59 3.04
226.84 293.94
Foot Note:
Auditor's remuneration include payments towards:
- for statutory audits 1.1¢ 0.62
- for limited reviews / audits of condensed intetim financial information 0.36 0.15
- for tax audits 0.18 0.14
- for other services 9.12 022
1.76 1,13
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Tndian rupees in crores)

Naote 43
Earnings per share
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Bnasic earnings per share
Loszs after tax atiributable to equity sharehalders A 83.34 (294.51)
Mumber of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,617,307,692 1,017,307,692
Equily shates allotted on 9 April 2020 - 600,000,000
Number of equity shares ontstanding at the end of the year 1,617,307,692 1,617,307,692
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Basic} B 1,617,307.692 1,604,157,007
Weighted average number of equity shates outstanding during the year {Diluted} c 1,617,307,692 1,604,157,007
Basic earmnings per share of face value of Rs 10 each [D=AMB] 0.52 (1.82)
Diluted earnings per share
Dihued earnings per share of face value of INR 10 each [E=A/C] 0.52 {1.32)
Note 44
Contingencles and commitments
(i) Contingent Linbilities (Refer footnote)
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts 31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
- Direct tax 46.18 ZL.74
- Indirect tax 11.03 9.75
- Other Legal Claims 20,62 6.55

Foot Mote:
The Group does not expect any outflow of economic resources in respect of the above and therefore no provision is made in respect thereof.

{iiy Commitments
{a) Indemnity for representations and watranties for disinvestment in retail business - INR 13.50 crores {2021: INR. 13.50 crores).

{b} Bauk guarantee issued on behalf of the Parent Company and its Subsidiaries and Joint Ventutes out of the overall non fund based limits of the
Company - INR 34,59 crores {2021: INR. 161.72 crores).

{c) The Parent Cotnpany has issued Cotporate Guatantses to banks in respect of loans availed by a joint venture i.e. Pune Solapur Expressways Private
Limited - [NR 197.40 crores (2021: INR 197 40 crores).

{d) The Parent Company has issved letter of comfort to banks in respect of loans availed by a few of ils subsidiaries and joint ventures :

Namne of subsidiarles / Joint ventures Nature of Comfort given

i |Mikado Realtors Pvi. Ltd. Shortfall undertaking to imeet any shortfall during the tenure of facility

() The Parent Company has issued financial support letter to following subsidiaries and joint ventures on the basis of which the separate financials
statements have been prepared on going concern basis:

13 Acme Living Solutions Private Limited

2) MIA Infrastructure Private Limised

3) Wellkept Facility Management Services Private Limited (Previously known as TRIL Hospitalily Private Limited)
4) TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited
5) Gurgaon Constrvctwell Private Limited

&) Arrow Infracstate Private Limited

73 Gurgaon Realtech Limnited

8} HIV Farms Private Limited

93 TRIL Roads Privaie Limited

10} TRIL Usban Transport Private Lisnited

1 1} Tnternational Infrabuild Private Limited

bt




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolldated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Cumency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 45 i
Caplial and other comunltinents

Particulars 31 March 2621 31 March 2021

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of 7240 153.11
|advances}

Note 46
Segment reporting
A. Basls for segmentation
The Group has three reportable segments, as described below, whicl are the Group's strategic business units. These business units offer different
products and services, and are managed separately because they require different techmology and marketing strategies.

The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group's reportable segments:
table segment
- Plevelopuient of Residential property for outright sale.
- Real Estate
- Infrastructure

B. Information about reportable segments
Information regarding the resulis of ¢ach reportable segmient is included below. Performanee is measured based on segment profit (before tax), as
incioded in the internal management reports that are reviewed by the Group's CODM., Segment profit is used to measure performance as management
believes that such information is the most relevant in evaliating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these
industries, Inter-segment pricing is determined on an ann's length basis,

Eefer Annexure A

C. Information about major customers
Thete are no customers from whom Greup recognises revenue more than 10% of total revenue of the Group.

o
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consclidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 47
Lease arrangements
A Operating leases - as a lessee
a) The Group has taken various premises under llable operating leages.

b) The Group has aiso taken a cominercial properly and certain residential premises on non-cancellable operating leases. The future minimum lease
payments in respect of these properties as on 31 March 2022 is as follows:

Lease Payments 31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Mot later than one year - 1.33
Later than one year but not later than five years - -
Later than five years - -
Payments of lease rentals during the year LOO C 256

c) There are no exceptionalitestrictive covenants in the lease agreements.

B As a lessor:

(iy Operating Lease

The Group has leased some investment properties. As on 31 March 2022, the finture minitmum lease payments in respect of these properties till the
expiry of lock in period is as follows:

(i)

31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
Mot later than one year 482,78 406,04
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,073.13 791.38
Later than five years 295.89 129.91
1,851.80 1,327.33
Lease Rental Ingome for the year 573.03 499,18

Finance leases - Fit-out and interior work

The Group's leasing arrangement represents the fit-out or interior work comnpleted for the customers which have been classified under Ind AS 116 as
Finance lease. The lease terms are for the periods of five to seven years where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the
lessee. The Group records disposal of the property concerned and recognizes the subsequent interest in the finance lease. No contingent rent is

receivable in this regard.
Finance leases nre receivable as follows:

£;ross investment in lease

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Receivable within one year 0.52 0.5t
Receivable between one and five years 2.62 253
Receivable afler five years .33 0.82

3.47 3.86

Present valne of mluimum lease payments

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Mot later than one year .25 0.22
Later than one year but not later than 5 years 1.82 1.56
Later than 5 years .31 0.74

.38 2.52

o

|
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited r

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Currency: lndisn ropees in crores)

Note 48 ;
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises |
Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) which came into force from 2 October 2006, certain disclosures
are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with the Management,
there are no outstanding dues to the Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as defined in the MSMED as set out in following disclosure;

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end {ofs. for less than 034 097 :
30 days)
Interest due thereon - - !
The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro Small and Medium - - :
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) i
The amounts of the paymenits made fo micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed - - :
day during each accountiug year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment - -
{which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006,
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting - -
year,
The amount of farther interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, - -
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise
Amount of interest acorued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year - -
Note 49
Expenditure in foreign currency {on accrual bagis) 31 Marclh 2022 31 March 2021
Professional fees 0.80 -
Training and conference expenses 0,02 0.01
Travelling expenses - -
\Membership and Subscription Expenaes 0.10 LAY
Note 50

(a) Gain on account of loss of control In a subsidiary

Upte 16 November 2021, the Group had 67.50% ownership interest in TRIL Constructions Limited (TCL), a subsidiary. On 17 November 2621, the
Group disposed off 47.75% ownership interest in TCL, thereby losing control over TCL.

The details of such disposal are as set out in the table below:

Particulars INR in crores
Consideration received in cash 47.13
Investment retained in the former subsidiary at its fair value on the date of loss 36.55
of conlrol
Total {A) 83.68

Assets, linbillties and non-contrelling interest of the subsidiary derceognised
at their carrying amonnts on the date of loss of control:

Investment Property utider construction 193.67
Inventories 2434
Cash and cash equivalents 0.0t
Other current assets 0.03
Current liabilities (3.41)
Non-Current Linbilities {93.37)
Non-Controlling interests (52.59)
Total {B) 68.67
Profit on dispesal = {A)- (B} 15.01

=



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financinl statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2022 '
{Currency: Indian tupees in erores} i

(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary

Upto 27 July 2021, the Group had assessed and classified its 79.90% equity interest in TRIL IT4 Private Limited {TRIL 1T4) as a joint venture and had
accordingly acconnted for its investment in TRIL 1T4 using the Equity Method of accounting in the consolidated financial statements,

TRIL T4 is engaged in the business of developing and leasing of conunercial resl estate properties, which qualifies as a business as defined in Ind AS
{3, On 28 July 2021, the Group acquired the balance equity intevest in TRIL 1T4 to obtain 100% equity interest and control in TRIL 1T4,

The details of such acquisition are as set out in the table below:

Particulars INR in croves
Comsideration transferred in cash 110.58
The acquisition date fair value of the Group's previously held equity inlerest in 441,70
TRIL IT4 (Refer footnote below)
) Total (A) 552,28
The amownts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and
lianbilities assumed
Invesitnent Property 991.64
Investment Property under construction 2.40
Financial Assets (Investments in mutual funds) 419
Current Tax Assets 22.1%
Cash and Cash equivalents 6.05
Other Current Assels 23.85
Current Liabilities (407.70)
Financial Liabilities (Borrowings) (116.00%
Deferred Tax Liabilities (198.98)
Total (B) 340.55
Goodwill on acquisition = (A) - (B) 21173
Footnote:

The carrying value of the Group's previously held equity inierest in TRIL IT4 {prior to acquisition of control over TRIL IT4) under the equity
method of accounting was INR NIL. Pursuant Lo the acquisition of control over TRIL IT4, the Group has remeasured its previously held equity
interest in TRIL [T4 ar its acquisition date fair value. Such r ement has resulted in a gain of INR 441.70 crores, which has been
recognised in the Consolidated Statetnent of Profit and Loss in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 163 on "Business Combinations".

Note 51

Disclosure hi respect of Construction Contracts

For the Year

For the Year

Particulars ended ended

31 March 2022 | 33 March 2022
dCloFtract revenue recognized as revenue 240.23 268.15

wing the year
For the Year For the Year

Particatars ended ended

31 March 2022 | 31 March 2022
Cumulative revenue recognized 200334 200311
Cumulative eosts ingurred 2,781.42 2,541.95
Cumulative margins accounted 121,93 121.16
Advances paid 16.28 6]1.38
Retention money payable 1.74 0.65




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 52
Interests In other entitics
{n) Subsidlaries
The Farent Company s subsidinries ar 31 March 2022 are set out below.
Place of Ye of ownership interost
Nome of entlty buskiicss 31 March 2022 3 March 2021
Acme Living Solutions Private Limited India 100.00% 1000084
Arrow [nfracstate Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Gurgaon Constructwell Private Limited India 100, 061 BO0.00%
Gurgnon Realtech Linmited India 100, (%% 100.00%
TRIL Roads Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
TRIL Urban Transport Private Limited India 100.00% T 0%
Wellkept Facility Management Services Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
TRIL Construciions Limited {ceased to be a subsidiary India - 61,500
w.ef 17 November 2021) (Refer Note 50 {a))
TRIL [nfopack Limited [ndia 106.00% 104.00%
Hampi Expressway Private Limited India 10¢.00% 100.00%,
[TV Farms Private Limibed India 100.00% 100.00%
[ntemational [nfrabuild Private Limited (IIPL) [ndia 26.00% 26.00%
Dharamshala Bopeway Limited Tidia 74.00% 74.00%
Uchit Expressways Privie Limited India 100,000 100.00%
Matheran Ropeways Private Limited India 73.00% 70.00%
Durg Shivoarh Expressways Private Limited India 1,005 100.00%
MIA Infrastructure Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%%
TRIL Bengaluru Real Estate One Privote Limited India 100.00% 100,005
TRIL Bengaluru Consultans Private Limited (formerly India 100.00%% 100.00%
know as TRIL Bengaluru Real Estate Two Private
Limited)
TRIL Bengalur Real Estate Three Private Limited Indin 100.00% 100.00%%
TRIL IT4 Private Limited (became 100% subsidiary India 100.00% *
w.e.f 28 July 2021 (Refer Mote 50 {b)) - * Joint Yenlwe
upto 27 July 2021,
Infopark Properlies Limited (w.e.f 3 December 2021) Tndia 100,00% -

Signiltcant [udgement: consolidation of entities with less fhan 50%: voting interest

iy Although the Gronp owns less than one-halt’ of the voting power of Intemational [nfiabuild Private Limited ([IPL), it is able to control I[PL by virtue of an agreement with the other
investors of 1IPL which inter-alia provides the Group with power to appoint nmjority of the board of ditectors of IIPL and power over televant activities, Consequently, the Group

consolidates its investment in 1IPL.
{b} Non-controtling interests (NCT)

et oul below is summerised financial information for each subsidiary that bas non-controlling interests to the Group. The amouuts disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter-company

eliminations.
Summarlsed balance sheet

Dharamshala Ropeway TRIL Constructions International Infrabuild Matheran Ropeways

Limited Limited * Private Limnited Private Limited
31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 3 March
1021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Noun-current assets 213,75 156,12 - 194.61 49.41 52 16.% 16.90
Current assets 277 10.07 - 24.42 5.30 3.3 8.30 3.2¢
Mon-current liabilitics (170.50) (137.61) - (95.14) 38,27) (38.08) - -
Current linbilitles 35.05 {23.48) - 0,18y 8.12) (5.20 (L.1% (1.26)
Met nssets 1164 5.10 - 123.11 8.32 11.43 4.9 23.84
Met assets attributable to NCI - .01 - 53.08 - . 1.5¢ L3
Diaramshala Ropeway TREIL Cousir Inter 1 Infralyuild Matheran Ropeways
Limited Limbted * Private Limited Private Limited
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 upte 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 Morch 31 March
17 Mov 2021 2021 w022 2021 2022 2021

Surnmarised stateement of profit and foss
Reverme 187.13 .07 - - 9.21 4,14 0.34 047
{1.ossWProfit (.76} (2.62) (1.50) (24,300 3.02) (.19 023 0.77)
ocl .01 - . - - - - -
Total comprebenslve income 9,74} (2.62) (150 {24.30) (3.02) (7.79} 0.23 0.77)
Profil / {Losst allocated to WCI 227 (0.68) (0.49) {7.90) 2.23 (5.76) 047 {0.24)
OCT allocated to NCE - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income allocated te NCI 2.27} (0.63) {0,49) (7.90) {2.23) (5.76) 0.07 0.24)
Loss to NCI Restricted 0.01} (0.63} 045 (190 - - .07 (0.24)
Summarised cash flows
Cash Mows from operating activities {1.66) {4359} {0.31 {0.50) 4,24 (L7 .22) (L1
Cash Nows from invesling activities {45.31) (24.59) - - 431 (1.83) .28 0.77
Cash Aows from Ninancing activities 48.99 67.76 0.26 0.44 {4.05) 340 0.00} (0.01)
Met increasef {lecrease) in cash and cash equivalents 0.42 {0.52) (0.04) 0.07) .51 {0.24) 0.05 (0.35)

* ceased 1o be a subsidiary w.e.[ 17 Noveber 202 (Refer Note 50 (ap)
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Tata Roalty and Infrastructure Limited
Nnnneiod st 5 Far the year eeded 31 March 2022

Notes 10 the Consoli 1
{Curmency. Tndfon rupeca in croqes)

Mote 53

Fimanclnl instrumenis = Falr volocs and risk smneagenient

A Accaunting elassldenilvn and fair values

Corrying pingnnt Falr valvc
Lavel - Lovel
31 Murch 20z EVTM.  PYTOCI  Amortised Cosl Total Lenel L- Quotes price f:"":'::;'l': .:;%';':‘:l'}'m Total
Inpurs Inpals
Finoncial assats
[~ Equdty natrunmenly Jn ofhers %012 - - ki 4 - - iz Maz
- Bquity Inarumeants {n joint ventires aud associaie 162585 - - 162585 - - 1,625.85 L.625.9%
- Bonds and debentires - - 1787 Hrat - - -
Cucreat nvesitrnts in autd Rmds 10249 - - 10249 10249 - - 1074y
Tendw recelvables - - 21.44 2144 - - - -
[Cash and cosh cquiveleontz - - 130 183,03 - - - -
Lease ol ueeivuble - - .08 ro8 - - - -
UnbiTled revene - - 1.9 B0 - - - -
Dheproall aller bhan Included i exsly aird cish squivalents - - 6|58 §1.55 - - - -
Seourity deposits - - 11,40 1140 - - - -
Diileer noacinl ossets - - w15 B3 - - - -
1,767 A6 = 513,67 1381.13 13249 - 1,664,907 174746
Financiol Rntillies
Mot eonverllble debentures - - 196824 | 26824 - - - -
Financinl Tnbilivy for prentiun payinemn - - [ X %] G253 - - - -
D ing from Bank J fnancinf inste - - 544100 544189 - - - -
Commercial paper isgued lo madual funds - - 1, 70683 1,706.85 - - - -
Interest- Ewe seanrmly deposits from customers. - - 256,61 256.61 - - - -
Other finansial lielitlics - - 25070 30T - - - N
Trade poyables - + Bi43 EIE3 - - - -
= - 10,535.82 10,532,821 - - 43.2% 43,22
Cari! ek Fair ynhe
Level - Level 3
Level L= Quoted price  Signilennt Significant
3 Mnrch 2030 FYTPL FYTOCI Amozilsed Cost Total " nell\g ||u\_rk:|s oi::lrmhle ullrl;ervnlrle Tatal
inputs inputs
Finnncias naseis
Investineiiz
- Equiry inglruinents in ofhers 261 - - 261 - - 161 .61
- Equity inslraments in jolii venbires and msocinte * 1,054,146 - - 1.054.14 - - 1,054,168 1,884.16
- Bonds and debentures - B 19827 199,27 - -
[Curreot imecstusents in nruol funds M - 2354 53 - - 13534
| T Drepoaits glvow 1o Relined Panties - - 30 m - B - -
(Trala recoivables - - 1335 935 - - - -
{Cash atid cash equivalenis - - 191 18194 - - - -
Lesss rent receivable - 21 4 - - - -
Unbifled revenste - - 570 570 - B - -
Drepoail oller than induded io cash ond cash equivalents - - 93.68 9368 - - - -
Scourity doposing - %] 1632 - - - -
Loans - - M 20.70 - - - -
Caher financinl nsaets - - 6,62 D662 - + - -
12410 - 831 195102 235,14 - 145677 120011
Financin] linbilities
Non converlible debentures - - 1366.89 ALY - - -
Fhownckil Habdliny for premlom aynym - - 0245 RS - - - -
Bomowing (rom Banks and Anancil institions - 502,02 sa02.02 B - - -
Comnrerclal paper issued to mutus] fands - - 657,09 457.9% - - - -
Dicrivative insirutnenta
« Pun wpthom FALLYL] - - 21074 - - 1071 zInT
Tiereste Foe pecurley depwoshs from ausromens - - 24176 ML - - - -
Qther financin] liabilities - - 37504 375 - - - -
Trude puynbles - - 51.31 6131 - - - -
210.74 = 2.405.Te F619:80 - = 130,74 21674

* Baged on equity inethod ccounting.




Tata Realty and Infrastr uclure Limlted
Notes io 1he C Gidated 0 Ial st
{Curveney: Inlion ropecs 1o crores}

B. Mensuremient of Inir yolues

aluath i akd signifcant unobservable lnpuls

{5 for 1he year ended 31 March 2022

“The flleving |an: shows the vohialion tochoiques used in moasoring Level 2 ond Level 3 St values for Annciol insminents measires o fir volue in e staenent of finencial position aa well as the sigtificant unsbservablie baputs

uzall.

Flnanetsl instruments mensured 4l fnic valug

rate and (i) volatilly of stock prices of Wientical
secunlles m nnm The expeeted pay-oifis

gt strike price
of the opilon and the slmulnled equbly value per
shara al cach node. Tlk: Rir value ol the aplion is

Jiatcd b o ing the eslimated payofl
tesloig & riak free rofa for similor matwicy a3 the

valvialbon mode! wicks on a rlsk geloral ramesork.

(I Ml eroes)

Type Valuatlon techinigoe Slgnifcant Tulerrelationship belween
whohservabke inpis significant unsbsorvable Inpuls
A falr value
Finaaclal pasers
|Lovostmients
13 Equity instrurints in otlers {Echada Urjn Povare Limited) blensured al eost Ml applicable ot applicatde
21 Equilty hisiraineas i cthees (Y agami Windfaming Limircd)
3) Equity instraments i others (Peniyx Meep Privare Limited)
d) Bquity instrumonts in cibers (TRIL Constouctions Dlnkedy
Barfrative inshrwsends
- {'ut option - TGBL The Company bad wsed Manle Carlo sinmlation (o [2022; 2022
estinnibe Hws fair volue of the options. L. FN *HA
iz Corla Shivulation: The valuation medel 2021 '2021:
Jinal lhe equll)' b il share of ke * Thderlying espily valus of the company [+ Uniderbying ity value of |k compony {INTL 44.35 crores}
ing {{) o risk frec race |(ENER 44.35 erores)
rade and {i7) vedrtility of atock prices of identieal
Ti Il| markela ﬂueexpeciedp:ly\-oﬂ'ls
4 I d airlke price
of the option ond e simulated couiry valuc per
shnee ol cac noue. The fair valne af the option s
iremied by i b el pray-oll
using 4 gk Gy mate For sindlar nmturity os the
valuation model works on s sk delural Samework,
- Fopwands - 1AL The Comgany hid uged Moate Carko simulion o | 2022 @ 2022
atumeste the fair valie of ke options, * Undetlying Exqully vahwe of the coingany I i prise vahue of the comipany
(T ML <rores) mcreasw{dwems) by 10%, then fair vatus woukd
dotite Carle Sinulotion: Tlhe valustion moded A A L
| silaies the equity valuy per shore althe 2021 -
nnderbyng secwilied congidering (7} & nisk fra¢ i |* Uniderlying Equity value ofthe company 12021

Mtz lying endarprisa vulue of the compody
increasesf{decrenses) by [0%, then feir vahe would
{decreasepincrmnse by INR (1R 10%,

IEMWMg liave been recorded ot amartised cest:
Ll Ty M deb of equiry

inveatecy

2. Leasy renl roccivables

3. Seeurily deposit given

4, Mo convertitila debonmmres (borrawings)
5_Finaucial lichility for premium payment
6. Seurity deposhis recelved Bown customers

ot applicable

(Mal applicable

Mot appllcable

Financial ¢isk monngenent

Tle Comnpany hes expusire b te Billowing risks ariing fom faancial inginments:

A Credlt risk ;
B. Liguidiry risk ; and
., Mok risk

Rish magngenen! framewerh

“The Conpany’s board of diecctors hns overall raspois|bl ity e the enablishment mlowmghl efihe Conpanys rlsk nanogsimint fratveseork T Coanpaney winenges nearket risk Wheongh 3 treaanry depariment, which cunliales ml
risk

cxatmiges indepemden conrel over the anting procesy ol inudier risk

deparinend inelude ianageniend of oagh resoureas,

Tha treusury d

Lrafegrles, aml ensiwing

i - with market risk lionits and policies,

and polcles, which are approved by Board of Direciors. Tha sclivilics of thiy

The Company's risk managanent policies are establishod to idemily and analyze e risks fced by M1 Company, b sel appropriale tisk Iindls and controla and (o monitor risks ond adhevence o tinit, B sk munagemeat policies and
systoms are revigwed regularly ta relect changes in niket conditions and the Compaay's aclivilies, The Company. Mwaigh its ceainkng and manegemen standards and provedus, aims 1 maibie 3 disdplinet s wonsimeive
controd envi in which all empl | d veir podez oo obligatlons.

The Baard oversess Low inaragement monitors cotipbance with the company’s risk managemend polisies and procedures, and reviews lbe adequacy of the rak msnaguanent Baivework in velation to the risks faved by tbe Conpany.
The Bonrd it assiand i its cversight roke by interned andit, Jenol st wndertakes both regudar and ad hoc reviews ofrisk manegement controls aid procedures, the results of which arc reported (o e Daard,




Tata Realty and Infrastrncture Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: [ndian rupees in crores)

Liguidity visk

Liquidily risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Group manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and siressed conditions, without ingurring vnaceeptable losses or risk

to the Group’s reputation,

The Group has obtained fund and non-fund based working copital lines from varfous banks, Furthermore, the Group has access to funds from compulsory convertible and non-
convertible debentures from holding Group and other financial institution, The Group also constantly menitors funding eptions available in the debt and capital markets with

a view to maintaining financial fexibility.

Expaosnre to lguidity risk

The table below analyses the group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:

* all non derivative financial lisbilitics

* net and gross settled derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturities are essential for the understanding of the timing of the cash fows,

31 March 2022
Non-derivative fnancial labilities

Non convertible debentures

Financial Liability for premium payment
Interest- free security deposits from customners
Commercial paper issued to mutual fund

Trade and other payables

Botrowing from Banks and financial institutions
Other financial liabililies

31 Mareh 2021
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Non convertible debontures

Financial liability for premium payment
Interest- free security deposits from customers
Commercial paper issued o mutual fund

Trade and other payables

Borrowing from Banks and financial institutions
Other finaucial liabilities

Derlvative financial liabilities
- Put option

Contractusl cash flows
Carrying amount 1 year or less 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 vears
1,968.24 945 .00 400,00 625.00 -
602,63 51,29 71.54 150,22 2,138.21
256.61 11619 - 140.42 -
1,796.83 1,820.00 " - -
81.63 81.83 - . -
5,441.89 440,60 235.83 586.01 4,17945
252.70 252.68 - 0.02 -
10,533.82 3,751.68 713.37 1,502.67 6,317.66
Contractual cash flows
Carrying amount | year or less 1-2 years 2-5 years More than S years
2,366.89 725.00 94500 700,00 -
702,85 48.83 73.54 1403.54 2,240.45
241,76 95.65 - - -
657.99 675.00 - - -
61,31 61.31 - - -
5,002.02 346.69 393,17 855.06 3,518.96
37594 375.94 - - -
9,408.76 2,329.42 1,412,711 1,736,60 5,750.41
210,74 196.33 - 14,41 -
210.74 196.33 - 1441 -



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Credit Rislk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial ingtrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers. Credit risk is managed
through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of eustomers to which
the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Group establishes an allowance fot doubtful debts and
impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables, loans and advances and
investments.

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
demographics of the customer, including the defanlt risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also
has an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and

continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of
business,

Credit risk for receivables pertaining to residential business
The risk for trade receivables pertaining to residential business is considered nil as the possession of the residential

property is transferred only after the receipt of payment from the customer.

Summary of the Group's exposure to credit risk by age of the ontstanding from various customers is as follows:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Past due 0-180 days 16.47 11.94
Past due 181-365 days 4.03 3.68
Past due 366-73¢ days (163 3.73
Past due 731-1095 days 0.31 -
Past due more than 1095 days - -
21.44 19.35

¥



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becanse of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates borowings
from financial institulions,

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assefs 80.28 195.47
Financial liabilities 4,866.99 3,940.89

Variable-rate instruments
Financial liabilities 4,912.52 4,672.59

Interest rate sensitivity - fixed rate instruments
The Group does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, and the Group does not have any designate {inancial liabilities.

Interest rate sensitivity - variable rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased /
decreased equity and profit or loss by amounts shown below, This analyses assumes that all other variables, in
patticular, foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant. This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at
the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date, The period end
balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.

100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

As at '31 March 2022
Variable-rate instruments 49.13 49.1%)
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 49.13 49.1%)

100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

As at '31 March 2021
Variable-rate instruments 46.73 (46.73)
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 46.73 {46.73)

{Note: The impact is indicated on the profit/loss and equity before tax basis)

o



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Currency: Indian mipees in crotes)

Note 54
Capital Management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. It sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which
include capital and other strategic investments.

The funding requirement of the Group are met from fund and non-fund based working capiial lines from various banks. Furthermore, the
Group has access to funds from compulsory convertible and non-convertible debentures from holding Group and other financial institution.
The Group's policy is to use short-term and long-term horrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements.

The Group monitors capital using a ratio of *adjusted net debt’ to “adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debl is defined ag total
liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted
equity comprises all conponents of equity other than amounts accumulated in the hedging reserve,

Asat 31 March  As at 31 March

2022 20214
Total borrowings 9,251.25 8,027.90
Less : Cash and cash equivalents 183.93 181.96
Adjusted net debt 2,067.32 7.845.94
Adjusted equity 858.13 828.26
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 10.57 9.47

==



Tata Realty and infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Note 35
Tax expense
(a} Amounts recognised in profit and loss

M March 2022 31 March 2021
Current tax expense .42 517
MAT Credit entittement of enrilter years written off 1098 -
Deferred Tax Expense 51.98 169
Tax expense for the year 38.38 5.86
{h) Amounts recognised in ¢ther comprehensive i
For the year T#x {expense) Met of tax For the year Tax {expense) Net of tax
Before tax Before tax
INR INR INR INR INR INR
Ttems that will not be peclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (0.65) .20 (0.45) 1.76 (0.42) 1.34-
(0.65) .20 (0.45) 176 0.42) 1.34
{OR ilintion of effective tax rate
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit before tax 171.2% (296.47)
Tax vsing domestic tax cates {35.39) (66.96)
Tax effect of:
Current-year losses for which no deferred tax ssset is recognised 41.38 77.02
Unutilized MAT Credit - 0.73
Focognition of tax effect of previously unrecopnised tax logses 24,13 -
Others (1.46) [ERE}]
MAT Credit entiflement of earlier years written off {Refer note below) 19.98 -
Total 3838 686
Note:

The Parent entity of the Group has decided to exercise the option to be taxed under the scetion [15BAA of the Income-Tax Act,1961 {the Act) with effect from the financial vear
ended 31 March 2022, Therefore, the MAT credit entitfement of 1t5.29.98 crores, accounted in the books of account of parent ettity will no longer be resoverable, Accordingly,

this amourd has been writken off.




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian ropees in croves)

@

iy

(i)

Note 56
Disclosure pursuant fo Ind AS 19 on “Employeec Benefits”

The Group has adopted Ind AS 19 on “Employee Benefits” as per the Companies {Indian Acconnting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified
under Section [33 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘'the Act') and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Confribution to Provident fund
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Contribution to provident fund recognised as an expense under "Employee benefits*, 3134 .99
Defined Benefit Plans
Gratnity

The Group has a defined benefil gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years ot more of service gets a gratuity on death
or resignation or retirement caleulated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 with no ceiling.

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

I Change in the defined benefit obligation

Liability at the beginning of the year 551 549
Interast Cost .35 0.32
Current Service Cost 2,22 0.80
Benefit Paid 097 (0L39)
Actuarial Loss on obligations (0.65) (1.76)
Liability acquired on acquisition f {settled on Divestiture) 0.06 105
Others - -
Liability at the end of the year 6,52 5.51

II  Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Liability at the end of the year 6.52 551
Fair Value of Plan Asseis at the end of the year - -

Difference 6,52 5.51
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet .52 8.51

HI Expenses Recognised in the statenient of profit and loss

Current Service Cost 2,22 0.80
interest Cost 0,35 0.32
Net Actuatial Loss to Be Recognised (0.65) (1.76)
Liability acquired on acquisition / (settled on Divestiture) 0.06 1.05
Expense Recognised in statement of profit and loss 198 0.41

IV Balance Sheet Reconciliation

Opening net liability §.51 5.49
Expense as above 1.98 0.41
Employers contribution (paid) 0.9 (.39
Others - -
Amount recognised in Balance Sheet 6.52 5.51
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

No

tes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

{iv)

A3}

Defined Benefit Plans (Continaed)
Gratuity (Continued) 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
¥  Actuarial Assminptions :
Discount Rate 6.10% - 7.05% 5.90% - 6.80%
Salary escalation 7.00% - 9.00% 6.00% - 7.00%

Attrition Rate: Directors - Nil, Age 21-30 yeary - 5%, Age 31-40 years - 3%, Age 41-39 years 2%

Estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
The Group’s liability on account of gratuity is not funded and hence, the disclosures relating to the planned assets are not applicable.

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

VI Experlence Adjusiments:

Defined benefit obligation 6.52 3351
Plan assets - -
{Deficit} {6.52) {5.51)
Expericnce adjustment on plan liabilities - D.19),
Experience adjustment on plan assets - .

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date, to a change to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions,
holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount rate { -/+ 0.50% movement) 2.4% -2.3% 2.8% -2.7%
Salary escalation { -/+ 0.50% movement) -2.2% 2.3% =2.7% 2.8%
Atftrition Rate { -+ 50% movement) 16.9% -0.9% 9.7% -7.3%

Other long term employment hanefits
Compensated absences

The liability towards compensated absences for the year ended 31 March 2022 recognised in the Balance Sheet based on actvarial
valuation using the projecte! unit credit method amounted to INR 7.68 crores (2020: INR. 7.48 crores) and the charge to the Statement of
profit and loss amounted to [NR. 1.13 crores (2020: INR 1.29 ctotes).
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Currency: Indian rupees in crores}

Note 57
Related Party Disclosures

Holding company:
Tata Sons Private Limited

Joint Venture

TRIL 1T4 Private Limited {upto 27 July 2021}
Mikado Realtors Private Limited

Industrial Mineral and Chemicals Company Limited

Joint Venture of a Subsidiary

Pune Solapur Expressways Private Limited

A & T Road Construction Management and Operation Private Limited (upto 28 January 2022)
Pune IT City Metro Rail Limited

Associater
Tata Housing Development Company Limited (w.e.f. 25 March 2021)

Other reloted parties with whom transactions have tuken place duving the pear:
Fellow Subsidinries:

Ewart Investments Limited

Tata Consultancy Services Limited

Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited
Tata ATA Life Insurance Company Limited
Tata Capital Financial Services Limited
Infinity Retail Ltd.

Tata Asset Management Limited

Tata Housing Development Company Limited (upto 24 March 2021)
Tata Elxsi Ltd.

Tata Teleservices Limited

THDC Management Services Limited

Tata Consulting Enginesrs Ltd

Tata Electronics Private Limited

Key Management Personnel

Sanjay Dutt Managing Director & CEO

Sanjay Sharma Chief Financial Officer - upto 30 November 2021

Bhavesh Madeka Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 10 May 2022 upto 31 May 2022)
Aravind Maiya Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. | June 2022)

Sudhakar Shetty Company Secretary - upto 31 March 2022

Rashmi Jain Compuny Secretary - w.e.f. | April 2022
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Nates to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)
Related party disclosures {Continued)

Related Party Transactions

For year For year
ended ended
Sr. No. Party Name Nature of Transaction 31 Warch 31 March
2022 2021
1 |Tata Sons Private Limited a) Expenses
{Helding Company) Reimbursement of expenses 0.88 0.62
b) Other Transactions
Recovery of Expenses 0.1 0.12
¢) Qutstanding Balances Receivables
fowards interest and debit notes and advances 0.31 0.25
d) Outstanding Balances Payable
towards expenses 0.05 -
2 |TRIL IT4 Private Limited a) Income
{Joint Venture uplc 27 July, 2021) Asset Management Fees 0.78 1.69
Interest on NCDs 4.78 14,65
Prcject Management Consultancy fees - 045
b} Expenses
Reimbursement of expenses - 0.00
¢} Outstanding Balances Recelvables
towards interest and debit notes and advances - 0.00
3 |Mikado Realtors Private Limited a} Income
{Joint Venture) Project Management Consultancy fees - 9.02
b} Expenses
Reimbursement of expanses - 0.03
¢} Outstanding Balances Receivables
towards interest and debit notes and advances 2.05 2.05
4 |Pune Solapur Expressways Private Limited a) Expenses
{Joint Venture) Reimbursement of expenses - 0.31
5 |Pune IT City Metro Rail Limited a) Other Transactions
{Joint Venture) Recovary of Expenses - 0.04
Purchase of Investments 145.40 63.39
b) Expenses
Reimbhursement of expenses 4.68 6.37
¢} Outstanding Balances Receivables
towards interest and debit notes and advances 4.24 0.13
d) Outstanding Balances Payable
towards expenses - 0.04




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Cuorrency: Indian rupees in crores}
Related party disclosures (Continued)

Related Party Transactions

For year For year
ended ended
Sr. No. Party Name Nature of Transaction 37 Warch 31 March
2022 2021
B8 |Tata Housing Developmeni Company Limited a) Income
{Assqciates) Rent Income 1.07 1.03
b) Expenses
Reimbursement of expenses 4.97 4,07
Interest expenses on unsecured loans 0.82 -
¢) Other Transactions
Recovery of Expenses 2.68 -
Unsecured loan Given - 20.00
Unsecured loan repaid 20.00 -
Purchase of Investments 500,00 500.00
Deposit 0.06 -
d) Qutstanding Balances Receivables
towards interest and debit notes and advances 0.27 1.55
Trade Receivable 0.31 0.15
e) Qutstanding Balances Payable
towards advances/Deposit from customers 037 -
towards expenses 289 -
7 linfinity Retail Limited a) Other Transactions
(Fellow Subsidiary) Purchase of property, plant and equipment 0.03 -
8  |Ewart Investments Limited a) Expenses
(Fellow Subsidiary) Reimbursement of expenses 0.01 -
b} Other Transactions
Recovery of Expenses 142 1.65
Deposits placed - 240
¢) Outstanding Balances Recevables
towards deposits placed 2.40 -
9 |Tata AlA Life Insurance Company Limited a) Other Transactions
{Fellow Subsidfary} Recovery of Expenses 0.40 0.01
10 |Tata AlG General Insurance Limited a) Income
{Fellow Subsidiary} Rent Income 3.92 -
k) Expenses
Reimbursement of expenses 0.03 -
¢) Other Transactions
Recovery of Expenses 298 125
d) Qutstanding Balances Recsivables
towards deposits placed 0.03 -
Trade Receivable 0.01 -




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Nates to the consolidated financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian rupees in crores)

Related party disclosures (Continued)

Related Party Transactions

For year For year
ended ended
Sr. No. Party Name Nature of Transaction 31 Warch 31 March
2022 2021
11 |Tata Communications Limited a) income
{Fellow Subsidiary) Rent Income 0.40 -
b) Cther Transactions
Recovery of Expenses 0.26 0.02
¢) Outstanding Balances Recelvables
Trade Receivable 0.02 .
d) Outstanding Balances Payable
towards expenses 0.01 0.02
12 |Tata Consultancy Services Limited a) Income
{Fellow Subsidiary)} Rent ncome T4.77 46.85
b} Other Transactions
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 0.06 0.32
Recovery of Expanses 5.76 0.51
¢} Outstanding Balances Receivables
Trade Receivabla 8,78 8.11
towards deposits placed 20.60 -
d) Outstanding Balances Payable
towards advances from customers 2583 25.83
towards expenses 0.06 0.07
13 |Tata Consulting Engineers Limited a) Other Transactions
{Fellow Subsidiary) Recovery of Expenses 212 1.63
14 |Tata Teleservices Limited a) Other Transactions
{Fellow Subsidiary) Recovery of Expenses o7 0.03
b) Outstanding Balances Payable
towards expanses 0.1 -
15 |THDC Management Services Limited a) Other Transactions
{Fellow Subsidiary} Reimbursement of expanses - 0.16
16 |Xey Managerial Personnei Managerial remuneration 12.29 11.33
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Tata Renlty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes ta llhe lidated fal stat ts for the year ended 31 ¥arch 2022

(Curvency: Indian rupesa in crores)

Note 58
Additional inf jon te paragraph 2 of Division [T of Schedube 1l to the Companies Act 2013- *General

i for the preparaion of lidated finoneial * of Division L[ of Schedule 111
Part A
March 2022

Net Agsety Share in prafit or loss Share in othar comprehensiva | Shara in total comprahensive income |
{Total Assets - Total Liabilitias) income
ame of the entity Asa%of Amount Asa%el Amount Ase % of Amount As a % of total Amount
consoldated consolidated consolldeted other comprahensha
net assgls profit or loss comprehensihve income
Jus s

[Parent
Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited 5154% 2,896.28 2.30% [5.24} 9500 B56.93 120.67% 85169
Subsldiaries
Indian
Acrme Living Solutlons Private Limited 000% 0.0% 0005 - 0008 - 0,002 -
[Arrow infra Estates Private Limited -0.29% {22.25) 4.77% {1087} 0005 - -1.66%. (10.87)
‘Gurgaon Constructwall Private Limited 0.31% bl 3.50% 17.98) 0.00% - -1.22% [7.98]
‘Gurgaon Raaltech Limited -0.03% {1.98) 1.81% {10:97) 0.00% - ~1.67% (10.97)
TRIL Roads Private Limited 4.34% 2032 15.24% {34.74) 2.98% 2637 -1.27% 18.37)
TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projacts Privake Limited 000 0,04} 0.00% . 0.00% - 0.00% -
TRIL Urban Transport Private Umied 2E5% 21616 7.26% {16.54] 0,11% 0.95 -2.37% {1559}
‘Wellkapt Facllity Management Services Private Limited OGRS 0,02} 0.0 . 0,00 - 0.00% -
TRIL Infopark Limited 15.14% 114442 24.21% {85.17) -0,01% .08} 2.41% {55.23)
Hampi Expressway Prlvata Limited .34% 177.18 26.96% [51.44) 0,008 LX) -8.35% {61.44}
HY Farms Private Limited Q.14% 1063 D.00% {0.01) D00% - 0.00% 10.01}
International Infrabuild Private Limited 10% 755 1.66% {2.79% D00 - -.58% [2.79)
Dharamshala Ropaway Limited 0.15% 1164 3.84% 8.76) D00 0,01 -1.33% [4.74)
LIchil Expressways Private Limited 2.09% 157.66 27.48% [62.63) D.01% D07 D52 {62.56)
(g Shivnath Expressways Pyt Lid 190% 150.32 -13,55% 30.88 0.00% 0,04 A,71% 0.9z
hatheran Ropeway Pt Ltd 032% 2408 -0.10% 9.23 0.00% - 00445 922
TRIL Bangaluru Real Estate One Private Limited 0.00% {o.00) D00 10.00) D008 0,008 {0.00)
[TRIL Bengaluru Consultants Private Limited 0.00% {0.00) D% {0.00) 0,00% 0,00% {0.00)
TRIL Benigaluru Real Estate Three Private Limited 0.00% [0.00 D.00% {0.00) 0.0 - 0,00% {0.00)
Indfopark Fropertles Limlted D01% [0.97) 0.43%, {0.98} 0.00% . 0,15% {0.98)
TRILIT4 Private Limited -2.43% {183.86) ~29.50% 67.23 [tRL 1 [0.00) 10.24% 6722
Vil Infrastrocture Private Limited A.00% {0.31) D.00% - 005 - 0.0k -
N irolling intarasts In all subsidiari 0.03% 200 0.19% {043} GO0 - 0.00% -
Jont Vi and Azsoclate [i a3 par equily mathod}
Indlsn
Pune Solapur Expressways Private Limited 0.40% e 5.68% 12.95 0.00% - 1.97% 1295
A & T Road Construction Managemenit and Operation Private Limited 0.00% . i - 00 - 0.00% -
TRIL [T4 Private Limited 0.00% - G00% - G.00% - 0.00% -
hikado Realtors Pyt Ltd, 240% 18145 7.25% {16.52} 0.00% -251% {16.52]
Industrial Minerals and Chemicals Company Private Limited 239% 218.81 0.17% (0,40} 0.00% “0.06%, (040}
Pupe IT Gty Metre Rail Limited 3.11% 234.84 1.50% 13.42) G.00% 0.52% 13.42}
Tata Housing Development Company Limiked 1271% 960,70 17.25% {39.30} D.00% . -5.98% {39.30}

ot 100.00%: 7,555.82 1000054 1227‘90” 10400 88431 100008 656.83
Consolldation Adlustment {6,701.69) 31124 |824.75) 1573.84)
Total 854.13 8.4 [0.45)) £.89

i
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i
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated flnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Currency: Indisu tupess in erores)

Mote 59
Capital worlk-in-progress (CWIF) ageing analysls
Particulars As at 31 March 2022
Less than 1 1-2Years | 2-3Years | More than Total
yoar Yenrs
Project in Progress 062 - - 0.63 125
Praject Temporarily suspended - - - - -
Particulars As at 31 March 2021
Less than L 1-2¥ears | 2-3 Years | More than 3 Total
year Yenrs
Project in Progress - - B 0.63 0.63
Broject Temporarily suspended - - - - -
Note 60
Intangible asseis under developnient under Serviee Concession Arrangements ageing analysls
Partlenlars As od 31 Mareh 2022
Less than 1 1+2Years | 2-3 Years | More thmm 3 Total
year Years
Project in Progress - 7.00 - - T.00
Preject Temporarily suspended - - - - -
Particulars As at 31 March 2021
Laess than 1 1-2¥ears | 2-3 Years | More fhan 3 Total
yoar Years
Project in Progress 274,62 510.32 42033 526,83 1,732.15
Project Temporarily suspended - - - - -
Note 61
Trade Receivable ageing analysis
Particulars As nt 31 March 2022
Less than6 | 6 months=1 | 1«2 Years | 2-3 Years | More than 3 Total
mionthy year Years
() Undisputed - Considered good L6.47 4.03 0.63 0.31 - 21.44
(1iy Undisputed - Credit impaired M - - - - -
{1if} Disputed - Considerod good - - - “ - -
{iv) Dispuled - Credit impaired - .79 03¢ 1.99 3.00 6.26
Particulars As al 31 March 2021
Lessthan 6 | 6months-1 | 1~-2Years { 2.3 Years | More thap 3 Total
monihs year Years
(i} Undisputed - Congidered good t1.94 368 173 - - 15,35
(i) Undisputed - Credit impaired - . - - - .
(iii) Disputed - Considered good - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed - Credit impaired - - - - 3.42 342
Mote 62
Trade Payable ageing analysis
Particulars As at 31 Moveh 2022
Less than 1 1-2Years | 2-3 Years | Movethan 3 Taotnl
Year Years
i) MSME 0.32 0.01 - - 0.4
(i) Others 75.61 4.08 040 £.12 5121
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
{iv} Disputed dues - Others - - - 0.08 008
Particulars Ag at 31 March 2021
Less than 1 1-2Years | 2-3 Years | More thon 3 Total
Yeur Years
(iy MSME 0.78 .19 - - 097
(i) Others 57.00 130 028 0.25 634
{iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - .
{iv} Dispuied dugs - Others - - - - -
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